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CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Hon Man (Chairman)
Mr. CHAM Wai Ho, Anthony (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. KAM, Eddie Shing Cheuk (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. SIU Hi Lam, Alick
Mr. MAN Kong Yui
Mr. SUN Ka Ziang, Henry

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. CHAM Wai Ho, Anthony
Mr. KAM, Eddie Shing Cheuk

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. KAM, Eddie Shing Cheuk

AUDITOR

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. SUN Ka Ziang, Henry (Chairman)
Mr. SIU Hi Lam, Alick

Mr. MAN Kong Yui

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. SUN Ka Ziang, Henry (Chairman)
Mr. SIU Hi Lam, Alick
Mr. MAN Kong Yui

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. SUN Ka Ziang, Henry (Chairman)

Mr. SIU Hi Lam, Alick

Mr. MAN Kong Yui

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG
Ground Floor to 3rd Floor

Cosco Tower

Grand Millennium Plaza
183 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

REGISTERED OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN

ISLANDS

Second Floor, Century Yard
Cricket Square

P.O. Box 902

Grand Cayman

KY1-1103

Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Chong Hing Bank Limited

Bank of Communications Co. Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN
ISLANDS

Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited

Second Floor, Century Yard

Cricket Square

P.O. Box 902

Grand Cayman

KY1-1103

Cayman Islands

STOCK CODE
0064

WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY

www.getnice.com.hk
(Information on the website does not form part of this
annual report)
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Get Nice
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), I hereby present the annual
report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2022.

OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group’s revenue
amounted to approximately HK$441.1 million, representing a
decrease of 12.2% as compared with approximately HK$502.6
million reported in the last corresponding financial year. The
decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to the decrease in the
interest income from margin financing business, money lending
business and debt securities held by the Group during the year.
On the other hand, the brokerage commission recorded an

slightly increment as compared with the last financial year.

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$60.2 million (2021: HK$189.6 million).
The decrease in profit was mainly attributable to the net effect
of (i) decrease in loss on changes in fair value of investment
properties; (ii) increase in impairment loss on account receivable
from margin clients; (iii) increase in net impairment loss on
other receivables; (iv) increase in provision of net impairment
loss on loans and advances and (v) decrease in finance cost
resulted from decrease in bank borrowing drew down during
the year and decrease in clients’ accounts. The Group recorded
net impairment loss on accounts receivable from margin clients
and provision of net impairment loss on loans and advances
of approximately HK$130.1 million (2021: HK55.7 million)
and HK$29.6 million (2021: HK$11.1 million), respectively in

current financial year.

Basic earnings per share for the year were HK0.62 cents (2021:

HK1.96 cents) as a result of decrease in profit during the year.

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Market Review

At the beginning of 2021, with the launch of vaccines and the
gradual relaxation of cross-border restrictions, global stock
markets extend the uptrend of the end of last year, Hang Seng
Index rose to a 52-week high of 31,183 points on 18 February
2021. Afterwards, the market worried about the recession of
easing policies in China, the rise in US 10-year Treasury bond
yields and the renewed tension between China and Europe and

the United States which affected the market sentiment.
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ITEHREEREERBERMETHT
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In the second quarter of 2021, China’s export grew since the
epidemic drove the demand for goods. Also, consumer habits
have changed and they are more inclined to consume online,
which improve the consumption growth. However, China
began anti-monopoly investigations on some large Internet and
technology companies and strengthened the industry supervision,
which led to the decline and consolidation of those internet and
technology stocks. Hong Kong stock market was stable with
reduced volatility.

During the third quarter to forth quarter of 2021, the raging
Delta variant of COVID-19 frustrated the restart of the global
economy and delayed the economic recovery expected by the
market this year. China was not immune to the impact of the
epidemic and the pace of economic growth slowed down. The
stock market experienced a downward adjustment and the

decline began to stabilize in September.

In the first quarter of 2022, the Russo-Ukrainian War started,
introduced new uncertainty to global stock market. In US, the
Federal Reserve announced to raise interest rates by 25 basis
points, this is the first time the Federal Reserve has raised interest
rates since 2018. At the same time, the Federal Reserve also
revealed more aggressive measures, expected to raise interest
rates at six policy meetings this year, as it intensifies efforts to
slow down the inflation, which is at its highest level in 40 years.
In addition, the Federal Reserve announced that the process of
shrinking the balance sheet will be started in June. The Hang
Seng Index closed at 21,996 points at the end of March 2022
compared with 28,378 points at the end of March 2021. The
average daily turnover on the Main Board and GEM during the
year ended 31 March 2022 was approximately HK$147.0 billion,
a decrease of 5.2% as compared with approximately HK$155.1

billion for the prior financial period.

In respect of the local money lending market, the Hong Kong
economy has recovered in 2021, GDP has recorded growth
as compared to 2020. However, in first quarter of 2022, with
the fears of widespread Omicron outbreak in Hong Kong
and tightening of social distancing measures, the personal
consumption in this quarter dropped sharply, which deteriorate
the recovery of the money lending market. For the sake of
caution, our Group still adopt a prudent approach, such as
implementing strict credit policies. In order to manage the credit

risk, we focused on debt recovery during the year.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Regarding the local property market, despite the impact of
the fourth wave of the epidemic and the restriction order, the
value of the first-hand residential property sale and purchase
contract has increased in 2021 year on year. However, in the
first quarter of 2022, due to the tight monetary policy set by the
Federal Reserve and the local outbreak of Omicron virus, the
property market sentiment is sluggish, transaction volume in the
first quarter plunged 34% quarter on quarter. Some of the new
properties have undersubscribed and the developers even delay
the sale of new properties. Also, the interest rates start to climb
which put pressure on the property market. Regarding the UK
property market, the Bank of England has previously hinted
that it may need to raise interest rates, which will undoubtedly
become a major variable in the UK property market. During the

period, property prices in the UK were stable.

Business review
Broking and securities margin financing

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the broking business
posted a profit of approximately HK$7.4 million (2021:
HK$19.5 million). The operating result of the broking business
decreased by 62.1% as a result of the decrease in our broking
turnover and number of sizeable corporate finance transactions
during current year. The decrease in broking turnover was
affected by the volatile local stock market and negative global
investment atmosphere. Revenue from broking for the year
decreased by 12% to approximately HK$62.7 million (2021:
HK$71.3 million) as compared with last financial year, of
which approximately HK$6 million (2021: HK$17 million) was
contributed by the underwriting, placing and proof of funds
business. The decrease in these fee incomes was due to the
decrease in number of deals as a result of the less active capital

market during the current year.

Securities margin financing remained to be the Group’s
major revenue contributor for the year. During the year, total
interest income from securities margin financing dropped by
6.4% to approximately HK$287.1 million (2021: HK$306.6
million) with the decrease in average level of securities margin
lending during the year. Total gross accounts receivable from
margin clients at 31 March 2022 amounted to approximately
HK$3,113.5 million (as at 31 March 2021: HK$3,811.3
million). Net impairment loss on margin clients receivable of
approximately HK$130.1 million was charged during the current
year (2021: HK$55.7 million).
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ITEHREEREERBERMETHT
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The provision of net impairment loss was provided for the whole
margin loan portfolio of the Group, no matter the client has
margin shortfall or not, to recognise the expected credit loss
of accounts receivable from margin clients. Depending on the
degree of margin shortfall of each client, which is calculated by
outstanding loan balance minus market value of pledged securities,
margin clients are categorised into different credit ratings and
the expected credit loss is recognised based on the corresponding
default rate and recovery rate from Moody’s. For clients with
significant margin shortfall, additional impairment loss up to
100% of the margin shortfall amount will be recognised. To
recover overdue account receivables, the Group has taken various
actions, including issuing margin call, forced selling of pledged

securities, issuing demand letter and legal action.

Included in the total provision of net impairment loss
on accounts receivable from margin clients amounted to
approximately HK$130,076,000 during the year ended 31
March 2022, net provision of approximately HK$1,002,000 was
provided for the Group’s ten largest margin clients, including
Mr. Hung Hon Man, a director of the Company and his
close family members, and net reversal of impairment loss of
approximately HK$490,853 was provided for the Company’s

directors and their close family members.

The Group will continue to maintain a balance on yield relative
to risk and cautious approach to the credit control of its margin

financing business.

Money lending

The money lending vehicle is engaged in provision of consumer
and mortgage loans. The money lending business continued
to show stable performance during the year. The aggregated
loan amount decreased to approximately HK$396.7 million
at 31 March 2022 from approximately HK$507.3 million at
31 March 2021, with interest income for the year decreased
to approximately HK$43.3 million (2021: HK$75.2 million).
Money lending business recorded profit before tax of
approximately HK$13.3 million for the year ended 31 March
2022 (2021: HK$62.6 million). Net impairment loss on loans
and advances of approximately HK$29.6 million was provided
during the year (2021: HK$11.1 million). The net impairment
loss provided was mainly for unsecured loans to a borrower
which is a listed company (now in liquidation) and the amount
of impairment loss was provided up to the irrecoverable portion
of the loans. Building on the Group’s expertise and relationships
with high net worth customers, the Group remains positive
about the money lending business and will continue to target

high net worth customers with short-term financial needs.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Investments

The investments division held properties and financial
instruments for the Group. Assets allocations are based on
expected return rates and available funding capital. For the year
under review, this division reported a profit of approximately
HK$6.4 million (2021: HK$13.0 million), mainly attributable
to fair value losses on investment properties of approximately
HK$21.5 million (2021: HK$30.1 million); interest income
from convertible notes and unlisted debt securities of
approximately HK$9.8 million (2021: HK$13.0 million);
interest income from listed debt securities of approximately
HK$14.9 million (2021: HK$20.3 million); rental income of
approximately HK$18.3 million (2021: HK$15.4 million); and
the unrealised losses on financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$6.3 million (2021:
HK$7.2 million) due to the drop of share prices of certain equity
securities listed in Hong Kong among the portfolio held of
approximately HK$110.4 million at 31 March 2022 (31 March
2021: HK$117.2 million).

As at 31 March 2022, the Group held a portfolio of investment
properties with a total fair value of approximately HK$836.4
million (31 March 2021: HK$851.8 million), comprised
residential, commercial and industrial properties in Hong Kong

and a commercial building in London.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group held an investment portfolio
mainly consisted of listed equity securities, debt securities,
convertible notes and unlisted equity securities with total fair
values of approximately HK$439.7 million (2021: HK$553.5
million). The decrease in total fair values of the investment
portfolio was mainly attributable to the net effect of the
acquisition of an unlisted redeemable note with principal amount
of HK$30 million (2021: HK$100 million); the acquisition of
an unlisted equity securities of HK$24.3 million (2021: HK$7.3
million), the partial redemption of an unlisted redeemable note
of HK$80 million (2021: HK$70.8 million) and the disposal
of certain listed debt securities during the year while the
Group held portfolio of listed debt securities of approximately
HK$120.4 million at 31 March 2022 (2021: HK$257.6
million). The portfolio of listed equity securities mainly
comprised listed companies in Hong Kong while the portfolio of
debt securities mainly comprises listed and unlisted bonds, and
redeemable notes issued by certain listed and unlisted companies

in Hong Kong and overseas.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Corporate finance

The Group’s corporate finance business focused on the provision
of financial advisory services to listed companies in Hong
Kong. During the year ended 31 March 2022, it completed 4
financial advisory transactions (2021: 4). The operation reported
a segment profit of approximately HK$2.4 million for the year
(2021: HK$0.6 million).

Asset Management

During the year ended 31 March 2022, this division reported
a profit of approximately HK$2.1 million (2021: HK$Nil)
mainly attributable to the asset management fee income of
approximately HK$2.4 million (2021: HK$Nil) received during
the year.

Outlook

With the efforts of governments all over the world, the
COVID-19 vaccination plan has been successfully implemented.
The number of people vaccinated against COVID-19 is
increasing continuously and the epidemic seems to be under
control. Global economic activity has recovered in an orderly
manner during the period and people also expect that border

restrictions will be relaxed.

Since the emergence of COVID-19, people have become
accustomed to virtual and online consumption. In order to keep
pace with the times, the Group has upgraded its securities service
mobile application and added multiple functions such as remote
account opening and E-IPO application, aiming to enhance the

user experience Of customers.

In May 2021, the Group has moved the headquarter to new
premises. The new headquarter are located in a prime financial
district with three-storey commercial units and an office unit
with total gross floor areas of 27,808 square feet. The low rise
commercial units with large outdoor LED display screen, which
would significantly enhance the Group’s corporate brand and
image which are important to increase customers’ perception in
the securities industry. In order to enhance our corporate image
and attract financial talents to join our Group, the Group has
invested in marketing and advertising, such as production of TV
advertising, which have been broadcast on TV and on the LED

display screen on the exterior wall of our headquarters.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In respect of the investment activities of the Group, the
management will keep secking quality and upscale investment
properties in both Asia and Europe, and also investment in
securities with good potential, to enhance its investment
portfolio and continue to provide a source of steady rental
income and investment gains in the future. Meanwhile,
management will adopt cautious measures to manage the
Group’s investment portfolio. Dealing with the future
challenges, the management of the Group would review and
adjust business strategies on regular basis with a prudent and
balanced risk management approach. The management of
the Group remains cautiously optimistic about the business
development and overall performance of the Group in the future.
The Group is endeavoring to render comprehensive services to
our affluent and high-net-worth clients in order to maintain our
clients’ confidence and loyalty. The Group will also continue
to recruit and train financial talents to provide high quality

financial services to our clients.

Given our lean and efficient organization structure, stable clients
base, strong track record and solid business fundamentals, the
Group is poised to expand its horizons and scale new heights in
the years to come in order to continue maximizing returns and

value for all shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

Equity attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$5,751.5 million as at 31 March 2022 (2021:
HK$5,609.1 million), representing an increase of approximately
HKS$142.4 million or 2.5% over that of last financial year end.
The non-controlling interests increased from approximately
HK$1,106.7 million at 31 March 2021 to approximately
HK$1,193.2 million at 31 March 2022. These movements were
mainly attributable to the profit for the year netting off dividend
distributed during the year.
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ITEHREEREERBERMETHT
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s net current assets amounted
to approximately HK$5,341.7 million (2021: HK$4,927.0
million), and its liquidity as represented by current ratio
(current assets/current liabilities) was 6.8 times (2021: 6.6
times). The increase in net current assets and current ratio were
mainly attributable to the increase in bank balances and an
investment property classified as assets held for sale. The Group’s
bank balances and cash on hand increased to approximately
HK$1,835.2 million (2021: HK$658.9 million). The increase
in bank balances and cash on hand was mainly due to the cash
inflow in respect of the borrowing from bank of approximately
HK$94.6 million, a deposit of HK$126 million was received
for disposal of a subsidiary and the repayment from accounts

receivable.

The Group had bank borrowings of approximately HK$94.6
million as at 31 March 2022 (2021: HK$Nil) and the Group
had undrawn banking facilities amounting to approximately
HK$763.4 million as at 31 March 2022 (2021: HK$918.0
million) which were secured by charges over clients’ pledged
securities, certain properties of the Group and corporate
guarantees issued by Get Nice Financial Group Limited
(“GNFG”) and the Company.

The Group’s gearing ratio (total borrowing over equity
attributable to owners of the Company) as at 31 March 2022 was
0.02 (2021: 0.01).

The number of issued shares of Company amounted
to 9,662,705,938 shares as at 31 March 2022 (2021:
9,662,705,938 shares).

An investment property located in United Kingdom and its
related rental income which were denominated in British
Pound, the business activities of the Group were not exposed
to material fluctuations in exchange rates as the majority of
the transactions were denominated in Hong Kong dollar. The
Directors considered that a reasonably possible annual change of
5% in the exchange rate between Hong Kong dollars and British
Pound would not have material impact on the Group’s results
and therefore hedging through the use of derivative instruments

was considered unnecessary.

The Group had no material contingent liabilities at the end of

the year.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Charges on Group Assets

As at 31 March 2022, investment property, and leasehold
land and building of the Group with a carrying amount of
approximately HK$69 million and HK$398 million respectively
(31 March 2021: HK$Nil and HK$100.7 million respectively)
were pledged for banking facilities granted to the Group.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates
and Jointly Controlled Entities

Save as disclosed in note 30, there were no material acquisitions
or disposals of subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled

entities during the reporting period.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had 96 (2021: 94) full time
employees. The Group’s employees were remunerated according
to their performance, working experience and market conditions.
The total amount of remuneration cost of employees of the
Group for the year was approximately HK$29.8 million (2021:
HK$27.3 million). The Group provides employee benefits
including mandatory provident fund, discretionary share options

and performance bonus to its staff.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors recommended a final dividend of HKO0.5 cent per
share, together with the interim dividend paid during the year,
amounting to total dividends of HK1 cent per share for this

financial year.
The final dividend will be payable on or about 8 September

2022 to sharecholders of the Company whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 2 September 2022.
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ITEHREEREERBERMETHT
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed on the
following time periods during which no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered:

For attendance to 2022
Annual General Meeting

: 22 August 2022 — 25 August
2022, both dates inclusive

For entitlement to final

dividend

: 1 September 2022 —
2 September 2022,
both dates inclusive
(Record date being
2 September 2022)

In order to qualify for attendance to the Company’s 2022
Annual General Meeting which is scheduled to be held on 25
August 2022, Thursday and/or entitlement to the final dividend,
all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s registrar, Tricor Secretaries
Limited of Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong (if the transfer will be lodged before 15 August
2022) or 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Admiralty, Hong Kong (if the transfer will be lodged on or after
15 August 2022), for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on the
following dates:

Events Last date of lodgement of
transfer documents

For attendance to 2022
Annual General Meeting

: 19 August 2022, Friday

For entitlement to final
dividend

: 31 August 2022, Wednesday

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, I wish to express my gratitude to our
customers and shareholders for their continued support. I would
also like to thank your all our directors, the management team
and staff members for their hard work and dedicated service.

By Order of the Board

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED
Hung Hon Man

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2022
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HUNG Hon Man, aged 68, is the chairman, an executive
director of the Company and founder of the Group. He is
responsible for the formulation of corporate strategy and the
future direction of the Group. Mr. Hung is also responsible for
overseeing the money lending and credit operation, property
development and investment of the Group. Mr. Hung possesses
over 27 years of experience in the securities and real estate
industries in Hong Kong and Taiwan. He was the chief executive
officer of the Company from 7 April 2016 to 31 May 2022. He
is also the chairman and a non-executive director of GNFG, a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company which was spun
off for separate listing on the main board of the Stock Exchange
on 8 April 2016.

Mr. CHAM Wai Ho, Anthony, aged 76, is the deputy chairman
and an executive director of the Company. He is responsible
for the formulation of corporate strategy and future direction
of the Group. Mr. Cham is also responsible for overseeing the
money lending business, property development and investment
the Group. Mr. Cham possesses over 53 years of experience in
the banking, financial, securities and real estate industries. Before
joining the Group in September 1991, he held senior executive

positions in various international banks.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS - continued
Mr. KAM Eddie Shing Cheuk, aged 47, was appointed as an

executive Director on 28 April 2017 and chief executive officer
of the Company on 1 June 2022. He holds a bachelor’s degree
in accountancy and a master’s degree in corporate governance
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is currently
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, an associate member of The
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known
as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries) and
The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) in the
United Kingdom and Ireland. He has over 25 years of experience
in auditing, professional accounting and worked for several
Hong Kong listed companies of various industries and served
senior roles in financial management and secretarial functions.
Mr. Kam is also the Company Secretary and Authorised
Representative of the Company. He is currently a non-executive
director of Pangaea Connectivity Technology Limited (Stock
Code: 1473); an independent non-executive director of Ever
Harvest Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1549), Genes
Tech Group Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 8257),
CityChamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited (Stock Code:
256) and Avic Joy Holdings (HK) Limited (Stock Code: 260).
All of the above companies are listed on the Stock Exchange
in Hong Kong. He was an independent non-executive director
of Xiezhong International Holdings Limited (previous Stock
Code: 3663) from 16 December 2020 to 8 July 2021 (date of
withdrawal of listing). Mr. Kam was appointed as the committee
member of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference

Shanghai Committee (Baoshan District) in December 2016.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. MAN Kong Yui, aged 62, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 3 October 2005. He
holds a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Man has been involved
in the investment and financial industries for over 42 years and
has extensive experience in bullion, foreign exchange, securities,
futures and asset management business. He has held various
senior positions with prominent banks, international financial
institutions and listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Man is
an independent non-executive director of TradeGo FinTech
Limited (stock code: 8017), a company whose shares are listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong.

Mr. SUN Ka Ziang, Henry, aged 64, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 28 January 2014.
Mr. Sun holds a Bachelor degree in Economics from Monash
University in Australia. He is a member of CPA Australia and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Sun possesses over 26 years of experience in
international finance, corporate finance, corporate planning,
financial management and accounting and held executive
positions at several international banks, accounting firms, the
Hong Kong Airport Authority and an information technology
company. He is currently a director of Saigon Commercial Bank

of Vietnam.

Mr. SIU Hi Lam, Alick, aged 67, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 1
September 2014. Mr. Siu has worked in the finance and
banking field for over 28 years. He is the managing director of
Fortune Take International Limited, a company engaging in
providing financial consultancy services. Mr. Siu was the senior
vice president of AIG Finance (Hong Kong) Limited and the
vice president of Bank of America and responsible for business
development and credit risk management. He obtained a Master
degree in Business Administration from the University of Hull in
the United Kingdom. Mr. Siu was an independent non-executive
director of New Provenance Everlasting Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 2326) for the period from 5 June 2009 to 31 January
2020 and is currently an independent non-executive director
of Sun Entertainment Group Limited (stock code: 8082). The

companies are listed on the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
March 2022.

This Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures. This is with
the view of being a transparent and responsible organization
which is open and accountable to the Company’s shareholders.
The Directors believe that good corporate governance practices
are increasingly important for maintaining and promoting the

COI‘lﬁanCC Of our investors.

An explanation of how the principles of the Corporate
Governance Code were put into practice during the year under

review is set out below.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
COMPLIANCE

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has
applied the principles of, and complied with, the applicable code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, except for the

following deviation:

CG Code A.2.1
CG Code provision A.2.1 (which has been re-numbered as C.2.1

under the new CG Code that came into effect on 1 January
2022) stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separated and should not be performed by the same
individual. During the year, Mr. Hung Hon Man was the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer (“CEQO”)
of the Company. The Board considers that this structure will
not impair the balance of power and authority between the
Board and the management of the Company. The balance of
power and authority is ensured by the operations of the Board,
which comprises experienced and high caliber individuals and
meets regularly to discuss issues relating to the operations of the
Company. The Board has full confidence in Mr. Hung Hon
Man and believes that having Mr. Hung performing the roles
of the chairman of the Board and the CEO is beneficial to the

Company as a whole.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
COMPLIANCE - continued
CG Code A.2.1 - continued

On 31 May 2022, Mr. Hung Hon Man resigned as the CEO of
the Company and Mr. Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk was appointed
as the CEO of the Company on 1 June 2022. Since the change
of CEO, the Company has complied with the CG code provision
A2.1.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board’s primary responsibilities are to formulate the
Company’s long-term corporate strategy, to oversee the
management of the Group, to evaluate the performance of the
Group and to assess the achievement of targets periodically
set by the Board. The day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Company are delegated to the CEO
and the senior management. In addition, the Board has also
established three Board Committees and has delegated various
responsibilities to them as set out in their terms of reference. The
Board has the full support of the senior management to discharge
its responsibilities. Details of the delegation by the Board will be
discussed in the paragraphs below.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERERAHE

A}

&8

ExE

B
4

B —#&

TEERTHA2.1 &
MRZFEZZHERTH=1—H» dEckest
BEAL AN AIAT AR > HR(FSEAE R &
TTHEARNA - HERAE R AR A AT
oo B AT BUAR IR - A E BB SE A4
EEWBSFHECAL2.1 -

E=xg
EHGLEEBEM/BGT AL ZRE R
SEORME ~ BEE AL BB - AR Al A S
ZRBKFIGREGEINEFGENREL
At - AnrlZ HEEH  ITHAEE)
AT AT BUAR R B A HEE B R o AL
EEGNOCNLEFFETZ=M%A
o WA B Z B 2 B E 2 R
AR E TR ZEERE - EHE
TE o B0 B 4 ) SO R R AT FLOR <
o A 2 R RE NI T SCRR AL o



ERERKRSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPOR

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises six Directors, more than
one-third of these Directors are non-executive and independent
of the management. The Board is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising the Group’s affair. The Board has a balance of skill
and experience appropriate and diversity of perspective for the

requirements of the Group’s businesses.

As at the date of this annual report, three of them are executives,
namely, Mr. Hung Hon Man, Chairman, Mr. Cham Wai Ho,
Anthony, Deputy Chairman and Mr. Kam Eddie Shing Cheuk,
CEO and three of the Directors are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick (Member of Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee), Mr. Man Kong Yui (Member of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee)and
Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry (Chairman of Audit Committee,

Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee).

Each of the Directors’ respective biographical details is set out in
the “Biographical details of Directors” of this annual report. As
at the date of this report, the Board members have no financial,

business, family or other relationships with each other.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board has at all times
adopted the board diversity policy. It sets out the approach to
achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance
its effectiveness. The Company endeavors to ensure that the
Board has the appropriate balance of skills, experience, expertise
and diversity of perspectives. The appointments of board
members will continue to be made on merit basis, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity of the Board. Pursuant to the board
diversity policy, the Company seeks to achieve board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to gender, age, culture and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The Board will set up and review the measurable objectives from
time to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the

progress made towards achieving those objectives.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY - continued
The Board has revised and adopted the board diversity policy

on 26 April 2019 and will review from time to time the
implementation of the policy, as appropriate, to ensure its

continued effectiveness.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify its Directors and officers against liabilities arising
out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
on an annual basis ensuring that the Directors and officers are

adequately protected against potential legal liabilities.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as directors of the
Company and the conduct, business activities and development

of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment. This is to ensure the new employee
possesses an appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and has full awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and

relevant statutory requirements.

Directors are expected to participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains

informed and relevant.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, relevant reading
materials including regulatory updates and seminar handouts,
etc. were provided to the Directors for their reference and

studying.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT - continued

A summary of their records of training during the financial year

is as follows:

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Hung Hon Man L S A

Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony s A

Mr. Kam Eddie Shing Cheuk HRAs B
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIYKBTESE
Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry o i e A

Mr. Man Kong Yui SC Bt e A

Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick iR il e A

BOARD PRACTICES

The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s business development,
operation and financial performance. Notice of at least 14 days
is given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. All regular Board meetings
adhere to a formal agenda in which a schedule of matters is
addressed to the Board and all Directors have the opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for Board meetings. All Directors
have access to Board papers and related materials, and are
provided with adequate information which enables the Board to
make an informed decision on the matters to be discussed and
considered at the Board meetings. Minutes of Board meetings are
kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at

any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

To facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors are free
to have access to the management for enquiries and to obtain
further information, when required and the Directors can obtain

independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.
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BOARD PRACTICES - continued
All Directors were provided with monthly updates by the

Group’s management, giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position, recent
developments and prospects in sufficient detail to keep them
abreast of the Group’s affairs and facilitate them to discharge

their duties under the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.

BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE
MEETINGS
During the year ended 31 March 2022, 9 Board meetings and

an annual general meeting were held. Directors may participate
cither in person or through electronic means of communications.
Details of the attendance of the Directors in the meetings are as

follows:
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Audit  Nomination Remuneration

Board Committee Committee Committee AGM

gz¢ ENZEE RAZEE #MZzEe  RRBEAE
Executive Directors HhES
Mr. Hung Hon Man UL 9/9  NANEM  NARER  NARE 11
Mr. Cham Wai Ho Anthony HHE S 99  NAREA  NARERH  NAREHA 1/1
Mr. Kam Eddie Shing Cheuk HREEE 9/9  NAREM  NARER  NAREH 11
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUkHES
Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick Rl 919 212 212 212 11
Mr. Man Kong Yui ORISR 9/9 202 22 22 1/1
M. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry BB EE 9/9 202 202 2/2 1/1

The Company Secretary of the Company is responsible for
keeping minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings.
Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for comment
within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version

is open for Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or a Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board
at a duly convened Board meeting. The Articles also contain
provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to
be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such Directors or any of their associates have a material

interest.
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APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Executive Directors including Mr. Hung Hon Man, Mr. Cham
Wai Ho, Anthony have entered into service contracts with the
Company for an initial fixed term of three years commencing
from 1 April 2002 and will continue thereafter unless and until
terminated by either party giving not less than three months’

prior notice in writing to the other.

Other Directors did not enter into any service contract with the
Company and there are no fixed or proposed length of service
with the Company. All Directors are subject to retirement by the

rotation at least once every three years.

According to the Articles, at each annual general meeting of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest one-third) should retire from office by rotation. Further,
any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board should hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and should then be

eligible for re-clection at the meeting.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony and Mr. Man Kong Yui, will
retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for

re-election.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. All
the Directors have confirmed, following a specific enquiry by the
Company that they have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March
2022.

The Company has adopted written guidelines, “Code for
securities transactions by relevant employees”, on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code for securities transactions by
relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of inside

information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the written guidelines by the

employees was noted by the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of the Company’s Chairman and CEO are
complementary, but importantly, they are distinct and separate

with a clear division of responsibilities.

Mr. Hung Hon Man, the chairman of the Company provides
leadership to the Board; ensures effectiveness of the Board and

helps foster better relationships between Directors.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, Mr. Hung Hon Man
also took the post of the CEO of the Company who was
responsible for developing strategies for the Board’s approval,
executing the strategies agreed by the Board and led the

management of the Group’s operation.

The roles of the Chairman of the Board and the CEO are
performed by the same individual during the year ended 31
March 2022, which was a non-compliance to the Code provision
A.2.1 (now re-numbered as C.2.1). Details were discussed under
the heading “Corporate Governance Code Compliance” of this

report.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant
role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment at
the Board meetings and scrutinising the Group’s performance.
Their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decisions,
in particular, they bring an impartial view to bear on issues of
the Group’s strategy, performance and control. All independent
non-executive Directors possess extensive academic, professional
and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advices to the Board. The
independent non-executive Directors provide independent advice
on the Group’s business strategy, results and management so that
all interests of Shareholders can be taken into account and the

interests of the Company and its Shareholders can be protected.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board at all times
met the minimum requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors, and complied with the requirement that these
should include one such Director with appropriate professional
qualifications of accounting or related financial management
expertise. Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry has the appropriate
professional qualifications and experience in financial matters

required.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Board
considers that three independent non-executive Directors are
independent in character and judgement and they also meet the

independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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DIVIDEND POLICY
The Company has adopted a dividend policy that, in

recommending or declaring dividends, the Company shall
maintain adequate and sufficient cash reserves for future growth.
The Board has the full discretion to declare and distribute
dividends to the Shareholders, and any final dividend for a
financial year will be subject to Shareholders’ approval. In
proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into
account, among other things, the Group’s general financial
position, capital and debt level, future cash requirements and
availability of business operations, business strategies and future
development needs, any restrictions on payment of dividends
and any other factors the Board may consider relevant. Any
payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the Articles and all applicable laws and

regulations.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The overall management of the Group’s operation is vested in
the Board. The Board takes overall responsibility to oversee
all major matters of the Group, including the formulation and
approval of all policy matters, overall strategic development of
the Group, monitoring and controlling the Group’s operation
and financial performance, internal control and risk management
systems, and monitoring of the performance of the senior
management. The Directors have to make decisions objectively

in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to the CEO and senior management
of the Group. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed. Pursuant to the levels of authority
approved by the Board, the senior management executes
day-to-day operations unless the subject matter exceeds the
authority granted by the Board or relates to any matters
specifically reserved to the Board, they would seek approval from
the Board.

The Board has established (i) Nomination Committee (ii)
Remuneration Committee and (iii) Audit Committee, with
defined terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board
committees which explain their respective roles and the authority
delegated to them by the Board are posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice and other assistance in appropriate

circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are (i) to
review the structure, size and diversity of the Board on a regular
basis; (ii) to recommend to the Board suitable candidates for
directorship after consideration of the nominees’ independence
(if applicable) and quality in order to ensure the fairness
and transparency of all nominations; and (iii) to assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors. In
identifying suitable director candidates and making such
recommendations to the Board, the Nomination Committee
would also take into account various aspects of a candidate,
including but not limited to, his/her education background,
professional experience, experience with the relevant industry
and past directorships. The Nomination Committee currently
comprises three members, all of whom are independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Siu Hi Lam Alick,
Mr. Man Kong Yui and Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry (Chairman of

Nomination Committee).
The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year. There

were two meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2022.

The major work performed by the Nomination Committee for
the year ended 31 March 2022 is set out below:

(i) assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;
(ii) recommended the re-election of retiring Directors at the

Company’s annual general meeting; and
(iii)  reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board.

Nomination Policy

On 26 April 2019, the Board has adopted the nomination
policy (“Nomination Policy”) which sets out the nomination
criteria and procedures for the Company to appoint additional
directors or re-elect directors. The Nomination Policy can assist
the Company in achieving board diversity and enhancing the

effectiveness of the Board and its corporate governance standard.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued
Nomination Committee — continued

Nomination Policy — continued

When assessing the suitability of a candidate, factors such as
the reputation, integrity, accomplishment and experience,
commitment in respect of sufficient time, interest and attention
to the Group’s business will be taken into consideration as a
whole. In addition, a range of diverse perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skill and knowledge would be
considered. In the case of independent non-executive Directors,
the candidates must further satisfy the independence criteria set

out in the Listing Rules.

Remuneration Committee

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure relating to all Directors and senior
management of the Company; to make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights, compensation payments and any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment and

ensure none of the Directors determine their own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Siu Hi
Lam Alick, Mr. Man Kong Yui and Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee). The Remuneration
Committee meets at least once a year. There were two meetings
held during the year ended 31 March 2022.

The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee for
the year ended 31 March 2022 is reviewing the remuneration of

Directors and senior management of the Group.

The attendance of each member of the Remuneration
Committee, on named basis, at committee meetings during
the year is set out in the section “Board and Board Committee

Meetings” of this report above.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Remuneration Committee — continued

The primary aim of the remuneration policy is to enable the
Company to motivate and retain executive Directors and senior
management by comparing their performance against corporate
goals and objectives when determining appropriate compensation
for them. The principal elements of the remuneration package
include basic salary, discretionary bonus, retirement scheme
contributions and share options. No Director or any of his/her
associates should be involved in any decision as to his/her own
remuneration. In determining guidelines for each compensation
element, the Company refers to the comparable remuneration

standard in the market.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditors and has authority to
raise questions regarding the resignation or dismissal of the
auditors; overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process
and internal control and risk management systems and to
review the Group’s interim and annual consolidated financial
statements. The Audit Committee has access to and maintains
an independent communication with the external auditor and

management.

The Board has also delegated the corporate governance function
to the Audit Committee. The major responsibilities are to review
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD AND
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD - continued

Audit Committee — continued

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, all of
whom are independent non-executive Directors. The members
are Mr. Siu Hi Lam Alick, Mr. Man Kong Yui and Mr. Sun Ka
Ziang, Henry, all of whom are not involved in the day-to-day
management of the Company. Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry,
who has appropriate professional qualifications and experience
in accounting matters, was appointed as the chairman of the
Audit Committee. The principal work performed by the Audit

Committee during the year is as follows:

(i) reviewed interim and annual consolidated financial

statements and announcements of the Company;

(ii) reviewed the continuing connected transactions and

connected transactions of the Group;

(iii)  reviewed and discussed with management regarding risk

management and effectiveness of internal control;
(iv)  reviewed the re-appointment of external auditors;

(v) reviewed and monitored of the continuous professional

development of Directors; and

(vi)  reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Code and

relevant disclosures.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year. There were
two meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2022. The
attendance of each member of the Audit Committee, on named
basis, at committee meetings during the year is set out in the
section “Board and Board Committee Meetings” of this report
above. There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee regarding the selection and appointment of the

external auditor.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting balanced, clear and
comprehensive information to the shareholders on assessment of

the Company’s performance, position and prospects.

Directors’ responsibility

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company are to give a true and
fair view and comply with all applicable regulatory requirements
and accounting standards. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022, the Directors
have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently, and made judgments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern as at 31 March 2022. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the consolidated financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2022 on a going concern basis.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of
annual financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the Group’s financial position, its financial performance and
cash flows for the year. Management provides the Board with
management accounts and updates on a monthly basis, with a
view to giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, financial position, and prospects to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2022, the Board:

(a) adopted HKFRSs, which conform to the International

Reporting Standards in all material respects;

(b)  selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently;

(c) made prudent and reasonable judgements and estimates;
and

(d)  ensured that the financial statements were prepared on a

going concern basis.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING - continued

Directors’ responsibility — continued

In financial year ended 31 March 2022, the annual and
interim results were published within 3 months and 2 months
respectively after the end of the relevant periods to provide

stakeholders with transparent and timely financial information.

Independent auditor’s responsibility

The responsibilities of Mazars CPA Limited, Certified
Public Accountants, the Company’s external auditor, on the
consolidated financial statements are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report on
pages 54 to 60.
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Independent auditor’s remuneration BB 2
2022 2021
—E—-= S
HK$’000 HK$°000
TR T#s 7T
Audit services AR 2,720 2,720
Taxation services B R 5 48 46
Professional services in relation to a major AR LU AE o) 2 Bk
acquisition transaction R 7% — 288
Professional services in relation to a HHFTEL S 2 HE
major disposal transaction R 5 120 -
Professional services in relation to a ABsE GBS HE
composite offer document R — 108
Total HEr 2,888 3,162
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the establishment
and maintenance of sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems to safeguard the Group’s corporate

interests.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems
are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss; to manage prudently but
not completely eliminate the risk of system failure. Systems and
procedures are put in place to identify, manage and control the

risks of different businesses and activities.

The internal control system is to maintain proper accounting
records and to comply with relevant laws and regulations. The
Group has its independent audit function, assisting the Board
and management to conduct regular and independent review to
ensure a sound internal control system is being implemented,
maintained, and relevant regulatory requirements are complied
with. On a yearly basis, the internal audit personnel will present
a report to the Audit Committee relating to operational,
financial and compliance aspects and will alert the management
on the audit review findings or irregularities, if any, advise them
on the implementation of necessary steps and actions to enhance

the internal controls of the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Audit Committee,
as delegated by the Board, has reviewed the report provided
by the Group’s internal audit personnel and is satisfied the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management. It has also considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting and
financial reporting functions and their training programs and

budgets.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL - continued
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board has set up

its risk management policy and risk appetite statement which
clearly defines the types of risk that the Group is prepared to
pursue, retain or tolerate. The risk management process includes:
(i) setting objectives, identifying ownership of risks, and risks
that could affect the achievement of objectives; (ii) analyzing
the likelihood and impact of risks and evaluate the risk portfolio
accordingly; and (iii) considering the risk responses and ensure
effective communication to the Board/senior management
and ongoing monitor the residual risks (if any). A risk register
was maintained as a tool for documenting risks and actions to

manage cach risk on an ongoing basis.

During the year, the senior management is responsible for
maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
control. The risk control is implemented to minimize the risks to
which the Group is exposed to during the day-to-day operation
of business. The senior management designs, implements and
maintains the risk control to safeguard the assets of the Group.
It also involves making decisions regarding which risks are

acceptable and how to address those that are not.
The Board has confirmed that a review of the effectiveness of the

risk management and internal control systems was conducted and

considers them effective and adequate.
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDER INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities to ensure potential
inside information being captured and confidentiality of such
information being maintained until consistent and timely
disclosure are made in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
Group has an inside information policy with the procedures
and internal controls for handling and dissemination of insider

information as follows:

. the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the
disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules as well
as the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Insider Information”
published by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong in June 2012;

. the Group has implemented its policy on fair disclosure
by pursuing board, non-exclusive distribution of
information to the public through public announcements

and the Company’s website;

. the access of information is restricted to a limited
number of employees on a need-to-know basis such that
employees who are in possession of inside information
are fully conversant with their obligations to preserve

confidentiality; and

. the Group has established and implemented procedures
for responding to external enquiries about the Group’s
affairs and only designated persons are authorised to
speak on behalf of the Company when communicating
with external parties such as the media, analysts or

investors.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Kam Eddie Shing Cheuk is the company secretary of the
Company and a full time employee of the Company. He has
day-to-day knowledge of the Company and is responsible
for advising the Board on corporate governance matters.
Mr. Kam confirmed that he has complied with all the required
qualifications, experience and training requirements under Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with shareholders of the
Company and investors. Therefore, the Group is committed to
maintaining a high degree of transparency to ensure that the
investors and the shareholders of the Company receive accurate,
clear, comprehensive and timely information about the Group
through the publication of annual reports, announcements and

circulars.

The Company also publishes all corporate correspondences on
the Company’s website www.getnice.com.hk. Shareholders and
investors may also email their queries to the Company’s email
address: investor@getnice.com.hk, which will be handled by
the Company’s Investor Relations team. The Board maintains
regular dialogues with investors and analysts to keep them
informed of the Group’s strategy, operations, management and
plans. The Directors and the members of the various board
committees attend and answer questions raised at the general
meetings of the Company. Separate resolutions are proposed at

the general meetings on each substantially separate issue.

The chairman of the general meetings of the Company explains
the procedures for conducting a poll before putting a resolution
to vote. The results of the voting by poll are then published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company

respectively.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

How shareholders can convene an extraordinary general

meeting

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more sharecholders holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company and carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary of the Company by mail at the Company’s principal
office address in Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

The procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board
and sufficient contact details to enable these enquiries to be

properly directed

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s
attention to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
office address at G/F-3/F., Cosco Tower, Grand Millennium
Plaza, 183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company
Secretary forwards communications relating to matters within
the Board’s purview to the Board and communications relating
to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, and inquiries

to the CEO.

Procedures and sufficient contact details for putting forward

proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group to be
discussed at shareholders’ meeting. Proposal shall be sent to
the Board by written requisition. Shareholders who wish to put
forward a proposal should convene an extraordinary general
meeting by following the procedures as set out in paragraph
headed “How sharcholders can convene an extraordinary general

meeting” above.

Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 March 2022, there was no significant

change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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The directors of the Company (“the Directors”) have pleasure
in presenting their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are (i) money lending, (ii)
property development and holding and investment in financial
instruments; (iii) real estate agency and (iv) the provision of
financial services, including securities dealing and broking,
futures and options broking, securities margin financing
and corporate finance services. Particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 47 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 61 to 62.

An interim dividend of HK$0.005 per share amounting to
approximately HK$48,313,530 in aggregate was paid during
the year. The Directors now recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.005 per share to the sharcholders on the
register of members on 2 September 2022.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the audited results and the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years ended 31 March 2022
is set out on page 212 of this annual report. This summary does
not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements in
this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements during the year in the property and
equipment, and investment properties of the Group are set out
in notes 18 and 19, respectively, to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements. There
is no movement in the share capital of the Company during the
year.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme of the Company with details
are disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements,
no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Company
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares during the year or

subsisted at the end of the year.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
65 to 67.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s

ShafCS.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2022, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to sharecholders were approximately HK$3,143,454,000
(2021: HK$3,144,485,000) which comprised the share

premium, special reserve and retained earnings.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Hung Hon Man (Chairman)
Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Siu Hi Lam, Alick
Mr. Man Kong Yui
Mr. Sun Ka Ziang, Henry (Chairman of the audit committee,

nomination committee and remuneration committee)

Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony and Mr. Man Kong Yui will retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with
provision 108 of the Company’s Articles of Association. Being

eligible, they offer themselves for re-election.

EEEHE
DIRECTORS' REPORT

B% #E ) 84 15 5=

B A2 ) B P ARE S B A9 S A 4 B A S 4
T FE38) A > AR/ FAAE B [ 3l SERT 7 8K
i A A B R A A 4 3R ] R A BOAS N A
BEAT I A 2 8 A 0 6 o ik - M AR A )
ZRHT ST A% 35 BBk AT BB AR A BB AT 4y
2 B 4 6 B ok -

&
A AR TR A N ol A 2 B I R B 65 &
CTHZARAMEMR BB K -

BERR
A% 8 )l 0 7 M R R A 4 I
i 4 15 £ f] B 5 5L %0 o

CIRE:3 g4
hCFE D AEZA = —H s AN E A
I3 IR T IR 2 it 5 49 £53,143,454,000%5 TG
(&~ —4F © 3,144,485,000i C) > & AL
5 B A7 Ui A~ R Tl fah A B R B LR o

£
RAE I 2 A AR ST

BITES:
BEBESCSEE ()
WS (B )
HRIELSEE (FT B #)

BAFHTES:

il 5 ik o

S Jill 85 55 A

BUWRIEE (FEEZREG #HEZAEL
i ZE A &)

RIEA AR 2 Al LA R AR 26 10805 -
iﬁﬁi%ﬁ'ﬁi&imﬁﬁ?ﬁi%ﬁ"ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%t
ERE LR o ST S BRI
AL

Annual Report 2022 %%k

39



40

EEEHRE
DIRECTORS' REPORT

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following
confirmations from the Directors, save as otherwise set out
in this report, there is no change in the information of the
Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange:

With effect from 31 May 2022, Mr. Hung Hon Man has
resigned as Chief Executive Officer (“CEQO”) of the Company.

With effect from 1 June 2022, Mr. Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk has
been appointed as the CEO of the Company and his monthly
salary was increased from HK$35,440 to HK$50,000. Besides,
Mr. Kam ceased to be an independent non-executive director of
Xiezhong International Holdings Limited (previous stock code:
3663) on 8 July 2021 (date of withdrawal of listing).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 14 to

16 on the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Certain executive Directors including Mr. Hung Hon Man and
Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony have entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years and
will continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three

months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

The term of office of each independent non-executive Director
is for the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance

with the Company’s Articles of Association.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS EEREEAN 2 ER

OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the contracts described under the section headed BT T Y | & Hi TR 2 &
“Continuing Connected Transactions” below, no contracts of H) A1 > A4S 7] B HAT ) [ 2 ) AR 4 22 B
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the RS2 AT ART A 4 &5 B4R TR AT fA] R ] 0 A7 9K 2R
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a o MA LA ERR D E RS EEEA
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly HORRER I AL R EE LG -

or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED BEBRERS
TRANSACTIONS
1. Tenancy agreement 1. HEWHSE
Transaction Name of counterparty Term of agreement Address of premises Amount
x5 REBF2EB 1h 5 F 29 e &8
HK$
T
Tenancy made on 1 June Legend Creative 1 June 2015 to 31 May ~ Workshop C9 and C10 600,000
2015, renewed on Enterprise Limited 2017, renewed on 11/F, Block C, Hong Kong
5 June 2017, 16 May 2019 as the tenant 5 June 2017 for two Industrial Centre, Nos.
and 15 April 2021 4 B B A PR T years, further renewed 489-491 Castle Peak Road,
(monthly rental increased (TELMF) on 16 May 2019 for Kowloon, Hong Kong
from HK$42,000 to two years to 31 May Hik e L
HK$65,000 since 2021 and furcher 489-491%%
1 September 2019 and renewed on 15 April i L2 PO ChE
reduced to HK$50,000 2021 for two years to 1THBECO K C10%fif
since 1 March 2020) (Note) 31 May 2023
AN_FE—HEANA—H “E—TAESH—H
R AR ESit S o S
RE-F—-LEANHLA hH=+—H:
“E-NERATANE R I S o VAV
“ECAFENA I HE T H B A
W (AMHA —F L A ZF— L
JUA — H i H142,0009 7T HA A+
0 %2.65,00095 703l 1 — HE— L E WA R
FoEFE=H—HlL —“E LA
.2 50,0009 7T) (ML) N el = e
“—FENA+RHA
T — 5 B W AF
FoEHAHA
=+—0
Note: The tenant is an associate of Mr. Hung Hon Man, an Bt st - FAF B AR 48 R HUAT 38 3 R I E
executive Director and Chairman of the Company. N B AT o
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

%IIE@EB‘E% _;IE

2. Brokerage services and margin loan financing

Name of connected person BEATHS
Executive Directors: HITESE:
Hung Hon Man and his associates A S EN ] YN
Cham Wai Ho, Anthony and his associate ERFEREHEAL
Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk and his associates RN T YN
Directors of certain subsidiaries of AEEETHEARCES:
the Group:
Shum Kin Wai, Frankie and his associate AHERHEBEE AL
Hung Sui Kwan and his associate ST EN 1 YN
Cheng Wai Ho and his associate LRy EN ] YN
Ng Hon Sau, Larry and his associate SRR EEE AL

3. License fee

During the year, the Group received license fee from Mr.
Hung Hon Man’s associate amounting to HK$240,000 for

office areas sharing.

Save as disclosed in (4) below, the Directors, including
the independent non-executive Directors, were of the
opinion that the transactions listed above were on normal
commercial terms where all of the applicable percentage
ratios (other than the profits ratio) on an annual basis
calculated under the Listing Rules were less than 5% and
the annual consideration was less than HK$3,000,000. The
transactions were thus exempted from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent sharecholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)(c) of the
Listing Rules.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERERAHE

2. REBBRRESENME
Brokerage

commission Margin loan Maximum
income paid interest paid amount of
to the Group to the Group margin loan
for the year for the year for the year

FRE FRE
RS ! FFERE £
k3 ZREE REZER
BEWA EXAE  Z2BELE
HK$ HK$ HKS$
o o ot
2,257,402 13,251,441 326,890,204
146 45 204,376
- 208 17,525
19,663 1,722 639,688
69,689 19,907 2,748,791
5,579 - -
600 355 108,964

3. WBHEAR

SRR AR A )l Al T N T A L
A 2 B BN U F1 240,000 7T 2
FEREEE 2 o

BR R SC(4) 2 B A > R (5 I
HATER) BB E L5585 4% % %
A6 FRET S o T AR B b T R R e A R 3
WESHE 2 T A B A o R (A
BRI By KR 5% B A B ACAE £ AR
3,000,000 7 K UL > A B 28 &) #E 4
o B SF T LRSS 14A.76(1) (o) A B
RO~ AR BE A% - A B S I R
HEZ HLE o



CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

4.

Brokerage services and margin loan financing provided

to Mr. Hung Hon Man and/or any controlled companies

On 1 November 2019, Get Nice Securities Limited
(“GNS”), a subsidiary of the Company, and Mr. Hung (an
executive Director), entered into (i) the financing services
agreement (“Financing Services Agreement”), pursuant to
which GNS may (but not obliged to), upon request from
Mr. Hung and/or any controlled companies, provide or
procure any other company amongst the Group to provide
the margin financing facilities to Mr. Hung and/or, as the
case may be, the relevant controlled company from time
to time during the period from 15 December 2019 to 14
December 2022; and (ii) the broking services agreement
(“Broking Services Agreement”) pursuant to which GNS
may (but not obliged to), upon request from Mr. Hung
and/or any controlled companies, provide broking services
and services incidental thereto by GNS or any company
amongst the Group to Mr. Hung and/or any controlled
companies during the period from 15 December 2019 to
14 December 2022. Details of the terms and conditions
of the Financing Services Agreement and Broking Services
Agreement can be referred to the announcement dated 1
November 2019 and circular dated 22 November 2019.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, (i) the interest
income earned from Mr. Hung and his controlled companies
by GNS amounted to approximately HK$13,051,000
(with annual cap set at HK$29,000,000 for the year ended
31 March 2022); (ii) the maximum amount of margin
loan granted to Mr. Hung and his controlled companies
amounted to approximately HK$320,991,000 (with annual
cap set at HK$330,000,000 for the year ended 31 March
2022); and (iii) the brokerage commission earned from
Mr. Hung and his controlled companies by GNS amounted
to approximately HK$2,056,000 (with annual cap set at
HK$8,000,000 for the year ended 31 March 2022).

EEEWmE
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

Pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that the above transactions
have been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms or better
(as the case may be); and (iii) in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them during the validity of the agreement
periods on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests

of the Company’s shareholders as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has reviewed the abovementioned
continuing connected transactions pursuant to rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules and advised the Board in writing (with a copy
provided to the Stock Exchange) that the above transactions,
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that: (i) have not been approved by the Board; (ii) were not, in
all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group if the transactions involve the provisions of goods or
services by the Group; (iii) were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions; and (iv) have exceeded the their respective

annual caps.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken by
the Group in its normal course of business are set out in note
44 to the consolidated financial statements. Those related party
transactions which constituted continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules which are set out in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages 41 to 44, have
compiled with Chapter 14A.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As of 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

1. Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of
the Company

EEEHRE
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EERBETBRARZRDER

MoEZZHE=ZA=+—H WEHEFL
B A9 56 3520 AR /A R T M A7 1) B e it
J R Sk SRR B8 b T AR R T 2 A e ST R ZE
AN A R A T 2 RE g IR 0 AR
A e m AT BN B TR A R B
AHIE (2 28 a8 25 SO B P 1] 55 XVER)
(0 Ay ~ AH B 0 AR S RE AR SRR AT

1. ARAFABREHEIERTZEBR 2
B

Percentage

Number of of the issued

issued ordinary share capital

Name of Director Capacity shares held of the Company

e T HEAQASHT

EEnS BEME EBEREE RAEzEDE

Mr. Hung Hon Man Held by controlled corporation (Note) 6,016,745,872 62.26%
HECEE A (7E)

Note: Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in
6,016,745,872 ordinary shares of the Company which
are held by Honeylink Agents Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, the entire issued share capital of which is

beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man.

Al BRSO A B 2 BE A B Honeylink
Agents Limited®¥ H Z & A #]
6,016,745,872 B ¥ % it 2 HE 4
Honeylink Agents Limited £ 7 9 J& JiZ
RS MBS, 2 BERAR - HA
TR AT AR P R S A A
H o
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES - continued

22

Long positions in the non-voting deferred shares of
HKS$1.0 each of GNS, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company

Name of Director

EEnS

Mr. Hung Hon Man
W S A

Capacity

EmME

Beneficial owner

Ha A A

EERRSTRAEZKROESR -

o]

2. RADAZIZENMBRAAEFRES
ZEBREELGET ZERERIELER

ZHR
Percentage
Number of of the issued
non-voting non-voting
deferred deferred
shares* held shares** of GNS
hEHERS
FsERE ERTERER
EER#ME EZER*ZBEIH
36,000,000 90%

*ok

The non-voting deferred shares carry practically no rights to
dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote at
any general meeting of GNS and on liquidation, the assets of
GNS available for distribution among the holders of ordinary
shares and the holders of non-voting deferred shares shall
be applied first in paying to the holders of ordinary shares
the sum of HK$1,000,000,000,000 per ordinary share and
secondly in repaying to the holders of non-voting deferred
shares the nominal amount paid up or credited as paid up on
such shares, and the balances of the GNS’s assets shall belong
to and be distributed among the holders of ordinary shares in
proportion to the amount paid up or credited as paid up on

such ordinary shares respectively.

The other 10% of the issued non-voting deferred shares of
GNS, being 4,000,000 shares are held by Mr. Shum Kin
Wai, Frankie, the managing director of GNS.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERERAHE
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES - continued

3. Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01

EEEHRE
DIRECTORS' REPORT

EERBRETRARZRDER -
&
3. RAEARAKZENBAALTLME

each of GNFG, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the BHEETZEBERZER
Company
Percentage
Number of of the issued
issued ordinary share capital
Name of director Capacity shares held of GNFG
EEFER
FrFe®T BERITRAE
EEnSR EaEtE EERHE ZED
Mr. Hung Hon Man Held by controlled corporation (Note) 1,875,000,000 75.00
HEEE sz EEREA (i)

Note: Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in (i)
50,309,829 ordinary shares of GNFG which are held by
Honeylink Agents Limited (“Honeylink”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Island with limited
liability, the entire issued share capital of which is
beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man; and (ii)
1,824,690,171 ordinary shares of GNFG which are held by
the Company. Honeylink is interested in 6,016,745,872
ordinary shares of the Company, representing 62.26% of

issued share capital of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2022, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares or underlying shares of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

g U SCoE A W B WA
(i)fHHoneylink Agents Limited
([Honeylink | » % i 3¢ J&§ B 2 15
MR 2 ARAA > HAD
BATRA MBS E TS HA)
KB 2 &5 07 4 /150,309,829 % 5 4
& 5 R (i) AR A A RE A 2 &5 4
il 1,824,690,17 1 B 85 48 i 2 HE 4 o
Honeylink# 45 6,016,745,87 2B A< /A
A (A A | B ST IR AR 2
62.26%) Z HELS -

B b SCRT B A R S F A=A
=l MR I S B 125 35200 28
T A B B RO T RO Bk B 4 A e < B T
[ A% 2y w] S A2 B AR e R A E]
H AR AT B MR B A AR A 7] SO AT A
HH BRI ) (R 28 08 I SO B G 9] 2B XV R )
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SHARE OPTIONS

A new share option scheme was adopted by the Company
in August 2012. Particulars of the share option schemes are
set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
On 16 January 2019, the Company granted share options to
three grantees, which are non-employee eligible participants,
to subscribe for a total of 289,800,000 ordinary shares of the
Company under the share option scheme. The exercise price
is HK$0.26 per share. Details of the grant of share options,
including the validity of the share options can be referred to the
announcement of the Company dated 16 January 2019. These

share options were cancelled on 20 November 2020.

On 21 August 2019, the refreshment of scheme mandate limit
under the share option scheme was approved by the shareholders
of the Company at the annual general meeting by way of an
ordinary resolution. The Company is thus entitled to issue a
maximum of 966,270,593 shares upon exercise of the share
options to be granted under the refreshed scheme mandate limit,
representing 10% of the issued shares as at the date of the annual

general meeting held on 21 August 2019.

As at 31 March 2022, the number of share options to subscribe
for a total of 966,270,593 shares in the Company, representing
approximately 10% of the total number of issued ordinary shares
of the Company, may still be granted under the share option

scheme.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#ZERERAHE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2022, so far as is known to any Directors or
chief executives of the Company, the persons or corporations
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company)
who had, or were deemed or taken to have an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO (“DI Register”) or as otherwise notified to the Company

were as follows:

Long positions

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company
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FERR

MRZFEZZHE=ZA=+—H AL a/F
fa] 2 2 sk B R AT N BN - AR A B
5 H (A A 3 s AT BN B BRAM)
2N 7 e A7 5 B e 4 v A B A B
BB AE A FE AR R RS I I BRIk B 25336
M 2 B A o8 W A B 2 B e i (THE 2 &
RO ) SCZH AN A ] 2 AR BOR A

wr
K2 ] B R AT (0. 17 70 2 2 28 i’

Number of issued Percentage of the

ordinary shares issued share capital

Name Capacity held of the Company
e T L YN TS £y

= EaME ZERER BAEZBDLE

Hung Hon Man Held by controlled corporation (Note) 6,016,745,872 62.26%

L S Mz LR (f i)

Honeylink Beneficial owner (Note) 6,016,745,872 62.26%

T A N (H i)

Note: Mr. Hung Hon Man is deemed to be interested in 6,016,745,872
ordinary shares of the Company which are held by Honeylink, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, the entire issued share capital of which is beneficially
owned by Mr. Hung Hon Man.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, the Directors were
not aware of any person or corporation (other than the Director
and chief executives of the Company) who had, or were deemed
or taken to have, any interests or short positions in any shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in DI Register or

otherwise notified to the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme are set out in

note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2022, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the

listed shares of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group’s turnover

attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for

less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover.

The Group had no major suppliers due to the nature of the

principal activities of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 March 2022.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$1,036,000.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for
the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year ended 31 March 2022.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Details of the compliance by the Company with the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
are on pages 17 to 37 of the Corporate Governance Report in

this annual report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,

qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and are decided by the Board, as
authorised by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting,
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
duties, responsibilities and performance, and the prevailing
market conditions. No individual should determine his/her own

remuneration.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31 March
2022 and an analysis of the likely future development of the
Group’s business are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 4 to 13 of this

annual report. The discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

In addition, discussion on the key relationships with the
Group’s major stakeholders, Group’s environmental policy
and performance as well as compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have significant impact on the Group
are set out in the Company’s Environmental, Social and
Governance Report 2022 (“ESG Report”). The ESG Report
will be published separately on the websites of the Company
(hetp://www.getnice.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange news
website (https://www.hkexnews.hk).
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include

strategic, commercial, operational and financial risks.

Strategic risks

The Directors maintain a strategic plan together with a financial
budget at the end of each financial year based on then knowledge
to the external environments and a number of forecast and
estimates. The Group would invest in capital expenditures or
require additional working capital by way of equities or debts
fund raising based on the strategic plan in order to cope with
the market demand and competition. Given the rapid change
of unforeseeable external environments in the financial industry
and properties investment sector, the Group is facing significant
strategic risks on its capital expenditures and working capital
requirements when changing the strategic plans to adopt the

unexpected changes of external environments.

Commercial risks

The Group is facing the keen competition by other securities
brokers or financial institutions. To maintain the Group’s
competitiveness, the management uses cost leadership strategy
as well as diversifying its business strategy to tackle other

competitors.

Operational risks

Management regularly reviews the Group’s operations to ensure
that the Group’s risk of financial or reputational losses, or
inability to deliver services to customers, resulting from fraud,
errors, omissions, failed internal processes, IT systems and
compliance matters, are adequately managed. The Group has
also established its own business continuity plan, including but
not limited to implementation of cyber security control and
comprehensive cyber testing programme, to protect the Group

from risk of interruption to its business continuity.

Financial risks

The principal financial risks are set out in note 6 to consolidated
financial statements heading “FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS” —

“Financial risk management objectives and policies”.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from
each of the independent non-executive Directors. The Company
considers the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent of the management of the Company and are free
from any relationship that would materially interfere with the
exercise of their independent judgements for the financial year
ended 31 March 2022.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2022 were audited by Mazars CPA
Limited (“Mazars”) whose term of office will expire upon the

forthcoming annual general meeting.
A resolution for the reappointment of Mazars as the auditor of

the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Hung Hon Man
CHAIRMAN

28 June 2022

EEEHE
DIRECTORS' REPORT

BUFHTESHRIBLME

AN A R A5 B L JF AT AR B
4RI 55 3. 134¢ i JFC B S 1 B 2 4 AE T AR
FH oo RN ARSI RATEF R B E
T A= H IR B R RSB
TR 7 WA T LA RSl AR A T R AR A e
TR 155 AR 8 S B -

¢
AEFBE _FE - HFE=H=+—HIL4E
B2 HEGMBMEITHPRERERE (BB G
AT A RA A (T8RRI ]) &
AT 054 7 B i BB RO 4F K € i

— SRR v o R ER AN A A B 2 PR
S M Jee B RO AE R B B4R R o

(A

EYa
HEX

TR TAENA -+ NH

Annual Report 2022 %%k

93



94

%8 3L 1% 25 B 3R &

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

maZzars

To the members of Get Nice Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Get
Nice Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 61 to 211, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2022, and of its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (the

“HKCO”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Key Audit Matters — continued

HREREE -

Loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) on loans and advances

EMRBHZAHEEER ([BHEEER]) ZBRERE

Related disclosures are included in notes 4, 6 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

HEHBHEENTS 6 R24FTTBZ 11 %

Key Audit Matter
BREELER

At 31 March 2022, loans and advances amounting to
approximately HK$396,664,000, net of loss allowance
for ECL of approximately HK$48,024,000, represent 5%
of the total assets of the Group
MFZ_HF=ZH=ZT—H > BREBARELEL
396,664,000 70 (11 bk 76 M5 B s 18 2 s 18 3 5 50
48,024,000%70) - i BEEEEBMEZ5% o

Management assessed the provision for ECL of loan
and advances based on the estimate of credit losses over
the expected life of these receivables and considered
whether there were or will be any events or changes
in circumstances that indicated or may indicate a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
these balances.

L AR R % S B SRR TR TR UL A 0D I ) £ R g R
FE X R C R SOR & AT A 3 O s DA B
11 L F 7S BT RE S 3B R S A B B Al R AR B IR
B N R A R R G R TE AR R 1R
i -

We considered this matter to be a key audit matter due
to the significant amounts involved and the significant
judgement in evaluating the recoverability of the balances
and in turn, among other factors, credit worthiness of the
borrowers.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
AERHMNBEF N AEERRERSH

Our procedures, among others, included:

AZBN R F (BR AL T 4h) G4

* understanding, through challenge and enquiry
with the management, the established policies and
procedures on credit risk management of receivables
from money lending business;

3 ) A LT ) A T TR AR S 2
WK TELAE L B B 2 W E BUR AR

e assessing and evaluating the credit risk management
process including the process for identification of
impaired loans and advances and the measurement
of the loss allowance;

R AL B AR A5 B R B A BEAR T B A ek A e (E
R B DL R R R R 2 AR

D assessing, on a sample basis, the data used in
assessment and the fair value of the secured
properties for the loans and advances by making
reference to the recent open market value of similar
properties at nearby locations; and
K8 22 7% A0 b [k [] SR ) 36 2 o 20 B T 3
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e assessing management’s judgement over the ECL
and creditworthiness of the borrowers by assessing,
on a sample basis, the available information, such
as background information of the borrowers,
recoverable amount of pledged properties and
securities collateral, past due information, past
collection history of borrowers, concentration risk
of borrowers, the Group’s actual loss experience
and subsequent settlement of the loan and interest
receivables
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Key Audit Matters — continued

HRERER-H

Loss allowance for ECL on accounts receivable from margin clients arising from the business of dealing in

securities margin financing

EFERECHEREBELZRUNRECEFRBANCEERZERER

Related disclosures are included in notes 4, 6 and 25 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Key Audit Matter
EREXRER

At 31 March 2022, the accounts receivable from
margin clients arising from the business of dealing in
securities margin financing amounted to approximately
HK$2,779,411,000, net of loss allowance for ECL of
approximately HK$334,097,000. These represent 35% of
the total assets of the Group.
M-FZZH=A=+—H BHFREEHMEEY
FE A 2 R DR A8 i 5 IR T A £92,779,411,0001 TT
(FIBRTE 15 s 18 2 s 1R 35 49 334,097,000%:7C)
i R E AR Z35%

Management assessed the provision for ECL of accounts
receivable from margin clients based on various inputs
such as loan-to-value percentage, default rate provided
by credit rating agency or other relevant information
together with forward-looking analysis.
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We considered this matter to be a key audit matter due
to the significance of the balance and the significant
judgement in determining ECL on the accounts
receivable from margin clients.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
AERHMNBETNAEEBRERSE

Our procedures, among others, included:

ARG 2 FE 7 (BRI ABTE P Ah) fL 45

e considering the relevance and reasonableness of
method adopted and key assumptions over the ECL
assessment, and the relevance and accuracy of the
source data used in the assessment;

25 i T A5 5 TR A R R A Y ik B B R
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e evaluating the credit risk management process
including the process for identification of impaired
accounts receivable from margin clients and the
measurement of the loss allowance;

Al LB BRAR o B A A (A AR
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D checking, on a sample basis, the existence and
accuracy of the recoverable amount of the securities
collateral, to supporting documents and with
reference to closing market price;
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e comparing, on a sample basis, the recoverable
amount of the securities collateral with the accounts
receivable from each individual margin clients to
determine whether there was any shortfall; and
% 6 5 SR i 2 AT i ] 45 R BRI R i £ R
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e assessing the sufficiency of the loss allowance
recognised with respect to the above shortfall, after
taking into account other factors such as credit
worthiness, past collection history and repayment
subsequent to reporting period.

TE7% B8 - WORRCER o & 4% 2 18 kA% -
Rl L 20 R e R R e R e R



%8 3L 1% 25 B 3 &

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s 2022 annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with

Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the HKCO, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

,
As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.
e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements — continued

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group

to cease to continue as a going concern.

D Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obrain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken

to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements — continued

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and
regulation preclude public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benetits of such communication.
gh the publ benefits of such

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 June 2022

The engagement director on the audit resulting in chis

independent auditor’s report is:

Fong Chin Lung
Practising Certificate Number: P07321

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

2022 2021
—_E2- TR T A
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
R 51 FERT T

Revenue from contracts with customers 75 # B4 15 e o YE I 55 15%%

within HKFRS 15 #ENZEF AL 7 64,427 69,144
Revenue from other sources HAth 2 P52 i % 7 28,083 28,354
Interest revenue calculated using the i & B A BB 2

effective interest method Bk 28 7 348,565 405,118
Revenue &= 441,075 502,616
Other operating income HoAth 2 3 i A 9 13,415 11,262
Other gains and losses, net H A e % K e 18 VR AR 10 (18,349) (28,119)
Depreciation expenses P8 B 32 18 (23,893) (18,658)
Commission expenses EA B3 (12,678) (12,902)
Provision of net impairment loss on R WA B T 2 Y (L M 18 Y AL T A

accounts receivable 6 (130,076) (55,703)
Provision of net impairment loss on S Ath, B A K T 2 (L e 4815 AR

other receivables B A 6 (12,933) -
Provision of net impairment loss on BRI B 2 I N 1R T AR

loans and advances i 6 (29,580) (11,100)
Reversal (Provision) of net impairment 8 SO RE A HoA 2 T U £5 2

loss on debt investment measured R E ([ 58 4% A S(E T

at fair value through other )\,Hﬂﬁéﬁ'{ﬁfﬁﬂ Z VAR

comprehensive income 8V AR A ) (S

(“Mandatory FVOCI”) 6 1,989 (6,300)
Staff costs B T4 11 (29,769) (27,320)
Finance costs Bl & R A 12 (1,753) (4,953)
Other expenses HoAt BA 32 (40,908) (42,281)
Profit before taxation AR A 13 156,540 306,542
Income tax expense JIT A5 F B 5 15 (60,968) (58,556)
Profit for the year AEEER 95,572 247,986
Other comprehensive income Ht2mEW = ()

(expense)
Items that are reclassified or may be {fﬁ%‘f \;(*ﬁj@ 7] FE 7 2

reclassified subsequently to profit or loss FRm
Exchange difference arising on @ﬁ@ﬁf%?@?ﬁiz T b0 2 %A

translation of foreign operations (9,124) 24,317
Fair value loss on Mandatory FVOCI 8 IFF 5558 /3 8 45 48 2 2 7 1l

reclassified to profit or loss upon F2 5 S AR wH A H A A T i 4R

disposal 2N e E R (683) (1,177)
Fair value (loss) gain on Mandatory 5 1l 452 > SR A R A At A T Ui

FVOCI g < A B (B R) dids (53,067) 21,792
Deferred tax arising on revaluation of — F& i 5 il 4% /A 72 {H 51 A FHAth

Mandatory FVOCI 2 THT A A 2 A 22 0 S A O 36 8,869 (3,401)
Items that will not be reclassified NEFEH S EE w2 HH

to profit or loss
Revaluation surplus of properties SESRENE LT Y Evd -2

transfer from property and E IR FAR S

equipment to investment properties 18 336,505 =
Deficit on revaluation of properties Wy 2 A s 4l 18 (14,351) (2,263)
Deferred tax arising on revaluation Wy =€ E A A A 2 R AE B TH

of properties 36 2,368 3%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

2022 2021
—E_-= =G —%E
Notes HK$’000 HK$’0(E)
R 5E FExT T
Total other comprehensive income AEEHEMETEWREEE
for the year 270,517 39,641
Total comprehensive income AFEERHWZAHE
for the year 366,089 287,627
Profit for the year attributable to: DLTALTEEREERER :
Owners of the Company ZN/NIE: XN 60,185 189,640
Non-controlling interests IE H22 I A £ 35,387 58,346
95,572 247,986
Total comprehensive income UTALTESZEKNSEALE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company AN A N 330,689 228,913
Non-controlling interests IF ¥ A HE 25 35,400 58,714
366,089 287,627
HK cents HK cents
AL Al
Earnings per share BREF
Basic FA 17 0.62 1.96
Diluted P v 17 N/ATEH 1.96

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZE-_—_F=A=+—H
At 31 March 2022

2022 2021
—E_-__ TR A
Notes HK$’000 HK$’O(L0
i 2 FH7 T
Non-current assets B ﬁ E
Property and equipment IE & L] 18 515,173 617,182
Investment properties HEWE 19 836,405 851,849
Intangible assets Y & 20 8,512 8,963
Goodwill R 2 21 17,441 17,441
Other assets HoAh & 23 5,621 7,046
Deposits paid for acquisition Wi ) 2E T st 2 E A 4
of property and equipment 27 - 25,136
Deferred tax assets U SiE B A 36 12,939 1,692
Loans and advances S OE T 24 9,428 90,443
Investments w& 26 201,512 177,521
1,607,031 1,797,273
Current assets REBEE
Accounts receivable JE Wi R TE 25 2,826,396 3,655,082
Loans and advances B S AR 24 387,236 416,906
Prepayments, deposits and AT RIE ~ Hed K
other receivables Al JRE A R TR 27 47,725 48,330
Tax recoverable AT i =] A I 15,123 2,318
Investments & 26 238,196 375,986
Bank balances — client accounts WATH B — B FIRF 28 480,897 656,240
Bank balances — general accounts AT R — — AR
and cash Ko B 4 29 1,835,239 658,914
5,830,812 5,813,776
Assets classified as held for sale DB FRE R EE 30 433,218 —
6,264,030 5,813,776
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable JRE A M T 31 517,124 695,799
Accrued charges and other payables JESTE ) K ECAth JFE A B TE 33 9,019 8,787
Amounts due to non-controlling R I i e R I
shareholders 32 30,257 30,257
Deposits received for disposal H B — [H] B 2 m) 2 B i
of a subsidiary 30 126,000 -
Tax payable JE A B IH 140,753 150,722
Lease liabilities HE A& 34 377 1,163
Bank borrowings AT EE 35 94,553 -
918,083 886,728
Liabilities associated with assets HAME AR E R EEEARZ
classified as held for sale H1E 30 4,215 =
922,298 886,728
Net current assets REBEEFE 5,341,732 4,927,048
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 6,948,763 6,724,321
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZE-_—_F#=A=+—H
At 31 March 2022

2022 2021
—E-= EEES R
Notes HK$’000 HK$’O(LO
Bt FET T T
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities THE & E 34 - 377
Deferred tax liabilities 7 SiE B JH AR 36 4,010 8,185
4,010 8,562
NET ASSETS EEFH 6,944,753 6,715,759
Capital and reserves EXKfHEE
Share capital AR 37 966,270 966,270
Reserves 5t 4,785,269 4,642,795
Equity attributable to owners ARBEEAEIEER
of the Company 5,751,539 5,609,065
Non-controlling interests FFERER 47 1,193,214 1,106,694
TOTAL EQUITY BmER 6,944,753 6,715,759

The consolidated financial statements on pages 61 to 211 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
28 June 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Hung Hon Man
HEX
Director

#HH

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE

FOIHEF2DNHEZHEA B R EHES &
N E T ENA A CH M R RET
B Wl FHE RN EEE

Cham Wai Ho, Anthony
BE R
Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
——F=A=t+—HIEEFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

HEZ

KNAREREARS
Tnvestments
Property  revaluation Share Non-
Share Share Special  revaluation feserve option  Translation ~ Retained controlling
apital  premium feserve teserve  (recycling) feserve feserve profits Total interests Total
REEfR
E fif  BRE
R BBEE GHEE  EfEE  (TER) fE EREE REEY BE FERES L
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
if:1 Tt Tt FEr T TR T T T TEx T TEx
(note i) (note ii) (note iii) (note iv) (note 38) (note v)
W) R R (R (BB (K
Ac 1 April 2020 RoZ-ZENA-H 966,27 2,953,199 199,147 17,55 (8,682) 8,776 (27,600 1398756 5467119 108742 6,548,861
Profit for the year REEEH - - - - - - - 189,640 189,640 58,346 247,986
Other comprehensive income (expense) Eth2E4E (B)
Items that are reclasified or may be rclusified - A EHAFATHER
subsequently to proft or o Ve EY T T
- Exchange difference arising on -BEENERELE Y
translation of foreign operations Ef£H = = = - - - U317 - U317 - U317
- Fair value loss on Mandatory FVOCI -HENEREEER
reclassified to profit or oss upon LEHEAREA
disposal AamlEz Anl
i - - - - - - - -
- Fair value gain on Mandatory FVOCL—— ~ Bl A 3 A S
E3iliecvai NiLe - - - - 21,792 - - - 21,792 - 21,792
- Deferted tax arising on revaluarion of ~ ~ B fiEMEAREHA
Mandatory FVOCI HeAEREREL
BitnA 3 - - - - B - - - By - By
Tems that will ot b recasified o profis o FEEH A ZERLEH
s
- (Deficit) Surplus on revaluation ~WETL (B Rk
of properties - - - (2,704) - - - - (2,704) 441 (2,203)
- Deferred tax arising on revaluation -WETfEL ER
of properties iR 36 - - - 446 - - - - 446 (73) 3N
Total other comprehensive income Efb2ENE (HR)
(expense) a5 - - - (2,058) 17,214 - U317 - 39,73 368 39,641
Total comprehensive income (expense) REERENE (BR)
for the year EL - - - (38 17 - M ISE0 18913 T4 28760
Transactions with equity holders SAREREAZRS
Contributions and distributions HERAE
- Dividends paid to owners -MEFAREZRE 16 - - - - - - S (86064 (86,969 - (8664)
- Dividends paid to non-controlling - EMEA AR
interests of a non-wholly owned RS2 RE
subsidiary - - - - - - - = = (33,765) (33,765)
- - - - B o - (86964 (86964 (33765  (120,729)
Changes in ownership nierests #ifERRY
- Cancellaion of share option ~ IR 38 - - - - = (8,776) - 8,776 - - -
- Acquisicion of non-controlling interests ~ —CEE— B4 2
in a subsidiary FeERER - - - - = = - () ) 3 5
. . . - - (8776) - 8773 6) 3 i
At 31 March 2021 R-E--£=f=1-R 966,270 2,953,199 159,147 14997 8,932 - (3,285 1510205 5,609,065 1,106,694 6,715,759
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REREEEER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE-_ZT-__"F#=FA=+—HIFEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KAERRREARG
Lnvestments
Property  revaluation Non-
Share Share Special  revaluation reserve  Translation Retained controlling
capital premium feserve teserve  (recycling) feserve profits Total interests Total
REER
S i
R&  RH#EE  KRRE  EMEE  (TER)  EXRE  REEA BF FERES L
Notes HK$'000 HK§ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[if:1 T T T T T T Tt T T T
(note i) (note ii) (note i) (note iv) (note v)
(k) (Wiki)  (Hki) (it (ko
A1 April 2021 R-Z--EWA-A 966,270 2,953,199 159,147 14997 8,531 (3,285) 1,510,205 5,609,065 1,106,694 6,715,759
Profic for the year HAERRA - - = = = = 60,185 60,185 35,387 95,572
Other comprehensive income (expense) 22 ENE ()
Irems that are reclasified or may be HEREFANATREN
reclasified subsequently o profit or lss HHERR A
- Exchange difference arising on -BRINERREL
wanslacion of foreign operarions ERiER = = = = = (9,124) = 0129 = (0129
- Fair value loss on Mandatory FVOCL -~ ERFEHAMER R &
teclasified to profit or loss upon ZEHELETA
disposal AAEREZAR
(i - - - - (683) - - (683) - (683)
- Fair value loss on Mandarory FVOCL — ~ AR BRI AR
REWEZ AN
Ef - - - - 0) - - ) - (56)
- Deferred tax arising on revaluation of ~ —EfFEHEAREA
Mandatory FVOCI AlbmidrEts
30 3 - - - - 8869 - - 8869 - 8869
Ttems that will ot be reclsifid 1o profit o REEHAGEH G 2BH
oss
- Revaluation surplus of properties -DEREREER
transfer from property and RENENE( RS
equipment to investment properties - - - 336,505 - - - 336,505 - 336,505
- (Deficit) Surplus on revaluation of -WEE (B R
properties - - - (14,367) - - - (14367) 16 (14351)
- Deferred tax arising on revaluation of ~ — WEERELZ
propertes EERA 36 - - - 237 - - - 2971 ) 2368
Total other comprehensive income Et2ENE (BX) 88
(expense) - - - 324,509 (44,881) (9,124) - 270,504 13 270517
Total comprehensive income (expense) ~ AFE2EUE (%)
for the year ] - - - 324509 (4881) (9,124 60,185 330,689 35,400 366,089
Transactions with equity holders SREBEALRS
Contributions and distributions HERAE
- Dividends peid to owners RS2 IS 16 s : - = - - (96,627 (96,627) - (96,627)
- Dividends paid to non-controlling —WERENELA
interests of a non-wholly owned FHRERRE
subsidiary Va3 - - - - - - - - (40518) (40,518)
) B _ . | S o) (sl (374)
Changes in ownership inserests REEELRY
- Acquisition of non-controling ~EIBARZ FER
interests in subsidiaries 45 4 = - = - - - (91,588) (91,588) 91,588 -
- Acquisition of a non-wholly owned -l HEZENE
subsidiary A N 5 L N 5 _ _ _ 50 50
- - - - - - (91,588) 91,588) 91,638 50
At 31 March 2022 RZBZZE=A=1-R 966,270 2,953,199 159,147 339,506 (36,349) (12409 1382175 5,751,539 1,193,214 6,944,753

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

Share premium represents the excess of the net proceeds or
consideration from issuance of the Company’s shares over their par
value.

Under the Companies Act (as revised) of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium of the Company is available for distribution
or paying dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of
its: Memorandum and Articles of Association and provided that
immediately following the distribution of dividends, the Company
is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

The special reserve of the Group represents the following:

As set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 24 May 2002,
a group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) was completed on
16 May 2002, which principally involved the exchange of shares
of the Company with all the issued share capital of Get Nice
Incorporated (“GN Incorporated”). An amount of approximately
HK$123,337,000 represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the subsidiaries together with the net book
value of a subordinated loan capitalised at the date on which they
were acquired by the Company and the nominal amount of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the
Reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares, as
well as the difference between the consolidated shareholders” funds
of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of the GN
Incorporated’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the
Reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares.

As set out in the prospectus of Get Nice Financial Group Limited
(“GNFG”), a subsidiary of the Company, dated 24 March 2016
(the “Prospectus”), sharcholders of the Company would be entitled
to one share of GNFG for every 40 shares of the Company held
on the Record Date (as defined in the Prospectus). An amount of
approximately HK$35,810,000 represents the difference between
the proportionate share of the interest in GNFG and the net assets
value on Record Date in relation to the distribution in specie
arising from the listing of the shares of GNFG on 8 April 2016.

Property revaluation reserve deals with revaluation adjustments of
property and equipment in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Investment revaluation reserve (recycling) represents the cumulative
net changes in the fair value of Mandatory FVOCI, if any, at the
end of the reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted.

Translation reserve of the Group comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from translation of the financial statements
of the Group’s subsidiaries. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies as set out in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

BT

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

e 03 v 1 B A R R AT AR 2 R B4 2 BT 45 3K
LR R PR BN e o

AR P S BB AR (RBFT) » AXRZ
JBe A9 ¥ 55 R T e TR A4 Ak P A A A )
Z ARSI TR BRI o e B BE RS 2
URA% > ASON R RES AR H O e R R
2 F WA .

AL 2 R A AR LT 4500

AARA T A —EE AR
HeBBERF#E —HEBEAH ((H
MHER_FF_FAHA+ANHZER
A B W B AAS 2 A R S Get Nice
Incorporated ([ GN Incorporated ]) Z 2 #E
BEATIBA - #9123,337,000 7T Z SCE LR
WA Je > 0 R T R B — AR Jo Ak 2 IR T
T (DR AR Al & B EAL) > B
AN AR AL T B Ay b TR AT A A
WA S T AT 2 0 (L 2 [ R 22 > AR
o 5 S Y A 2 R 2 AR A BORE B > LGN
Incorporated 7 25 2 7] e 3 b i Aip #E AT # 41
B3 2 WA S T 8 A 2 S T (L H) 22 8 o

R AR 2N D B TR N D & A 4 A2 1 AT BR A
Al (&g am) B8 A - —NE=H
T HZ R (TR ) Bri
AR ) B HORE A RE A RO B (G 26 LR
AR ) FE A BEA0 LA LS I RE 0 M 0 — R 4%
W4 Y © %935,810,0008% 76 2 AT 3%
T &l 0 4 T 2 ME 3R 2 HEAG L BR &S I 4
R Y —F—NENMANE EhiEE
W2 URAH B RO RO BE B A IR E 2 M
FEHH o

9 5 A ol A AR A 3 B 5 R MR 2 T R
2wt BUOR i ) 36 K st < BAG R -

0 A A (T ) i R A R T
AR R NN RN § T a/A K i3
A () > 3% IR BT R B9 R EOR
B o

A ) 2 W S £ 6 4 DR 40 A 4R [ )
NE 2 PR ER R E A BT M L o K
MR AR & P 5 BRI sk 2 07 R 2 B sk
SR i P o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE-_ZT-__"F#=FA=+—HIFEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

2022 2021
—ZE-= B4
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
B 3 FExT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXEK
Profit before taxation o AT Y62 A1 156,540 306,542
Adjustments for: e
Depreciation expenses 3785 BH 52 18 23,893 18,658
Bad debt recovery from loans and g I R R GRS
advances 10 (180) -
Write-off of accounts receivable B Wi HE TE — 193
Provision of net impairment loss on JREE i B T 2 (RS 1
accounts receivable AR 6 130,076 55,703
Provision of net impairment loss on BB Z W AE R
loans and advances R A 6 29,580 11,100
(Reversal) Provision of net impairment 58 il #% 2% 72 {E 71 A HAth
loss on Mandatory FVOCI 2 T A £ 2 ok (EL s 48 1 A
(4% [l ) 43t 6 (1,989) 6,300
Provision of net impairment loss on A R i R T 2 U (E S 1R
other receivables T RE 6 12,933 -
Fair value changes on investment ECS L7/ E PN -EL ]
properties 19 21,457 30,093
Fair value changes on financial assets at e s FeEFE A 2
FVPL & A EE A R E A E) 10 6,337 7,196
Gain on disposal of Mandatory FVOCI H & 5 il #% /A e {HFFA
H A 4 TR AR 2 U AR 10 (936) (30)
Gain on disposal/redemption of A A AR A
financial assets at FVPL B2 SMEE 2 I 10 (4,192) (7,067)
Gain on disposal of property and B W) 3 R 2 I A
equipment 10 (950) -
Gain on disposal of loans and advances 5 £ 3K K ¥R 2 W 45 10 (1,848) -
Write off of intangible assets f 8 BT & A 20 451 -
Finance costs Pl AR 12 1,753 4,953
Interest income FLE WA (71,549) (111,361)
Dividend income B Bl A 9 (2,632) (1,233)
Operating cash flows before movements & % & 4 5 B fij 2
in working capital BEH SN e 298,744 321,047
Changes in working capital BEEEEE)
Other assets HoAh & 1,425 (2,474)
Accounts receivable JE Wi TR T 698,610 (103,513)
Loans and advances K N ERGR 59,633 170,764
Prepayments, deposits and other TAATRIE ~
receivables e At JE Wi 3 T 14,931 11,424
Bank balances — client accounts WATEHEGR -FFIRP 175,343 (199,599)
Accounts payable JRE A B TH (178,675) 202,239
Accrued charges and other payables JRE w2 P R A R A 3R I 235 436
Cash generated from operations KB BT R B4 1,070,246 400,324
Interest income received EALEINSY PN 66,417 109,955
Interest paid on clients’ accounts EFEFZ B8 B (121) (1,827)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid B A5 A s R A5 B (83,767) (38,299)
Overseas tax paid B A5 A B TE (1,781) (881)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING REXBMBERSE
ACTIVITIES 1,050,994 469,272

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

2022 2021
—ZE-= TR T AR
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Wit FERT T#TT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREXK
Deposits paid for acquisition of W Ff ) 2 e R M
property and equipment oA - (25,136)
Deposit received for disposal of a A — W B A R 2
subsidiary e Y Fi < 30 126,000 —
Purchase of financial assets at FVPL MR RN R AR 2
Sz il 6L (130,745) (141,957)
Purchase of Mandatory FVOCI Hie B o 4% > FofE w N H A
& (46,603) (63,323)
Proceeds from disposal of Mandatory i % 5 il 4% /A /o {H 51 A HoAth
FVOCI AT i g 2 B AR SOH 134,719 75,826
Proceeds from redemption of financial —[i# [7] % /8 72 {HFF A B 45 2
asset at FVPL S BB 2 B ?k 80,000 71,838
Proceeds from disposal of financial asset £ 1% 2 A (H FH A I8 #3
at FVPL imﬂﬁﬁz%ﬁ%%ﬁ 25,182 29,272
Proceeds from disposal of loans and H B R R M AR 2 BT A5 I
advances 1,000 =
Purchase of property and equipment =L EYS &L (11,837) (3,117)
Purchase of investment properties e EY) * 19 (9,156) (9,573)
Net cash flows arising from acquisition i Jf§ i} J& 2 7] 2 4= 2
of subsidiaries B4 i = A - (525,442)
Proceeds from disposal of property and &4 %& B 2
equipment B 4% t’X 10 950 -
Dividend received C i 2 2,632 1,233
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REXEBMSE (FAA)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES ZEAE 172,142 (590,379)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES B & XK
Interest paid A FLE 12 (1,612) (3,098)
Dividends paid 2T E 16 (96,627) (86,964)
Dividends paid to non-controlling e A — Ik 2= E K E A
interests of a non-wholly owned FE P R 25 2 IR
subsidiary (40,518) (33,765)
Proceeds from bank borrowings Fi/,é:}’ﬁﬁgf E 41 649,608 8,086,789
Repayment of bank borrowings 1,\ AR AT A 41 (555,055) (8,086,789)
Lease payment GERERE 34 (1,183) (752)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING B EXKFAZ
ACTIVITIES FRE 39 (45,387) (124,579)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and HeREBESEEER
cash equivalents F A0 GRL2) 1,177,749 (245,686)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, 4 [ 2 55 &) 2 52 2885 41
net (1,422) (575)
Cash and cash equivalents at the BEHORERAS
beginning of the reporting period £EIEE 658,914 905,175
Cash and cash equivalents at theend HEHLKRERRE
of the reporting period %£{EEA 1,835,241 658,914
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mAERERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

2022 2021
—ZE-= TR T 4R
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT Tt
Analysis of the balances of cashand RERFEEZEHEHEH
cash equivalents EEA DA
Cash and cash equivalent e hBE4&%EEA 1,835,241 658,914
Less: Bank balances — general accounts  J# : I A4 2 £ 4E h &
and cash included in the assets 2GR RITE B
transferred as held for sale —— RS M4 (2) =
Bank balances — general accounts and GBEMBERRERFY 2
cash as stated in the consolidated RITESB - —RERF
statement of financial position kR& 1,835,239 658,914

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Get Nice Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was

incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Act (as revised) of the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company limited by shares and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its immediate and ultimate holding company
is Honeylink Agents Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands with limited liability of which
the entire share capital is beneficially owned by Mr. Hung
Hon Man, who is also a director of the Company. The
Company’s registered office is located at Second Floor,
Century Yard, Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1103, Cayman Islands and its principal place
of business is changed from 10th Floor, Cosco Tower,
Grand Millennium Plaza, 183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong
Kong to Ground Floor to 3rd Floor, Cosco Tower, Grand
Millennium Plaza, 183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
with effect from 3 May 2021.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set

out in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the

functional currency of the Company.

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022
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r B B 75 8 SR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-__"F#=FA=+—HIFEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (the “HKCO”). The consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand,

unless otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted
in the 2021 consolidated financial statements except for
the adoption of the following new/revised HKFRSs that are

relevant to the Group and effective from the current year.

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 16: Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions Beyond 30 June 2021

The amendments exempt lessces from having to consider
individual lease contracts to determine whether rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
covid-19 pandemic are lease modifications and allow lessees
to account for such rent concessions as if they were not
lease modifications. It applies to covid-19-related rent
concessions that reduce lease payments due on or before 30

June 2022. The amendments do not affect lessors.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
continued
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — continued

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRSs 4, 7, 9 and 16: Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect financial
reporting when a company replaces the old interest rate
benchmark with an alternative benchmark rate as a result
of the interest rate benchmark reform (the “Reform”). The
amendments complement those issued in November 2019

and relate to:

e changes to contractual cash flows — a company will
not have to derecognise or adjust the carrying amount
of financial instruments for changes required by the
Reform, but will instead update the effective interest
rate to reflect the change to the alternative benchmark

rate;

*  hedge accounting — a company will not have to
discontinue its hedge accounting solely because it
makes changes required by the Reform, if the hedge

meets other hedge accounting criteria; and

e disclosures — a company will be required to disclose
information about new risks arising from the Reform
and how it manages the transition to alternative

benchmark rates.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

s
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r B B 75 8 SR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

28

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued
Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except
for buildings, investment properties and investments, which
are measured at revalued amounts or fair value, as explained

in the accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as that of the Company using

consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balance, transactions, income and expenses
and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full upon consolidation.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control and continue to be

consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and within
equity in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The non-controlling interests in the acquiree, that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in event of
liquidation, are measured initially either at fair value or at
the present ownership instruments’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. This choice of measurement basis is made on an

acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Basis of consolidation — continued

Allocation of rotal comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests on the basis of existing
ownership interests and the possible exercise of conversion
of potential voting rights is not considered. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to the owners of the
Company and the existing non-controlling interests even if
this results in the existing non-controlling interests having a

deficit balance.

Chﬂnge: in awnem/aip interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly

in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest determined at the
date when control is lost and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interests at the date when control
is lost. The amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the disposed subsidiary
are accounted for on the same basis as would be required
if the parent had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Any investment retained in the former subsidiary
and any amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are
accounted for as a financial asset, associate, joint venture or

others as appropriate from the date when control is lost.

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022
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r B B 75 8 SR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-__"F#=FA=+—HIFEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

28

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is measured
at the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree (if applicable)
and the fair value of any previously held equity interest
in the acquiree over the acquisition date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed of the

acquired business.

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or
loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating

units. An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed.

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition date
amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed of the acquired business over the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree (if applicable) and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree, if any,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as an income from bargain purchase. Any resulting gain
or loss arising from remeasuring the previously held equity
interests in the acquiree at the acquisition-date fair value is
recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive income,

as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued
Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal
group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition. Management must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification. Non-current assets (and disposal groups)
classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their

previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group reassesses whether it
controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that

there are changes to one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position which
is presented in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. The carrying amount
of the investments is reduced to its recoverable amount
on an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the

Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

s
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-__"F#=FA=+—HIFEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

28

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued
Property and equipment

Property and equipment, other than buildings, are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use. Repairs and maintenance are charged to

profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Buildings are stated at revalued amount, being the fair value
at the date of valuation less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Fair value is determined
by independent valuations which are performed annually.
Increases in valuation are credited to the property revaluation
reserve. Decreases in valuation are first offset against
increases on earlier valuations in respect of the same asset
and are thereafter charged to profit or loss. Any subsequent
increases are credited to profit or loss up to the amount
previously charged and thereafter to property revaluation

reserve.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less

accumulated impairment losses of property and equipment

over their estimated useful lives from the date on which

they are available for use and after taking into account their

estimated residual values, using the straight-line method, at

the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land Shorter of the term of the lease,
or 25 years

Buildings Shorter of the term of the lease,
or 25 years

Leasehold improvements ~ Shorter of the term of the lease,

or 5 to 10 years

Motor vehicles and yacht 4 to 10 years
Office equipment 3 to 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 to 7 years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
continued
Property and equipment — continued

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in

the year in which the item is derecognised.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties that are held by owner
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include properties held for a currently undetermined future
use and properties that are held under operating lease,
which satisfy the definition of investment property and

carry at fair value.

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the end of
the reporting period. Any gain or loss arising from a change

in fair value is recognised in profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is

derecognised.

Intangible assets

Trading rights

Trading rights confer eligibility on the Group to trade
on the Stock Exchange. The trading rights have no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the Group
can use to generate cash flows. As a result, the trading
rights are considered by the management of the Group
as having indefinite useful lives because they are expected
to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The
trading rights will not be amortised until its useful life is
determined to be finite. They will be tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that they may

be impaired.
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BE-_ZT-__"F#=FA=+—HIFEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

28

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Intangible assets — continued

Trading rights — continued

The useful life of the trading rights is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues
to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is account for on a

prospective basis.

Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite useful life are stated at
costs less any impairment losses. Impairments are reviewed
annually or when there are any indications that the club

memberships have suffered impairment loss.

Financial instruments
Financial assets
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain

control of the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group

continues to recognise the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group recognises the financial
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and an

associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and measurement

Financial assets (except for accounts receivable without
a significant financing component within HKFRS 15)
are initially recognised at their fair value plus, in the
case of financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.
Such accounts receivable are initially measured at their

transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (ii) Mandatory FVOCI; (iii)
equity investment measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“Designated FVOCI”) or (iv)
measured at FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing them, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first
day of the first annual reporting period following the

change in the business model.

1) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows; and

(ii) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-__"F#=FA=+—HIFEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and measurement — continued

)

2)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost — continued

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising from
impairment, derecognition or through the amortisation

process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include
accounts receivable, loans and advances, deposits and
other receivables, bank balances — client accounts and

bank balances — general accounts and cash.

Mandarory FVOCI
A financial asset is measured at Mandatory FVOCI if

both of the following conditions are met and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows and for sale; and

(ii) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The financial asset is subsequently measured at fair
value. Interest calculated using the effective interest
method, impairment gains or losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss. Other gains or losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income until the financial asset is
derecognised. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or

loss as a reclassification adjustment.

The Group’s financial assets at Mandatory FVOCI

include quoted debt securities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and measurement — continued

3)

Financial assets at FVPL

These investments include financial assets that
are not measured at amortised cost or FVOCI,
including financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at
FVPL, financial assets resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement in a business combination
to which HKFRS 3 applies and financial assets that are
otherwise required to be measured at FVPL. They are
carried at fair value, with any resultant gain and loss
recognised in profit or loss, which does not include
any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.
Dividend or interest income is presented separately

from fair value gain or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling it

in the near term;

(ii) part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking on initial recognition;

or

(iii) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee
contract or not a designated and effective hedging

instrument.

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
as at FVPL only if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on

different bases.

The Group’s financial assets mandatorily measured at
FVPL include listed equity securities, payment for life
insurance policy, unlisted convertible notes, unlisted
debt securities and unlisted equity securities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-__"F#=FA=+—HIFEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

28

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when
the liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or

expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are direct attributable to the issue of

the financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payable,
other payables and amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders. All financial liabilities are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method, unless the effect of
discounting would be insignificant, in which case they are

stated at cost.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL on financial
assets that are measured at amortised cost, Mandatory
FVOCI to which the impairment requirements apply
in accordance with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific
treatments as detailed below, at each reporting date, the
Group measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at
an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on
that financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an

amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

Financial instruments — continued
Impairment of financial assets — continued
Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e.
the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life

of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due
to an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the

entity expects to receive.

Lifecime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12

months after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the following one or

more shared credit risk characteristics:
(i) past due information

(ii) nature of instrument

(iii) nature of collateral

(iv) industry of debtors

(v) geographical location of debrtors
(vi) external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial instrument, except in the
case of Mandatory FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair

value reserve (recycling).
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E-E-_—FE=-A=+—HItFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
continued
Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that the Group may not
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full if
the financial instrument that meets any of the following
criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debror is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group);
or

(ii) there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
In parcicular, the following information is taken into
account in the assessment:

e the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or
interest on the due dates;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating

(if available);

* an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk — continued

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30

days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the

reporting date.

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk

if:
(a) it has a low risk of default;

(b) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its

contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(c) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash

flow obligations.

As detailed in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements, the financial instruments determined to have
low credit risk includes bank balances — general accounts

and certain debt securities.
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BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Simplified approach of ECL

For accounts receivable other than margin clients and loans

and advances without a significant financing component,

the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL.

The Group recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime

ECL at each reporting date and has established a provision

matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,

adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors

and the economic environment.

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events

that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash

flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that

a financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data

about the following events:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower.

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event.

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider.

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.

the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a

deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
continued

Financial instruments — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount based on historical experience of recoveries
of similar assets. The Group expects no significant recovery
from the amount written off. However, financial assets
that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s procedures for recovery
of amounts due, taking into account legal advice if
appropriate. Any subsequent recovery is recognised in profit

or loss.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For classification
in the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
equivalents represent assets similar in nature to cash and

which are not restricted as to use.

Revenue recognition
Rental income

Rental income under operating leases is recognised when
the assets are let out and on the straight-line basis over the
lease term. Variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate are initially measured using the index or rate at
the commencement date and subsequently adjusted when
such index or rate changes. Such payments are recognised as
income on the straight-line basis over the lease term. Other
variable lease payments are recognised as income in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers those

payments occurs.
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BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued
Revenue recognition — continued
Dividend income

Dividend income from financial assets is recognised when
the Group’s rights to receive dividend is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably. Dividend income from
investments is recognised when the sharcholders™ rights to

receive payment have been established.

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group

is as follows:

(a) Asset management services
(b) Broking services

(c) Corporate finance services

Idmtzﬁmtion 0fpeiformance 0171igzzti0m

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods or
services promised in a contract with a customer and
identifies as a performance obligation each promise to

transfer to the customer ecither:

(a) agood or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that

is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same and that have the same pattern

of transfer to the customer.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued
Revenue recognition — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

— continued
Identification of performance obligations — continued

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct

if both of the following criteria are met:

(a) the customer can benefit from the good or service
either on its own or together with other resources that
are readily available to the customer (i.e. the good or

service is capable of being distinct); and

(b) the Group’s promise to transfer the good or service
to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good or service is distinct within the context of the

contract).

Timing afrevenm recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred

when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over
time and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria

is met:

(a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the

Group performs;

(b) the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer

controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.
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28

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
continued
Revenue recognition — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

— continued
Timing of revenue recognition — continued

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the promised
asset. In determining when the transfer of control occurs,
the Group considers the concept of control and such
indicators as legal title, physical possession, right to
payment, significant risks and rewards of ownership of the

asset, and customer acceptance.
Revenue is recognised on the following bases:

e Commission income for broking business is recorded

as income at a point in time on a trade date basis;

e Underwriting commission income, sub-underwriting
income, placing commission and sub-placing
commission are recognised as income at a point in
time in accordance with the terms of the underlying
agreement or deal mandate when relevant significant

act has been completed;

e Proof of funds commission and clearing and handling
fee income are recognised at a point in time when
the relevant transactions have been arranged or the

relevant services have been rendered; and

*  Advisory fee income and asset management fee income
are recognised over time when the relevant transactions
have been arranged or the relevant services have been

rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued
Revenue recognition — continued

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

— continued
Timing of revenue recognition — continued

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS 15,
provided the outcome of the performance obligation can
be reasonably measured, the Group applies the output
method (i.e. based on the direct measurements of the value
to the customer of the goods or services transferred to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract) to measure the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation
because the method provides a faithful depiction of the
Group’s performance and reliable information is available
to the Group to apply the method. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of the costs incurred until
such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the

performance obligation.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using
the effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or Mandatory FVOCI that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the assets while it is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount net of loss

allowance) in case of credit-impaired financial assets.
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Year ended 31 March 2022

28

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
continued
Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in the currency of HK$, which is

also the Company’s functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are recognised in
profit or loss except for those arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the gains or

losses are also recognised directly in equity.

The results and financial position of all the group entities
that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are translated

into the presentation currency as follows:

e Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at

the end of the reporting period.

*  Income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated at

average exchange rate and

e All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising from
a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net
investment in a foreign operation are recognised as a

separate component of equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
continued
Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property and
equipment, intangible assets and the Company’s
investments in subsidiaries may be impaired or impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may be
reduced. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated, based on the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash

flows independently (i.e. cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are

recognised as an expense in profit or loss immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as an

income in profit or loss immediately.

The accounting policy for recognition of the impairment
loss for goodwill is stated in the accounting policy for

goodwill in the earlier part of this note.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an

expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued
Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term
leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a
separate component are considered to be part of the total
consideration that is allocated to the separately identified

components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease

liability at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which

comprises:

(a) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease

liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date, less any lease incentives received;

(¢) any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are

incurred to produce inventories.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued
Leases — continued
As lessee — continued

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
the estimated useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless
the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the
Group by the end of the lease term or if the cost of the
right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise a
purchase option — in which case depreciation is provided
over the estimated useful life of the underlying asset) as
follows:

Office premises 2 years
The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the

commencement date of the contract.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise the following payments for the right
to use the underlying asset, if any, during the lease term

that are not paid at the commencement date:

(a) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),

less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a

rate;

(c) amounts expected to be payable under residual value

guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
ease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
1 t fl he Group g pt t

terminate the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-__"F#=FA=+—HIFEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued
Leases — continued
As lessee — continued

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable,

the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease

payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount
rate when there are changes to the lease payments arising
from a change in the lease term or the reassessment of
whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a

purchase option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original
discount rate when there is a change in the residual value
guarantee, the in-substance fixed lease payments or the
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
a rate (other than floating interest rate). In case of a change
in future lease payments resulting from a change in floating
interest rates, the Group remeasures the lease liability using

a revised discount rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced
to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement
of the lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining

amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued
Leases — continued
As lessor

The Group classifies each of its leases as either a finance
lease or an operating lease at the inception date of the
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset. All other leases are

classified as operating leases.

The Group accounts for each lease component within
a lease contract as a lease separately from non-lease
components of the contract. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on a

relative stand-alone price basis.

As lessor — operating lease

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment

requirements in HKFRS 9 to the operating lease receivables.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the

associated services are rendered by employees.

Retirement benefit costs

Payment to defined contribution retirement benefit scheme
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as expenses when employees have rendered service entitling

them to the contributions.
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BE-_ZT-__"F#=FA=+—HIFEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

28

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
continued

Employee benefits — continued

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
payments under the Employment Ordinance is the amounts
of future benefit that employees have earned in return
for their services in the current and prior periods. The
obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
method and discounted to its present value and after
deducting the fair value of any related assets, including

those retirement scheme benefits.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in

exchange for shares or rights over shares.

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period or is recognised as an expense in full at the grant
date when share options granted vest immediately, with a

corresponding increase in equity.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve

will be transferred to retained profits/accumulated losses.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at fair value of the goods
or services received, except where the fair value cannot be
reliably estimated, in which case they are measured at fair
value of the equity instruments granted. In all cases, the fair
value is measured at the date the Group obtains the goods

or the counterparty renders the services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued
Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the period as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arising from initial recognition
of goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at

the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and

credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investment in subsidiaries except where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

s
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income over the years necessary to match the
grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended
to compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair
value is credited to a deferred income account/recognised as
a deduction from the carrying amount of the relevant asset
and is released to profit or loss over the expected useful life

of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

The benefit of a government loan received at a below-market
rate of interest is treated as a government grant. The benefit
of the below-market rate of interest shall be measured as the
difference between the initial fair value of the loan and the

proceeds received.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued

Related parties — continued

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each holding
company, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is

related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are

also related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

holding company of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which

it is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group.

Year ended 31 March 2022
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BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

28

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
continued
Related parties — continued

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity

and include:
(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.

In definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes

subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s chief operating decision maker, who is
the Board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company, for
the purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and

geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the nature of
production processes, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material

may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRSS

At the date of authorisation of the consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/
revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and are not
yet effective for the current year, which the Group has not

early adopted.
Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use!
Amendments to HKAS 37 Cost of Fulfilling a Contract!"

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework!!!

Annual Improvements to 2018-2020 Cycle!"

HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current!?!

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies ™!

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting

Estimates®
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction®
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture!!

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

Bl The effective date to be determined

The Board does not anticipate that the adoption of these
new/revised HKFRSs in future periods will have any

material impact on the result of the Group.
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BE-_ZT-__"F#=FA=+—HIFEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements. They affect the
application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and
disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going basis
and are based on experience and relevant factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Where appropriate,
revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period of revision and future periods, in case the revision

also affects future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance
for financial assets at amortised cost including accounts
receivable, loans and advances, other receivables and
Mandatory FVOCI by using various inputs and
assumptions including risk of a default and expected
loss rate. The estimation involves high degree of
uncertainty which is based on the Group’s historical
information, recoverable amount of pledged properties and
securities collateral, past collection history of borrowers,
concentration risk of borrowers, the Group’s actual
loss experience, existing market conditions as well as
forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amount
of the financial assets at amortised cost and Mandatory
FVOCI. Details of the key assumption and inputs used in
estimating ECL are set out in note 6 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS - continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued
Loss allowance for ECL — continued

Fair value of investment properties/buildings at

revaluation

The fair value of building in revaluation model and
investment properties located in Hong Kong and the
United Kingdom was determined by independent firms
of professional valuers and/or by the directors of the
Company. The valuation performed was arrived at with
reference to recent market transaction prices at the
end of reporting period and/or market rental value for
similar properties at similar locations with total fair value
of investment properties and buildings approximately
HK$836,405,000 (2021: HK$851,849,000) and
HK$55,145,000 (2021: HK$91,305,000) at 31 March
2022 respectively. Favourable or unfavourable changes
to recent market prices would result in (i) changes in
the fair value of the Group’s investment properties and
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in profit or loss; and (ii) change in the revaluation
amount of the buildings of the Group and corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in other

comprehensive income.

Tax provision and tax losses

In year 2014, the hotel complex and certain assets related
to the hotel and entertainment operations (the “Assets”)
were disposed of, resulting in a gain on the disposal, and
realisation of fair value gains previously recognised in
respect of investment properties. The management has
made a tax provision in respect of these gains with the
assumptions that the proceeds from disposal and cost base
of the Assets has been approximately determined for the
purpose of calculating the gain on disposal for tax purposes.
In case where the local tax authority does not agree with
either the calculation of the cost base of the Assets or the
proceeds from disposal of the properties, recognition of
significant change in amounts of tax in the profit or loss

account may be required in the future.
7 q

4.
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BE-_ZT-__"F#=FA=+—HIFEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS - continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued
Tax provision and tax losses — continued

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of certain tax losses of
approximately HK$128,574,000 (2021: HK$143,096,000)
due to the majority of the balances are subject to further
approval by the local tax authority. In addition, the
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the
actual future profits generated are more than expected, a
material recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which
such recognition takes place.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Group consists of debt when applicable,
and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising bank borrowings and issued share capirtal
as disclosed in notes 35 and 37 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively and reserves as disclosed
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. The
management reviews the capital structure by considering
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. In view of this, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged throughout the year.

Certain group entities are regulated by the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”) and
are required to comply with the financial resources
requirements according to the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R”). The
Group’s regulated entities are subject to minimum paid-up
share capital requirements and liquid capital requirements
under the SF(FR)R. Management closely monitors, on a
daily basis, the liquid capital level of these entities to ensure
compliance with the minimum liquid capital requirements
under the SF(FR)R. The Group’s regulated entities have
complied with the capital requirements imposed by the
SE(FR)R throughout the years ended 31 March 2022 and
2021.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6. €I H

Categories of financial instruments LEL@TH
2022 2021
—_E2=-= |~ 22T s
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7 FExT T
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at FVPL 2y e Est AR 2
4 g E 319,352 295,934
Amortised cost iz 1 81 B A (a) 5,585,282 5,549,563
Mandatory FVOCI 98 il 4% A SRAEFEA
Ho At 2 1 i 25 120,356 257,573
Financial liabilities E@MmERE
Amortised cost A B Y AR (b) (650,781) (734,694)
Notes: [t =3

(a) Financial assets at amortised cost include accounts receivable,
loans and advances, deposits and other receivables (excluding
prepayments), bank balances — client accounts and bank

balances — general accounts and cash.

(b) Financial liabilities at amortised cost include accounts
payable, accrued charges and other payables (excluding
receipt in advance), amounts due to non-controlling

shareholders and bank borrowings.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
investments, accounts receivable, loans and advances,
deposits and other receivables, bank balances and cash,
accounts payable, other payables, amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders, deposits received for disposal
of a subsidiary and bank borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes to
the consolidated financial statements. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.
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Year ended 31 March 2022

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Market risk

Market risk can be described as the risk of change in fair
value of a financial instrument due to changes in interest

rates, equity prices or foreign currency exchange rates.
y Y

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate risk should the

need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The management considers that the Group’s exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk on variable-rate bank balances, as
a result of the change of market interest rate is insignificant
due to low interest rates on bank balances at the end of the
reporting period, thus no sensitivity analysis is prepared for

cash flow interest rate risk.

Other price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its

investments in listed equity securities. The directors of the
Company manage the exposure by closely monitoring the
portfolio of these financial instruments. The fair value of
these financial instruments will be affected either positively
or negatively, amongst others, by the changes in the
closing market prices of the relevant listed equity and debt

securities.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Market risk — continued
Other price risk — continued

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risks at the end of the reporting
period. If the prices of the respective listed equity
instruments had been 10% (2021: 10%) higher/lower, and
held other variables constant, the Group’s profit for the year
would increase/decrease by approximately HK$9,215,000
(2021: HK$9,785,000), as a result of changes in the fair

value of listed equity securities.

Currency risk

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
currency risk exposure is not significant as most of the
transactions and financial assets and liabilities of the group
entities are denominated in the functional currencies of
the respective entities and, in the case of Macau Pataca
(“MOP”) and United States dollars (“USD”), the exposures
are limited as MOP is pegged to HK$ and HKS$ is pegged
to USD. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis has been

presented on the currency risk.
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BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position, which is net of

impairment losses, represents the Group’s exposure to credit

risk.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties arises from
the carrying amounts of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

The Group exposes to credit risk, which is the risk that a
counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when
due. Impairment allowances are made for losses that are
expected at the end of the reporting period. Significant
changes in the economy or environment of a particular
industry segment could result in losses that are different
from those provided for at the end of the reporting
period. Management therefore carefully manages its
exposure to credit risk. The Group’s internal credit risk
grading assessment for financial assets, except for accounts
receivable under HKFRS 15, compiled as the following

categories:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued

Credit risk — continued

Internal credit Description ECL

rating treatment

Performing The balances that ~ 12-month
have not had a (Normal

significant increase  Credit
in credit risk since  Quality)
initial recognition

and 12-month

ECL will be

recognised

Underperforming ~ The balances that  Lifetime
have had a (Significant
significant increase  increase in
in credit risk since  Credit Risk)
initial recognition
and for which the
lifetime ECL will

be recognised

Not performing The balances that  Lifetime
have objective (Credit-
evidence of impaired)

impairment and
for which the
lifetime ECL will

be recognised

Write-off The balances that ~ Amount is
have evidence written off
indicating that
the debtor is in
severe financial
difficulty and the
Group has no
realistic prospect of

recovery

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022
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BE-_ZT-__"F#=FA=+—HIFEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk — continued
Accounts receivable from margin clients

The Group provides financing services only to recognised
and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
all these margin clients are subject to credit verification
procedures. The margin loans are secured by pledged
marketable securities and margin facilities are set to
ensure that certain proportion of the fair value of pledged
marketable securities of the individual margin clients is

higher than the corresponding outstanding loans.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 57% (2021:
68%) of the total accounts receivable from margin clients

was due from the Group’s ten largest margin clients.

No aging analysis is disclosed, as in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the aging analysis does not
give additional value in view of the nature of business of

securities margin financing.

The Group’s customer base consists of a wide range of
clients and the accounts receivable from margin clients
are categorised by common risk characteristics that are
representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts

due in accordance with the contractual terms.

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether there is
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
whether the financial asset is credit-impaired and the
amount of loss given default, the Group has taken into
account the credit quality of margin clients, the collateral
to accounts receivable balances ratio, amount of margin
shortfall of margin clients and pledged marketable securities
and adjusted for forward-looking factors that are specific
to the debtors and general economic conditions of the
financial industry, in estimating the probability of default of
these financial assets, as well as the loss upon default in each
case. There was no change in the estimation techniques or

methodology made during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk — continued
Accounts receivable from margin clients — continued

The Group has established a margin client credit risk
classification system and performs credit risk management
based on margin client classification in one of three
categories of internal credit rating. The information about
the ECL for the accounts receivable from margin clients
at the end of the reporting period is summarised below.
After considering the above factors, provision of net
impairment loss of approximately HK$130,076,000 (2021:
HK$55,703,000) was recognised during the year.

At 31 March 2022

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

tRMITHEH-—&
HERMEEAERKE &

EERR-&
ERRELEFRE &

AR B R E SR SRS
HARG > WARBRESEF 28 (5E
SHENERE B RS Hoh — ) AT
15 B0 BB B o A R R 2 B AR
i 4 % PR TE Y TE S B e 1R G R
WMUME - WHEE LAMNEEL > FRE
il 58 8 HL fes 18 1 B 18 1 49130,076,000
WIT (F = —4 : 55,703,0004 70) ©

R-B--_§=ZA=+—H

Gross Net
carrying Loss carrying
Internal credit rating Basis of ECL amount allowance amount
R EBE B RTEAR BHEEBFREXE HEREE BiERE FREE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FTERT TAERT TERT
Performing J& #J
— Ten largest margin clients 12-month 121f H
(including Mr. Hung Hon Man
and his close family members)
TREEEEF (AR E Sk
e BOE KRR 1,589,543 7,460 1,582,083
— Other margin clients 12-month 121 H
HARB &P 1,058,641 15,780 1,042,861
2,648,184 23,240 2,624,944
Underperforming & %1% Wl K AE Lifetime 4= 1 146,241 49,065 97,176
Not performing /A & %7 Lifetime 7= ] 319,083 261,792 57,291
3,113,508 334,097 2,779,411
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk — continued

Accounts receivable from margin clients — continued

6. $RITH-&
HERMEEAERKE &

FERR

— &

BUREEFEFRE &

At 31 March 2021 N _E _—HF=HA=+—H
Gross Net
carrying Loss carrying
Internal credit rating Basis of ECL amount allowance amount
RSN g T 5 B 18 2L v AR T (L s 18 48 A T AR 1 {H
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
T# T T#IT T#IT
Performing J& %)
— Ten largest margin clients 12-month 1218 H
(including Mr. Hung Hon Man
and his close family members)
TR SR (BLHE 3L S5t
R R RBENER) 2,478,290 11,639 2,466,651
— Other margin clients 12-month 121 J
HAbR & &% 998,030 4,674 993,356
3,476,320 16,313 3,460,007
Underperforming & #J1& DL K4 Lifetime 2 70,578 10,953 59,625
Not performing /A & %1 Lifetime 2= 264,406 176,755 87,651
3,811,304 204,021 3,607,283
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. ®WMIA-&
Financial risk management objectives and policies — MR ETEEERKE &
continued
Credit risk — continued EERK-&
Accounts receivable from margin clients — continued FEWRESEFRE &
At 31 March 2022, the Group recognised loss allowance of MW Z - HFE=H=+—H > &A%EH
approximately HK$334,097,000 (2021: HK$204,021,000) RE U R 38 4 % P IR JE B R e 1R B
on its accounts receivable from margin clients. The 1 %9334,097,0004 T (& = —4F ¢
movement in the loss allowance for accounts receivable 204,021,00047C) o N ERAEE S K
from margin clients during the year is summarised below. FURIE A s R B s B Rt F o
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-ZE-__F=A=+—HLEFE
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL
NBARAEREE HREEEEE
Performing Underperforming ot performing
EL BNERAE TE
Ten largest
margin clients
(including
Mr. Hung
Hon Man and
his close family Other
members)  margin clients Tota Total
tRRELEF
(BEAELLE Eft
REEFHAE)  RELEF it it
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn
At the beginning of the reporting period gL 6,458 9,855 16,313 10,953 176,755 204021
Increase in allowance, net REENTE 1,002 5925 6,927 38,112 85,037 130,076
Authe end of the reporting period RREBR 7,460 15,780 23,240 19,065 261,792 34097
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BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMIA-#&
Financial risk management objectives and policies — BERAREEEEREEX &
continued
Credit risk — continued FERR-&E
Accounts receivable from margin clients — continued EURRELEFRE &
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE_EZ - —HF=A=1+—HILFE
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL
DEATHREEER EHESGEER
Derforming Underperforming -~ Not performing
R RatdK TR
Ten largest
margin clents
(including
Mr. Hung
Hon Man and
his close family Other
members)  margin clents Toul Toul
TRRE2EF
(fEE Kty
REFRHME)  REEEF it 3t

HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
Tin Tin Tin Tin Tikn Tk

At the beginning ofthe reporing period Rk 781 8547 16408 780 124,088 148,318
Tncrease (Decrease) in allowance, net RIS A0 B8 3778 (3.873) (95) 3,131 52,667 55,703
Atthe end of the reportng period PR 11,639 4074 16313 10933 176,755 204,021
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk — continued
Accounts receivable from margin clients — continued

The following significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of the balances contributed to the increase in the

loss allowance during the year:

(i) Increase in shortfall portion of margin loans which
are not fully secured amounted to approximately
HK$337,850,000 (2021: HK$218,945,000); and

(i) Additional loss allowance for not performing
category of approximately HK$72,459,000 (2021:
HK$31,960,000) as a result of difficulties on

repayment by accounts receivable from margin clients.

The Group has pledged securities as collateral amounted to
approximately HK$41,307,000 (2021: HK$80,018,000)
in respect of the credit-impaired accounts receivable from

margin clients.

Loans and advances

Management has money lending policies in place and the
exposure to the credit risk is monitored on an ongoing
basis. The Group grants loans only to recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all
these borrowers are subject to credit verification procedures.
The credit verification procedures include assessment on
the credit quality of the customer based on the customer’s
financial position, past experience and other factors such as
security or collateral. Also, the Group has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is promptly

taken to recover overdue debts.

At 31 March 2022, the Group has concentration of credit
risk as 70% (2021: 60%) of total loans and advances was
due from the Group’s five largest borrowers, within the

money lending segment.
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BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022
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337,850,000% 70 (& = — 4 ¢
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BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk — continued
Loans and advances — continued

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether there is
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
and whether the financial asset is credit-impaired, the
Group has taken into account the historical actual credit
loss experience of the borrowers and the financial position
of the counterparties by reference to, among others, the
background search for individual clients, amount of pledged
assets, their management or audited accounts or available
press information, adjusted for forward-looking factors that
are specific to the debtors and general economic conditions
of the industry in which the counterparties operate, in
estimating the probability of default of these financial
assets, as well as the loss upon default in each case. There
was no change in the estimation techniques or methodology

made during the year.

The Group has established a loan credit risk classification
system and performs credit risk management based on
loan classification in one of three categories of internal
credit rating. The information about the ECL for the loan
receivables at the end of the reporting period is summarised
below. After considering the above factors, provision of net
impairment loss of approximately HK$29,580,000 (2021:
HK$11,100,000) was recognised during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk — continued
Loans and advances — continued

At 31 March 2022

Internal credit rating Basis of ECL
RS E R FHEEBEEE

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

tRMITHEH-—&
HERMEEAERKE &

FERR-&
EMRBN-H
R-EB--—$=A=+—H

Gross Net
carrying Loss carrying
amount allowance amount

A8 AR T 18 BREE FARMEE

Performing J& %)

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FTHET FTET TR

— Five largest borrowers ARG N 12-month 1218 H 217,200 1,293 215,907

— Other borrowers HAt & 3 A 12-month 121 H 92,537 1,185 91,352
309,737 2,478 307,259

Underperforming J& #7115 DL K AE

— Five largest borrowers HRMEH N Lifecime 21 95,000 33,250 61,750

— Other borrowers HAh & K A Lifetime 4= 24,101 751 23,350
119,101 34,001 85,100

Not performing /N & %1 Lifetime 4= 15,850 11,545 4,305
444,688 48,024 396,664
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-__"F#=FA=+—HIFEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

ERMITHEH-&
HERMEEAERKE &

continued
Credit risk — continued FEERK-&
Loans and advances — continued EBRRBH -
At 31 March 2021 AR -~ ZA=+—H
Gross Net
carrying Loss carrying
Internal credit rating Basis of ECL amount allowance amount
A A5 B RE AR TH W5 B 15 A MR THE i PR A A T AR 1 A
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T
Performing J& %)
— Five largest borrowers 7L KfE# N 12-month 128 H 212,000 1,405 210,595
— Other borrowers H: At 1 A 12-month 1218 H 138,143 1,552 136,591
350,143 2,957 347,186
Underperforming J& #7115 DL K AE
— Five largest borrowers T K fH KA\ Lifetime 4= i 95,000 2,606 92,394
— Other borrowers H:Ah & K A Lifetime 4= 80,650 12,881 67,769
175,650 15,487 160,163
Not performing A~ J& %) Lifetime 4 ¥ 3,500 3,500 -
529,293 21,944 507,349

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE



rE MR R M R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —
continued

Credit risk — continued

Loans and advances — continued

Aging analysis

Aging analysis of loan receivables (net of loss allowance)

prepared based on loan commencement date set out in the

relevant contracts is as follows:

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

tRMITHEH-—&
MREMEERERRE &

FERR-&

EMRBN-H

AR 2 AT

JE B R (RS BRI R B A 1R RIEA
B & A0 BT 2 BB 0 B AR R 2 R
e

2022 2021

—E=-C —ER T 4R

HK$’°000 HK$’000

THERT T TT

Less than 1 month DRl A 60,509 9,953
1 to 3 months 12348 A 29,354 12,229
4 to 6 months EY 6,204 -
7 to 12 months 7& 1218 A 2,617 165,438
Over 12 months 1248 A L E 297,980 319,729
At the end of the reporting period T R 396,664 507,349

Aging analysis of loan receivables (net of loss allowance)

prepared based on contractual due date is as follows:

JRE WS (KA BR s PR B AR AR
VB H R R BRE AT IR

2022 2021

—E_-— TR T 4R

HK$’000 HK$°000

FERT T T

Not yet past due Sl AR A $H 334,914 503,620
Less than 1 month past due a1 A R 1| A - 750
1 to 3 months past due i B 1 Z 3 4 H 61,750 -
Over 3 months past due a3 UL - 2,979
At the end of the reporting period A i B R 396,664 507,349
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BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued

Credit risk — continued

Loans and advances — continued

At 31 March 2022, the Group recognised loss allowance of
approximately HK$48,024,000 (2021: HK$21,944,000) on

its loans and advances. The movement in the loss allowance

for loans and advances during the year is summarised below.

Year ended 31 March 2022

At the beginning of
the reporting period

Increase (Decrease) in

6. TRITH-&

MEERBREEEERBIEK-&

EERk—-&

EXRBN &

W oF D FE=ZHA=1+—H &
A5 ) mt B B M BEKORE BR kS R Bt A
#148,024,000% o (& . — 4 ¢
21,944,000% JC)  4F [N 87 3K K B
fE R A s A N o

BE-_F-_—_F=ZA=+t—-BHLEFE

12-month ECL Lifetime ECL
LEARAEERS 2HRHEERR
Not
Performing Underperforming performing Total
Bl BARRRE TEH @t
Five largest Other Five largest Other
borrowers  borrowers Total  borrowers  borrowers Total
ERERA  HEERA fit ERBERA  HHERA a3t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$'000

TRr TEn TEn

s A

596 2,361 2,957

RIS (1)) 558

TRz TEn TErn  Ti=r TEn

2,606 12,881 15,487 3,500 21,944

allowance, net 697 (1,176) (479) 30,044 (12,130) 18,514 11,545 29,580
Amount written off HusH - - = - - - (3,500) (3,500)
At the end of the AR

reporting period 1,293 1,185 2,478 33,250 751 34,001 11,545 48,024

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued

Credit risk — continued

Loans and advances — continued

Year ended 31 March 2021

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6. $RITH-&
BREMEERERKE &

FERR-&
EMRBN-H
BE-F-F=A=Z=+—HILEE

12-month ECL Lifetime ECL
DREAESEEER 2HRREEER
Not
Performing Underperforming performing Total
B AR AE# it
Five largest Other Five largest Other
borrowers borrowers Total ~ borrowers borrowers Total
RABHA  HMfEFA it BREFA AR it
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS'000
T Tk T T Tk T T Tk
At the beginning of TR )
the reporting period 2,845 2,822 5,667 - 1,677 1,677 3,500 10,844
(Decrease) Increase in B (H) s
allowance, net (1,440) (1,270) (2,710) 2,606 11,204 15,810 - 11,100
At the end of the REERE
reporting period 1,405 1,552 2,957 2,600 12,881 15,487 3,500 21,944

At 31 March 2022, the significant increase in credit risk

refers to increase in rate for exposure at default due to the

deterioration of financial performance of the borrower.

W_FE - FZHA=ZT—H s FER
Wi B 18 0 2 F A SO A RS R B
s 2o 7 A OR AR B R BT .
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BE-_ZT-__"F#=FA=+—HIFEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk — continued
Loans and advances — continued

At 31 March 2022, no loss allowance was recognised for
loans and advances with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$163,817,000 (2021: HK$135,765,000) due to the
relevant pledged assets with fair value of approximately
HK$382,650,000 (2021: HK$369,240,000).

The management closely monitor the credit quality of the
loans and there are no indications that the loan receivables

neither past due nor impaired will be uncollectible.

Debt securities

The Group invests only on quoted and liquid debt securities
with counterparties that have a credit rating of at least B3
from Moody’s. Most of the debt securities are considered
having low credit risk based on the borrowers’ strong

capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into account
the historical actual credit loss experience over the past years
and the financial position of the counterparties by reference
to, among others, their management or audited accounts
and available press information, adjusted for general
economic conditions and future prospects of the industry
in which the counterparties operate and various external
sources of actual and forecast economic information such
as information published by economic expert reports,
financial analysts and government bodies in estimating
the probability of default of these financial assets, as well
as the loss upon default in each case. The management of
the Group considers the ECL of these financial assets to be
insignificant after taking into account the financial position

and credit quality of the counterparties.

There was no change in the estimation techniques or
methodology made during the year. After considering
the above factors, reversal of net impairment loss of
approximately HK$1,989,000 (2021: provision of net
impairment loss of approximately HK$6,300,000) was

recognised during the year.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE

tRMITHEH-&
MREMEERERRE &

FERKR-&

EBRRBH -

W E__HE=ZHAH=1+—H:H
RHBCOCEMEE 2 N REL L
382,650,000% JC (= F — — 4 ¢
369,240,000% Jo) - [A U 6 4 35 B
{E %) £5163,817,000% 70 (& ——4 :
135,765,000 JC) Y £5 50 S G HE 52 s
18 5 -

EHEEREERERZFRER I
8 s 52 S ) SRR (R 2 A
R -

B #E %
ALEERE R A 2D BB
R B R 8R 2 28 5 3 J7 2 W AR A0 I B £
Bk g7 o MR R NIBEAT & 4Bl & R
BEAEM ROCRE T > KW 5 i
A B A RS BB -

A FE TRV AE B E R AL O R
Be o 2 48 JIE 1A A B IR R s 1R AR B
B 38 55 3 7 W BB IR UL (2% (HLp
%) HAE e AT ZIR A L5 A&
w3t A b B 7RG T TEAT SRR B
S HC IR DL % R AT 5 LA K A% AT Bl
T L A6 7 ) A1 S R A R
({51 T 65 37 S G o~ < 0 A i B I
IR 6 A A T % S5 < T A MR
TIEE I EORL) AR A UL i A4 %
ES (AL X Y SR R
AR UL AR B R AR > A 52 B B AR
Ty %S G T I R B IR A TE
* o

A TN T AR Al 51 4 19 B 0 0 I 4 e B o
B Eak R AR > W (E R A
1] £71,989,000% 70 ( & ——4F @ JfifE
s 180 1 A 138 445 406,300,000 7T) ©
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BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMITH—#&
Financial risk management objectives and policies — BERREEEEREEX &
continued
Credit risk — continued FERE-&
Debt securities — continued EHES—F
The gross carrying amounts of the financial assets, by credit A5 B B T R R R ) 0 Y < R A
risk rating grades, are as follows: HIARARE (T -
At 31 March 2022 R=—FB--%=A=+-—H
Net carrying
Internal credit rating Basis of ECL amount
W AR 1S B R AR AHEEBREE R IREE
HK$’000
FiER
Performing & #J 1 12-month 121 H 114,562
Not performing KIE 4 Lifetime % 5,794
120,356
At 31 March 2021 o ER T —AE=H=1—H
Net carrying
Internal credit rating Basis of ECL amount
RESER S S T 5 6 18 2L HE AR T {H
HK$’000
T#TT
Performing J& #J 1 12-month 1218 A 250,138
Not performing /& %) Lifetime 4= 7,435
257,573
Note: Bt &
(i)  The Group monitors whether there has been a significant (i) A5 B0 308 i 5 J o 2 i 19 ST e
increase in credit risk at the reporting date by reviewing Al g H 2 Mi /Y RT B BSR4 H O
the latest published ratings and assessing whether there is Bl SR 5 A AT A A A DL B AR A R
any downgrade on the latest published ratings compared B A A BUE I - —F =N
to previous assessment date. External credit ratings over =+—H > Bis5794,000% T A4
the Group’s not performing debt securities amounted to AN B 248 w8 95 AN R SR AR
HKS$5,794,000 loss allowance was provided at 31 March P REMN (ZF = —4 1 7,435,0007%
2022 (2021: HK$7,435,000). JL) o
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BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. EMIT A&
Financial risk management objectives and policies — HEEREEEERRE &
continued
Credit risk — continued FERR-&
Debt securities — continued EEESF—E
At 31 March 2022, the Group recognised loss allowance of ATE T TAHEZA=Z+—H AEH
approximately HK$12,912,000 (2021: HK$14,793,000) on A 5 T 4 2 Ao E A A A T R fR 2
its debt securities in Mandatory FVOCI. The movement in {80765 w6 2 Wt s 4R 9B 6 40 12,912,000
the loss allowance for these debt securities during the year is TG (& T4 1 14,793,000 70) - 4F
summarised below. T I 55 A 5 38 5 109 s 1 98 Al 2 5 AR
ANy e
The movement of the loss allowance, by measurement basis R HEYGEEBEREMG R B8
of ECL, is as follows: BT
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-Z_—_=A=+—HILEE
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL
1ERRS
BEER 2HENEEER
Performing Underperforming  Not performing Total
EA®  BABRXE TEH Ly
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TER TEn TEn TER
At the beginning of the reporting period  F IR 19 7,358 - 7,435 14,793
Decrease in allowance Bf5Ep (348) - (1,641) (1,989)
Exchange alignment HE 51, 0 108 - - 108
At the end of the reporting period s £ 7,118 - 5,794 12,912
Year ended 31 March 2021 HE X —F=A=Z+—HILFE
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL
12 A B
B EH AT AR
Performing  Underperforming  Not performing Total
E#m  BAERRE TEH st
HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$000 HKS$000
T T T T
At the beginning of the reporting period  FAH 5 4] 8,467 - - 8,467
(Decrease) Increase in allowance B D) s (1,139) - 7,435 6,300
Exchange realignment 56, 3 % 26 - L 26
At the end of the reporting period R EA 7,358 - 7,435 14,793

The Group has no collateral in respect of these debt

securities.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk — continued
Other receivables

In estimating the ECL and in determining whether there is
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
and whether the financial asset is credit-impaired, the
Group has taken into account the historical actual credit
loss experience, financial information and adjusted for
forward-looking factors that are specific to the debtors
and general economic conditions of the industry in which
the counterparties operate, in estimating the probability
of default of these financial assets, as well as the loss upon
default in each case. There was no change in the estimation

techniques or methodology made during the year.

After considering the above factors, provision of net
impairment loss of approximately HK$12,933,000 (2021:
HKS$Nil) was recognised during the year.

The significant changes in the gross carrying amounts of the
balances contributed to the increase in the loss allowance
from significant increase in credit risk on certain other
receivables of a terminated project due to the deterioration
of financial position of the counterparty and life-time ECL
was recognised at approximately HK$12,483,000 during
the year.

The movement of the loss allowance, by measurement basis
of ECL, is as follows:

At 31 March 2022

rE MR R M R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

tRMITHEH-—&
MREMEERERRE &

FERR-&

Bt EW S E

il T A5 45 0 18 M /B %E B A0 o e
LA {7 B g A7 7 853 30 DA % <
HE A EERER  AMEEeE
T A A R s 1R AC R e BB
b SRS A E AN R
7 8 8 T TEAT 3 Y — M S G 4 A
oHEE o DU R R% 5 4 B I R A
o NELWUTEANBSE - FR
Jir Ve At 45 375 07 9 Sl J8E 5 B o

wEE LW ERE > AFEHERD
12,933,000% 70 ( & ——4F 1 i on)
2 UH e R R -

Sier MR EHBEE S h N T
) BB IR DAL > i — R B & L IHE
) 8 4 L Al BB i ik T 2 A R R B K
A B ERBMES N MEND
e w8 24 0 YR A B0 s 1R 40 /512,483,000
T °

HLAE B0 £ £k L0 A R L - R
B BB T

R-ZE--H=A=+—H

Gross Net

carrying Loss carrying

Internal credit rating Basis of ECL amount allowance amount
RESE G AREERREE AR E BIRRE FAREE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

FTERT FTERT FTRER

Performing & #J 1 12-month 121 H 30,424 450 29,974
Underperforming JE £18  R A Lifetime 4= 24,967 12,483 12,484
55,391 12,933 42,458
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BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6.

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued

Credit risk — continued

Other receivables — continued

At 31 March 2021

tRMITE-&

MEEREEEEREIEK-&

FERR-&
Bt EWH—E
R _F_—F=ZA=1+—H

Gross Net
carrying Loss carrying
Internal credit rating Basis of ECL amount allowance amount
N A5 B R AR TH W5 B 15 AL MR THE i R A A T AR 1 (A
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T
Performing J& %) 12-month 121 H 37,904 - 37,904
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-E-—f=H=+—HLEE
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL
REAEH

EEER 2HEHEERSR
Performing Underperforming ~ Not performing Total
BAh BEOBRRE TEH @t
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TAT FEL TEL
At the beginning of the reporting period IR 141 - - - -
Increase in allowance =S| 450 12,483 - 12,933
At the end of the reporting period A 450 12,483 - 12,933

The Group does not hold any collateral over the balances.

Deposits with financial institutions

The credit risk on bank balances — general accounts and

cash is limited because majority of the counterparties are

financial institutions with high credit-ratings assigned by

international credit-rating agencies and state-owned banks

with good reputation. No loss allowance was recognised for

both years.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE

A B 180 37 488 90 6 B <p A AT SIS o

RE BB 7
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —
continued

Liquidity risk

As part of its ordinary broking activities, the Group is
exposed to liquidity risk arising from timing difference
between settlement with clearing house or brokers and
customers. To address the risk, the treasury team works
closely with the settlement division on monitoring the
liquidity gap. The Group manages its liquidity risk through
maintaining sufficient cash. As part of the measures to
safeguard liquidity, the Group has maintained substantial
stand-by banking facilities, diversifying the funding sources

and spreading out the maturity dates.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities and lease
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities and lease liabilities according to the
carliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.
The difference between the “Total undiscounted cash flows”
column and the “Carrying amount at the end of reporting
period” column represents the future contractual cash
flows attributable to the instrument which are not included
in the carrying amount of the financial liabilities and
lease liabilities on the consolidated statement of financial

position.

rE MR R M R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

tRMITHEH-—&
HERMEEAERKE &

RBESER
RS AL TS I A SR H W SEH 2 —
B BOAS SR B IR 2 B A5 R BT A A %
%5 2 T 46 B I 2 T T O )
SRR o 7 ME B DL TH R B > FE RS X (R
BEERMMREaE —FAEEES
ZERRRH o AEEIE MM R LB B
BEFL L B S Ja B o AR A OR B R B
e — & > AR B MR R
i AR AT AL K AR IR B B
FMA -

LB B R 5w B 9 A
TREEAEERMEEAHER R
R B Tih 5 78 K Ak R 2 R B i O TR o
R R A S ORI
B (R LE B n] i R PCEOR
Z HW) W e T REEFE R AR
B o [RGB B & 08 AH] —
B LT i 9K 2 R T (| — 3] 22 ]
MR RA B T RBERK A
Bl Ui o M A B B U R I A
&l B fR S R B A RO AR IR D
K ZHRTH -
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BE_T-_—_F=-A=+—HLEFE

Year ended 31 March 2022

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued

Liquidity risk — continued

Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued

6. TRITH-&

MEERBREEEERBIEK-&

RBESER-&
B & R F 5 R 5 7 —

Carrying
amount at
Repayable Total  the end of
Repayable  in less than Within undiscounted ~the reporting
on demand 1 month Lyear  cash flows period
AREX  AREA ARRRE RBEHK
e niEE 158 RESE 2REE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FTEx TEx TEx TEx TR

At 31 March 2022 RZ2-Z%=A=1-H
Accounts payable TEfH IR 303,553 213,577 - 517,130 517,124
Accrued charges and other payables Mt R HLA e 0 - 8,847 - 8,847 8,847
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders ey UTE v 30,257 - - 30,257 30,257
Lease liabilities HEAR - 108 270 378 377
Bank borrowings (note) RATIHE (W3 94,553 - - 94,553 94,553
428,363 222,532 270 651,165 651,158

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE
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BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. CRMITH-&
Financial risk management objectives and policies — BERREEEEREEX &
continued
Liquidity risk — continued REBESREK &
Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued B B R F 5 B 5 7 — A
Carrying
amount at
Repayable More than Total  the end of the
Repayable  in less than Within 1 year but less  undiscounted reporting
on demand 1 month lyear thanSyears  cash flows period
ARER AR R AWBEE  REEEA

g A VER O BESER RESE  ZREE
HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000
Ti#x Ti#x Tt T T T

At 31 March 2021 W_Z-—#=H=1+—
H

Accounts payable JEfTIEIR 303,348 392,458 - - 695,806 695,799
Accrued charges and TSt 2 1 R A B ff 508

other payables - 8,638 - - 8,038 8,638
Amounts due to non-controlling /¢ I ¥ IR IR A FUE

shareholders 30,257 N N . 30,257 30,257
Lease labilies AR - 108 1,075 378 1,561 1,540

333,605 401,204 1,075 378 736,262 736,234

Note: it -
The amounts repayable under certain bank loan agreements that T SRAT BB I sl TE N B B R IR TH L 35
include a clause that gives the banks unconditional rights to #h T SR AT I AGE 1 B ORI o B R IR M
call the loans at anytime are classified under the category of “on oo R MR T M A T ME R fE R | M
demand”. However, the management does not expect that the Al o SR > 4 I TH M SRAT AR & AT a% %
banks would exercise such rights to demand repayment and thus, HE I ZE R 28K > G s (58 (B 65 A B A
the borrowings, which included the related interest, would be B) AR 58 B 3 0 i I B E RO IR TR 26 (AL
repaid according to the schedule in note 35 as set out in the loan FE35) fH# -
agreements.
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—E-—F=A=+—HItFE

Year ended 31 March 2022

6.

GET

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 6. TWMI A&
Financial risk management objectives and policies — BERAREEEEREEX &
continued
Liquidity risk — continued REBESREK &
Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued I B B R A g 51 — A
The following tables detail the Group’s expected maturity NERFEALEEE TEMEE ZHY
for certain financial assets. The tables below have been FHIH - FERBESRMEE RIS
drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities Z AN O (L 5% 55 5 i 2 A
of the financial assets, including interests that will be B) > M EEERERE &M EE
earned on those assets, except for those financial assets 41 o A BE 43 B ) 3 AR 4 [ 7E 1Y
which are not repayable on demand. The analysis is based T 45 A 8 19 A AT IR L B A o [ R R
on when the Group anticipates that the cash flows will BB 4 ki ARRE | — 5 BT R R AR
occur. The difference between the “Total undiscounted ZHRHE ] — 2 2 MR 240 - A
cash flows” column and the “Carrying amount at the end THBEML KRBTSR E > WA
of reporting period” column represents the possible future B4 U 0 A B Rl R R AR A B
cash flows attributable to the instrument which are not BRI EZERE AR R E4E
included in the carrying amount of the financial asset on the AR NS VR G B A A R R I
consolidated statement of financial position. The inclusion W Bk AT BE 4 & 22 R S BRI AR
of information on financial assets is necessary in order to A5 B B A g B AR B AT o
understand the Group’s liquidity risk management as the
liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis.
Carrying
Repayable amount at
Repayable Repayable between Repayable Repayable Total the end of
Repayable ~ in less than between 3 months between between undiscounted  the reporting
on demand I'month 1 to3 months tolyear  Itolyears  2to5years Undated cash flows period
AR AR AR AR AR FER
Ak 1fERR  1Z3fARA SERE 1226/ 12557 BENE RESER
ZREE &z B2 15nRE &z &E ERH a8 ZEHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn FiEn TiEn TEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
At31 March 2022 Jut- St 3
ZA=t-8
Accounts receivable, net TEURE R 2,780,119 47,035 - - - - - 2,827,154 2,826,396
Bank balances - general Rk —RER
accounts and cash k3 944,513 190,769 701,273 - - - - 183655 1,835,239
Bank balances - client accouns— RTHB-FFIRF 383,200 97,691 - - - - - 480,897 480,897
Loans and advances, net B 89,107 62,774 85,672 177,114 14,534 2,93 - 452,124 396,664
Deposits and other receivables 12 R R 23,586 - B 22,500 - - - 46,086 46,086
Financial assets at FVPL FAREGFAREZ
EHEE 2432 18,462 66,242 39,288 - - 175,385 323,699 319,352
Mandatory FVOCI A AR A
TR ERE - 8,78 10,182 58,286 17,23 84,045 15,502 194,032 120356
4,244,853 425,513 863,369 297,188 31,769 106,968 190,887 6,160,547 6,024,990
NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED & #2RERAH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Liquidity risk — continued

Liquidity and interest risk tables — continued

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022
tWMIAE-&
BRRAREEREERBK &

REBESERE-
B & RN F R g 5 % —

Carrying
Repayable amount at
Repayable ~ Repayable between ~ Repayable  Repayable Totl  theend of
Repayable in less than between 3 months between between  More than undiscounted  the reporting
on demand I month 1t 3 months tolyear ltolyears  2to) years 5 years Undated ~ cash flows period
AR 1S il Tk AR AHEB
R WAR 1EEAR EAE IEER 2ESER Bg ﬁ‘i% s A
kR fik g IFEREE ffi fE @l R 8% JkmE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
T Tk Tibx Tt Tk Tk Tibx T Tk Tk
At31 March 2021 g S
ZA=+-H
Accounts receivable, net TR 3,608,375 47,853 - - - - - - 36628 3655082
Bank balances - general R
accounts and cash —~MREF R
R 587,172 71,746 - - - - - - 68918 658914
Bank balances - client accounts ~ $17 55—
KFIRF 14433 541,807 - - - - - - 660 636,240
Loans and advances, net LEVE Tt 5,453 5,519 150,649 304,234 91,629 18,248 - - 575,731 507,349
Deposits and other receivables %4 &
AlbiEEA 71978 - - - - - - 71978 71978
Financial assets at FVPL WARERARE
LEmERE - 18462 101911 54,831 - - - L6M0 304 29593
Mandatory FVOCI B A R R
Hfb2 il - 14,707 23953 696 120528 40,349 7,763 15500 14498 257573
4387411 700,094 276,513 430,762 212,157 58,597 7,763 141,740 6215039 6,103,070
Fair value measurements NREFE
The following presents the assets and liabilities measured DLTF & LR L e N o (E e o
at fair value or required to disclose their fair value in these WEEARHEZEENAR HiRE
financial statements on a recurring basis across the three TS R s HE I A 13%}’%/\/43 (B 7 &
levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13 REZ A 2] > & d N e EEr
Fair Value Measurement, with the fair value measurement BRI R e E & gg Fd- BEELZ

categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level input

that is significant to the entire measurement. The levels of

inputs are defined as follows:

. Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in

active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the

GI‘OUp can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included

within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset

or liability.

SSEBVERLE TN € TN &
A EW R

o EIE (REES  AEEREE
AT g 2 A R R R
{6 BT P R OREGR )

o 2R E1EAEE MBS &
Bk B fE ] B RS
Z WA K&

o 3 (RKEH)  EEAM[Z
,.“/igﬂmiﬁ‘)\%w%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-__"F#=FA=+—HIFEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value measurements — continued

6. $RITH &
AREHE &

(i) AR EFEZ 2 EE

(i) Financial assets measured at fair value

Significant Correlation between
Fairvalue  Valuation techniquesand ~ unobservable significant unobservable
Financial assets Fair value at 31 March  hierarchy ~ key inputs inputs inputs and fair value
EEMEARRL
RZA=1-H EEMALRE BANBHOAAfEY
TREE PN MEER HERRRIZRARE BANE RERE
2022 2021
—E-CE | ZF--F
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
TiEn T
Mandatory FVOCI
BHEDRERA
Efp2EKE
- Debt securities 120,356 257,573 Level 2 Quoted prices from brokers ~ N/A N/A
- BB ES FJE A AR AER
Financial assets at FVPL
ROAEABHZ
tREE
- Unlisted investments 2,117 2,061 Level 3 Surrender cash value N/A N/A
- Payment for life insurance (including guaranteed
policy interest), reported by the
financial institution on a
regular basis
—kEmifE H3E BRAGEE (BFRE  AER A
~ AFREZ R FIE) > B—MEREE
e R
- Listed equity securities 110,356 117,184 Level 1 Quoted prices inan active ~~ N/A N/A
market
- LA % gl R RE AR AR
— Unlisted convertible notes 14,304 13,815 Level 2 Determined by the N/A N/A
management by reference
to available market
information adjusted to
reflect liquidity of the
investments.
= L R 8 HE HERESETHAGGE FEA AR
HEE  ERCIFREL
R E 2 RB

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Fair value measurements — continued

(i) Financial assets measured at fair value — continued

Financial assets

THEE

~ Unlisted debt securities
(subject to early redemption)

o AWLY foe
(W R AT )

- Unlisted equity securities

—F LR

Fair value
Fair value at 31 March  hierarchy
R=A=t-H
2R MERR
2022 2021
“B-CF | ZR--E
HK$’000 HK$000
TEn T
06,054 116,558 Level 3
#3JE
126,521 46,316 Level 2

HE

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE

Year ended 31 March 2022

6. $RITH-&
AREE— &

() HAAEFEZS EMEE—#H

Valuation techniques and
key inputs

fHERARTERALE

Discounted cash flow method

and binomial tree model
based on spot price,

volatility and discount rate

MBLBL & 8 o T

Bk R
it RIS

Net asset value

Significant
unobservable
inputs

EEMALRE
PA N ¢ |

Discount rate
10.04% (2021
from 11.51% to
11.52%)

A B 510.04%
(ZF -
11.51%%11.52%)

NiA
AR

Correlation between
significant unobservable
inputs and fair value
BEMELEEL
BARBHRAAEZ
HEBR

Discount rate increases/

decreases by 5% (2021:
5%), fair value would
decrease/increase

by approximately
HK$1,188,000/
HK$700,000 (2021:
approximately
HK$1,279,000/
HK$823,000)

MHE LT/ THs%

(ZER T~ 50)
NEKED /5
TI41,188,0001 T
/700,000 ¢ (Z%
Z—4E 491,079,0008
75,/823,0001 7C)

N/A
AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B

E-E-_—FE=-A=+—HItFE

Year ended 31 March 2022

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE

Fair value measurements — continued

6. TRITH-&

DAREFE-E

(i) Financial assets measured at fair value — continued (i)

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2

fair value measurement during years ended 31 March
2022 and 2021. There was no transfer between Level
2 and Level 3 fair value measurements during the year
ended 31 March 2022 (2021: There were transfers

between Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements).

The details of the movements of the fair value

measurements categorised as Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy during the years ended 31 March 2022 and

2021 are as follows:

BAREFEZ &M EE

WEE B R F A
ZAET—HIEFEE B RE
208N B FHE 2 0 AL o iR
BE_ZFZ-HF=H=1+—HIk
R B2 K3 A ARER R
Z MR (T A R
208 K H3NE N S B A

%) o

MBE_F __HFR T F
A=t REFESBEEAR
EN R G R ) PN K=k -0 -
R

HK$000

T

At 1 April 2020 AT FAENA—H 105,525
Purchases mEE 100,000
Redeemed g 1] (71,838)
Addition - acquisition of subsidiaries 7S — W R E A T 2,001
Fair value gains in profit or loss, net TR i 2 2 SR AR A 2,716
Transfer to Level 2 (note a, b) RS B (M 5ka > b) (19,785)
At 31 March 2021 WoExz - —F=ZH=+—H 118,619
Purchases g 30,000
Redeemed Hg (1] (80,000)
Fair value losses in profit or loss, net iR SR/ DI (=N 7R R ] (448)
At 31 March 2022 R-B-_-_F=H=+—H 68,171

Notes:

(a) The transfer from Level 3 to Level 2 fair value

measurements for the year ended 31 March 2021 was

due to significant decrease in unobservable inputs.

(b)  The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and

out of Level 3 as at the beginning of the reporting

period in which the transfer occurs.

@ WE_F_F=ZA=t—HI
S 3T RS 2 AT
FHER R Mk R A R
B WD B -

(b) AL Z BUR IR 8 8% 2 i
120 e R A T W 230
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value measurements — continued

(i)

(1)

Financial assets measured at fair value — continued

The unrealised losses of approximately HK$277,000
(2021: approximately HK$2,716,000) for Level 3
investments held at the reporting date are reported
in “other gains and losses, net” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

Valuation process

The management of the Group is responsible to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for fair value measurements. In estimating the
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
will establish the appropriate valuation techniques and

inputs to the model.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs
used in determining the fair value of various assets are

disclosed above.

Financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at

fair value

The management of the Group considers that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated statement of financial position

approximate their fair values.

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6. $RITH-&
AREE— &

() HAAEFEZS EMEE—#H

RlE AR EBRE Y
* H B 1H £9277,000% 06 (—F
T4 #92,716,0008 0) AR A
18 £ S HoAth 2 T Ui 4 2% v T At i
e MR EH T 29,

14 (e 7 7

3 SEK IR R g YA E]
at B A (E BT & i A B
5o A aH EE AN L R E
IRF o % S ] A w45 B 56 oA
T 5 R B A R o TE MK
TEAT 55 1 I g A\ R iy > A SR
2oy A5 Y TfE ST 4 Al (Bl B e
ABHE -

A B TS 18 E AN [ B S A (E
i (B3 7 % gy A 0% B R TR
bSO

(ii) T FZ 28T ME 7 s i B R

&A1

A 4R T BELRE RE A A AR A IR
DU 12 8 8 A 91 R 2 4 Al
Je 4 il A M 2 BT (B SLAS B 22
A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-__"F#=FA=+—HIFEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to

offsetting

The disclosures set out in the tables below include
financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject
to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement that covers similar financial instruments that are

either:

e offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of

financial position; or

*  not offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of

financial position as the offsetting criteria are not met.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement made
between the Group and Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited (“HKSCC”) and a broker, the Group has
a legally enforceable right to set off the money obligations
receivable and payable with HKSCC and a broker on the
same settlement date and the Group intends to settle on a

net basis.

In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off the accounts receivable and payable with its
retail customers in the Group’s brokerage business (the
“brokerage clients”) that are due to be settled on the same
date with reference to the settlement method set by the
HKSCC and the Group intends to settle these balances on a

net basis.

Except for balances which are due to be settled on the same
date which are being offset, amounts due from/to HKSCC,
a broker and the brokerage clients that are not to be settled
on the same date, financial collateral including cash and
securities received by the Group and deposits placed with
HKSCC and a broker do not meet the criteria for offsetting
in the consolidated statement of financial position since
the right of set-off of the recognised amounts is only

enforceable following an event of default.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE

tRMITHEH-&
tHEERS A B EY

R W AR R A AR
BT 2 B — 1 B A A Th ek e 25 T
L < il T 5 2 S D) 22 Bk 2 4l M
< il A1

o AALBEE S IBHR RIS E
69

o DRI 2 BRI B A 1 T S 0 A A 4R
P &5 BB AR DL R RS

AR5 A B ] S 7 o P L 5 A R A
([ AT 1) R A8 A0 03T O 35 P 3
A 0 Wk o AN SR R B ik T o A L
A7 HE M) 1K 81 7 4 A5 T B A8 A R A [ A4
B F A R i B MBS SR TE AR T LA
EEATUFE T LR -

B4k > 2 %5 5 s 45 AT S0 I &5 5 7
& AL A A I T AT HE AT 8
AEHBRLEE 2 THERES ((RLE
J5 1) i R] 0 A A R i R R A R
T i H A E A A AR
H A5 & B o

BRI IR 8 2 AR TR 3 30 45 5 00 & B
Bb > F S B R R S AR B R A T A
B A B AR T AT > O AR A
[ H 0 45 3 ) HE Wi, A A s A
REAC R ACALH P AOH - &ERY (&
EAEEC W & NS - FHORE
WEH ML S WA RN
B BB AR DL R AR B 2 A



rE MR R M R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to

offsetting — continued

Gross amounts

ESEEE = = B = - — Bl

Year ended 31 March 2022

6. $RITH-&
SREERSHABEIIKE &

of recognised
financial ~ Net amounts of
liabilities  financial assets
. , Related amount not set off
setoffin the  presented in the ) .
Gross amounts consolidated consolidated n thefc;nsoll'(ﬁted s'te.xtement
of recognised statement statement of financia? position
financial assets of financial of financial Financial Collateral
after impairment position position instruments pledged Net amount
WEE  RBREE ‘
DEE RRREET  NEANE LRRBEHBRREH
SREE  BERLR MRERI BEZRREE
am BE4E CHEERE SHIRE CHEAERY #H
HK$000 HK$000 HEK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
T T Tin T T T
At31 March 2022 RZBZZE
ZA=t-8
Accounts receivable arising from the % KM KA A EE
business of dealing in securities EHTEEZ
and future contracts TR 2,979,387 (152,991) 2,826,396 (1,000) (2,760,510) 64,886
Gross amounts
of recognised
financial ~ Net amounts of
liabilities set ~ financial assets } Related Amountnotset off
Gross amounts offinthe  presented in the inthe COHSOll.dated statement
of recognised consolidated consolidated of financial posiion
financial assets statement of statement of Financial Collateral
after impairment  financial position  financial position instruments pledged Net amount
Wik REAHE
G 1L EERSE R
SEEE  DERLR  RWERAZ M2 HIBR
am ARGE LREENE SRTH  BIEMERY B
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
T Tt Tt T T T
At 31 March 2021 BoE-—&
A=A
Accounts receivable arising from the % R EANEH
business of dealing in securities EHhELL
and future contracts fE R 3,797,451 (142,369) 3,655,082 (1,033) (3,582,649) 71,400
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to

offsetting — continued

6. $RITH &
tHEERSCREBEEY &

Gross amounts Net amounts
of recognised of financial
financial assets liabilities
setoffin the  presented in the . Related amount not set ot
Grossamounts  consolidated ~ consolidated in the consol{dated statement
of recognised statement statement of financial position
financial of financial of financial Financial Collateral
liabilities position position instruments pledged Net amount
RERHE
SRREEY  HEAHE RHELHERRAS
_ 2E2 2EReR fngeny HEJEEEE
cREREE EE4E SHAERE SRIE CHEAERY #H
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TiEn TéEn Tin Tin Tin TéEn
At 31 March 2022 R=B=Zf
=B=t-8
Accounts payable arising from the ~ FHFRMEANEH
business of dealing in securities ErhELz
and futures contracts JERRE (670,115) 152,991 (517,124) 1,000 - (516,124)
Gross amounts Net amounts
of recognised of financial
financial assets liabilities ) Re}l]atcd aml(? zm Zm setoff
Gross amounts setoffin the  presented in the inthe fc;nso s Te s‘tgtement
of recognised consolidated consolidated of financia’ position
financial statement of statement of Financial Collateral
liabilities ~ financial position financial position instruments pledged Net amount
REAITH e ,
RERR. RGO IEREARTR
CBRE CEALE  MREIAL _ RECRESE )
EHAKSH GEGE ARARNE SRTH  BIAERY e
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
Ac31 March 2021 REFZ—F
=f=1-H
Accounts payable arising from the % KM EAHEE
business of dealing in securities I HEL L
and futures contracts TEft iR (838,168) 142,369 (695,799) 1,033 - (694,766)

The amounts which have been offset against the related

recognised financial assets and financial liabilities in the

Group’s consolidated statement of financial position are

measured on the same basis as the recognised financial assets

and financial liabilities, which is amortised cost.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE

B A AR 45 B 45 & 5 IR D R S A B
il W < A T E M R R B 2 A K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

7. REVENUE 7. Wz
2022 2021
—E—-— TR T 4R
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET AR
Revenue from contracts with customers ERMERELEREIHE
within HKFRS 15 BHEANZEFEHN WA
Brokerage commission K He 50,858 49,385
Underwriting and placing commission 3,81 B e 8 AH <2 5,830 8,751
Proof of funds commission &4 s A 4 200 8,208
Other commission HoAth A 4 793 88
Clearing and handling fee income HKERTFHBRA 1,691 1,807
Asset management fee income %%%I@%W)\ 2,383 -
Advisory fee income HEA PN 2,672 905
64,427 69,144
Revenue from other sources H 2R 2 &
Property rental income S E A\ UN 18,303 15,359
Interest income from financial assets N fREFF AR
at FVPL Zﬁ’z\ﬁﬁlg%z}ﬁjﬁ\qy)\
— Unlisted convertible notes — I b T AT SR 850 1,761
— Unlisted debt securities — Ik LTRSS 8,930 11,234
28,083 28,354
Interest revenue calculated using the ERERRBETE
effective interest method ZF B
— Bank balances and time-deposits — SRAT &5 R SE WA R 3,141 1,942
— Other financial assets at amortised costs — F AR B A T
2 HoAh 4 il
— Accounts receivable — JEWIETE 287,259 307,714
— Loans and advances e 43,291 75,178
— Mandatory FVOCI — W% A FeE FE A H A
EQEN 14,874 20,284
348,565 405,118
Total revenue W4 EE 441,075 502,616
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

7. REVENUE - continued 7.

In addition to the information shown in segment
disclosures, the revenue from contracts with customers

within HKERS 15 is disaggregated as follows:

2% — &
I 43 S 0 5 T R A e A 4R
5 9 ) 505 15 % O O 11 5 e i
SrEHNT

2022 2021
—E=-= L S -
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fax FE
Timing ofrevmue recognition: Wk HEGR 2 ﬁtﬁ“{/%T/i% :
At a point in time RERBEE
Brokerage commission £ 50 W4 50,858 49,385
Underwriting and placing commission 185 K e B I 5,830 8,751
Proof of funds commission &4 TR AN 4 200 8,208
Other commission HoAth A 4 793 88
Clearing and handling fee income GEE T F I A 1,691 1,807
59,372 68,239
Over time BE B RS
Asset management fee income G LN 2,383 -
Advisory fee income [FE - ON 2,672 905
5,055 905

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE



8. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is currently organised into six operating
divisions, namely broking, securities margin financing,
money lending, corporate finance, asset management
and investments. These divisions are the basis on which
the Board of the Company, being the chief operating
decision maker, reviews the operating results and financial
information. The principal activities of these divisions are as

rE MR R M R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

7 EHER

A 45 8 B 23 N A 7 A E . R AR
N iAol L < g € [ S Y
GEEEH ULBRE - ZEWM
EAARESEG (I 28 EIE)
T Bl K67 SR M B BB 2 R o %
SFERM Z EEEFHWT

follows:

Broking
K

Securities margin financing

i 75 IR

Money lending
AR

Corporate finance

> JE g

Asset management

Provision of stockbroking, futures and options broking and
underwriting and placements

P Bt R AR - B SR A RS > LA R LB K i s

Provision of securities margin financing

R I R

Provision of mortgage and consumer loans

R A% 1 K 2 K

Provision of corporate advisory services

1 A3 A 38 R AR 55

Provision of asset management services

B 1 I 4 A R S

Investments Holding of investment properties and investment in financial
instruments

P& FrABEY B EEM TR

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 2
to the consolidated financial statements. For the purposes of
monitoring segment performance and allocating resources
between segments:

e all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
certain property and equipment, club memberships,
certain prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
certain bank balances and certain deferred tax assets.

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than certain accrued charges and other payables,
amounts due to non-controlling shareholders, certain
tax payable, deposits received for disposal of a
subsidiary, bank borrowings and certain deferred tax
liabilities.

o all profit or loss are allocated to operating segments
other than certain amortisation and depreciation,
certain lease payments for short-term lease or lease
of low value assets/operating lease rentals, certain
management fees, certain staff costs and certain other
expenses incurred for strategic planning by the Group.

ReB oy Wb 2 @k BUR BLER & 55 R
WA S 2 2 A 5 ) 22w WO AR TR o
2y MR AR B K oy A ) 2 YR ) L

o BRERWIE Sk &R
FR 3 TR BRIE ~ % 4 R At R Ui
A ~ HR O SRAT B BR L E o R SE
BIHEES > i EE S B0 i

EY VS 8

o BRI HE SN K A B AT IR
JH ~ R 5 e BB SR R I ~ A
MBE - HE—HEARZE
Wt s > SRAT 15 B L 40 0 AE B
HA RS TAEAFRE SR

o BRESTHEH R AT EE - AR AR
B AR A B A A Ak
SRREBHERE W e
o> B T SAS DL K &8 20 il A 4R
SRS K ) BT EE A 1 At B S
P A i A1) B8 18 20 T 3 5848 4
i o
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BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 8. ZEER &
Segment information about these divisions is presented WA 2 7 M E R E 25T o
below.
Segment revenue and results B EREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and PLTF £ 3% 78 T 0 a8 o i iR fit 2 A&
results by reportable operating segments. B B g R ERE R AT o
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-_Z-_—_F=ZA=+—HLEFE
Securities
margin Money  Corporate Asset
Broking financing lending finance management Investments Consolidated

&%
B8 RETRE BE  ERHE  HEER R& &a
HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS$000  HK$'000
- TER ThR TEx TEx TER TAR

Segment revenue i 62,721 287,051 43,291 2,672 2,383 4957 41,075

Segment result NHES 7370 156,975 13,306 2,416 2,122 6,424 188,613

Unallocated other operating A 7ML & IA R

income and corporate TEEHFHE
expenses, net (32,073)
Profit before taxation BiRE A 156,540
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE_EF - —4E=H=1T—HIL4EE
Securities
margin Money Corporate
Broking financing lending finance Investments  Consolidated
wh
Be  REzEE & PERE e Ga
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ik Fit i T ik ik
Segment revenue s 71,092 306,603 75,178 905 48,638 502,616
Segment result NHES 19,478 250,900 62,557 606 13,004 346,545

Unallocated other operating income 7ML A& ITA &

and corporate expenses, net TEEREH (40,003)
Profit before taxation T Al i A 306,542
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BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE

Year ended 31 March 2022

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 8. DEER-—&
Segment assets and liabilities PHEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and DA 2% #5207 ol 888 o SR 22 A
liabilities by reportable operating segments. B K BAER T
At 31 March 2022 R=-B-ZZ§=A=+-—H
Securities
margin Money  Corporate Asset
Broking financing lending finance management Investments Consolidated
#%
BL REcHE BE L¥@E EEEER RE 58
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THEx THr Fhr TaAxn Tan ThEx THx
Segment assets MR 15665 300235 4782 1L 25 1766715 6,809,683
Unallocated assets (note i) FARERE (M) 1,061,378
Consolidated assets GAREE 7,871,061
Segment liabilites nHbafE 300559 222492 453 9 493 7612 531,704
Unallocated liabilities (note i) A/t 6 (Mt 2kii) 394,604
Consolidated liabilities hRAk 926,308
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BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment assets and liabilities — continued

TEHER &

THEEREE-E

At 31 March 2021 o FE - —H£=H=+—H
Securities
margin Money Corporate
Broking financing lending finance  Investments  Consolidated
gE  REcEE ef hede f& G
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
T T#x T Tt T T
Segment assets NHERE 769,140 3,894,302 606,193 10,419 1,513,273 6,793,327
Unallocated assets (note ) FAEGE () 817,722
Consolidated assets EABRE 7,611,049
Segment labilities AR 417517 295,300 466 82 3,716 717,081
Unallocated liabilities (note ii) FAT AL (ki) 178,209
Consolidated liabilities EAAE 895,290
Notes: B &1

(i) The balance mainly comprises property and equipment, () A B &S R AR W S R DL

and bank balances of approximately HK$496,246,000 and
HK$543,588,000 respectively (2021: HK$610,733,000 and

HK$172,479,000 respectively).

(ii)  The balance mainly comprise amounts due to non-controlling

shareholders, tax payables, bank borrowings and deposit

received for disposal of a subsidiary of approximately
HK$30,257,000, HK$138,321,000, HK$94,553,000
and HK$126,000,000 respectively (2021: Amounts
due to non-controlling shareholders and tax payables of
approximately HK$30,257,000 and HK$138,326,000

respectively).

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE

(i)

SRAT &5 8k 4 Al £ £5496,246,0003 7T &
543,588,000% 70 (- F ~—4F : 40 Hl 5
610,733,0005 70 %2 172,479,000 7C) °

A B & R T ALEE Ik I R K
TH - JEAS BLIE ~ SRAT S L —
RN A AR = O
30,257,000 JG ~ 138,321,000%% JC -
94,553,000% JC 126,000,000 5 7T
(R =5 RO I R T
JRE A B IEL 3l 49 530,257,000 76 K&
138,326,000 7T) °



SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Other segment information

2022

Amounts included in the measure
of segment profit or loss or
segment asscts:

Additions of property and
equipment

Depreciation of property and
equipment

Provision of net impairment loss
on accounts receivable

Provision of net impairment loss
on loans and advances

Provision of net impairment loss
on other receivables

Reversal of impairment loss on

Mandatory FVOCI

Bad debr recovery from loans and
advances

Additions of investment properties

Government subsidies

Fair value losses on investment
properties

Fair value gains (losses) on
financial assets at FVPL

Gain on disposal of loans and
advances

Gain on disposal of property and
equipment

Write-off of intangible assets

Interest income (including revenue
and other operating income)

Finance costs

Commission expenses

ELYED e o)
WEELIE:

VELEYFAS

kRS E

il
SRR A EER
i
ARl R
s
B Ao A
e eva it ]
o
IRV va 1

RENEZRE
BRI R
RENEZ MAEER

FARERFAREZ
SHEEZARE
i ()

th & SR 2 Wi

th 4% R 2 Wi

HHEY R
HERA (@R
SO
AE A
LEL5

Broking

g
HK$'000
TER

19,295

(5,674)

79

(41)

3375
(319)
(12,496)

Securities
margin
financing
-
REEHE
HK$°000
TR

(130,076)

287,051

Money
lending

HE&
HK$'000
TER

(157)

(29,580)

(450)

1,848

“r A TS R AR M R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

£ Sl

F=ZA=+—BHLEE

Year ended 31 March 2022

7 ERE -
H fth 5 35 8 4t

—E——

Asset
finance management

Corporate

tEME HEEE

HKS$'000  HKS$'000
TAn  THx
S (3)

- 80

8 -

(182) -

o

Investments Unallocated Consolidated

R
HKS000
TER

143

(38)

(12,483)
1,989
9,156

(21,457)

(6,416)

AR
HK$'000
TR

17,535

(18,021)

950

429
(1,434)

AN

fuy=!
HK$°000
TEn

36,973
(23,893)
(130,076)
(29,580)

(12,933)

1,989
180
9,156
505

(21,457)

(6:337)
1,848

950
(451)

358,808
(1,753)
(12,678)
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BE-_ZT-__"F#=FA=+—HIFEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Other segment information — continued

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE

2021
Securities
margin
Broking financing
Y RETHE
HK$000 HKS$'000
T THT
Amounts included in the measure 757 5 55 4 5
of segment profit or loss or PHEEHE
segment assets:
Additions of property and BRIENE L AIRE
equipment through acquisiion ¥ EYET
of subsidiaries 335 S
Additions of investment BRNEMBATRE
properties through acquisition % kS
of subsidiaries - -
Additions of intangible assets BRUEMEATRE
through acquisition of EVEE
subsidiaries 550 -
Additions of property and WERZEZRE
equipment 3,484 -
Depreciation of properryand — HJERF M 24T E
equipment (1,496) -
Provision of net impairment loss ~ JEUUIRJA 2 $i 5 10
on accounts receivable R - (95,703)
Provision of net impairment loss &3 R B 2 W5 8
on loans and advances FaRh - =
Provision of net impairment loss % il # /A f2 (A3 A JL 1t
on Mandatory FVOCI Eilieva a3
FRER - -
Additions of investment HENELRE
properties i N
Government subsidies B A 3,045 -
Fair value losses on invesment B EZ AR HER
properties T N
Fair value gains (losses) on BARETAREL
financial assets at FVPL SREEZARME
& (B8 95 -
Interest income (including FIBMA (@5 B
revenue and other operating fhEERA)
income) 3123 306,603
Finance costs & A (4,953) =
Commission expenses EAED (12,750) =
Write-off of accounts receivable 5 R 76 - (193)

Money
lending

i
HKS'000
T

7 EE R - &
H it 5 385 —

TE TR

Corporate
finance

bERY
HKS$'000
T

[nvestments

3
HKS 000
T

75,000

(6,300

9,573

(30,093)

(7,091)

33,280

Unallocated

KK
HK$ 000
T

425,000

1,879

(16,913)

779

Consolidated
54

HKS 000
T

425,335

75,000

550
5,381
(18,658)
(55,703)

(11,100)

(6,300)

9,573
3,940

(30,093)

419,075
(4,953)
(12,902)
(193)
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BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 8. THEFR &
Geographical information i & & B
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and REFEZEZGMNRFELER (ZF
the United Kingdom (2021: Hong Kong and the United AR Tk ) o

Kingdom).

AR A G [ T 35 ) ARk

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s

revenue from external customers by geographical market: AN E Bt 2 AT
Revenue by
geographical market
BHEMSE D 2 W
2022 2021
—E-= TE T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET ARCP
Hong Kong T 428,948 491,608
United Kingdom Lo 12,127 11,008
441,075 502,616

R AR P AE > 2 R )

The following table is an analysis of the carrying amounts of

non-current assets by geographical area in which the assets R T 2 AT
are located:
Carrying amounts of
non-current assets
FRBEEZKREE
2022 2021
—=E-= SR
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET T#T
Hong Kong s 1,156,518 1,291,597
United Kingdom g/ 226,634 236,020
1,383,152 1,527,617
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B

E_E__F=-A=+—HLHFE

Year ended 31 March 2022

8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
Geographical information — continued

The non-current asset information above excludes financial

instruments and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers
During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, there
were no customers individually contributing 10% or more

of the Group’s total revenue.

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, the
aggregate revenue attributable to the five largest customers
of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s

total revenue.

DEER —&

HWEER —-E

DL EJE R B S R GRS A T
HL % R A B TR E o

ERXEEFZEH
REE R R CF D —FE =R
= —H IR A F T B AE
H 7S 4R [ AR 25 109% 88 DL E 2 B Rk o

REE_F - F LR F =R
= — HARAERE > BB AR 4R R
%5 Z A whi s Ah A £ B A IR 2 30%
AR -

OTHER OPERATING INCOME Hih&gEWA
2022 2021
—E2=-= - S
Note HK$’000 HK$000
R 5 FET Tt
Bank interest income SRATH B A 463 962
CCASS income Hh AR R S 2,877 -
Rebate fee income EEE- 1PN 5,050 -
Dividend income JB B A 2,632 1,233
Sundry income HAb g A 1,888 5,127
Government subsidies BT % Bl (a) 505 3,940
13,415 11,262

Note: i 5

(a) During the year, the Group recognised subsidies of
approximately HK$505,000 (2021: HK$3,782,000,
HK$150,000 and HK$8,000 respectively) in respect of
the Financial Industry Recruitment Scheme for Tomorrow
under the Financial Service and the Treasury Bureau
(2021: in respect of the Employment Support Scheme, the
Subsidy Scheme for the Securities Industry and the Property
Management Sector under Anti-epidemic Fund) of the Hong
Kong SAR Government due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE

(@) HEN > R 201978 R 9% R ORI AT
A [ R R A B A U R AT B I B
T B RS RS T T S R T 4 il e
SERVBE A7 w1 B (2 = —4F B
PR G T MR ERE - BHREED
GRS /EX-EE LIRS X 28 )]
#1505,00088 G (& ——4F 43R4
3,782,000% JT ~ 150,000 7T 58,000
Hon) 2 & B o
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BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 10. Hft Wz & 18 F 5
2022 2021
—EF-= —ER T 4R
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
B 51 FERT TH T
Bad debt recovery from loans and WA ] 5 R B AR 2 SR
advances 180 =
Fair value changes on investment BEYEZ A REEE)
properties 19 (21,457) (30,093)
Net realised losses on error trades R KR
T 5 B e 18 1 B (7) (2)
Fair value losses on financial assets at %/ AHFF A B 5 2
FVPL SR E 2~ RE R 1R (6,337) (7,196)
Realised gains on disposal/ A B DL IE H
redemption of AR N E
— Financial assets at FVPL — A REFAER
Z & E (a) 4,192 7,067
— Mandatory FVOCI — SRR A REFA
oAt 2 T R 4 936 30
Exchange difference, net FFE b8, 76 B 3R 1,797 2,075
Write-off of intangible assets fi 81 BT B 20 (451) -
Gain on disposal of property and B W) 3 MR 2 U A
equipment 950 -
Gain on disposal of loans and W B O B 2 I ER
advances 1,848 -
(18,349) (28,119)
Note: B 5T -

(a) The amount represented the proceeds from disposal of
financial assets at FVPL of HK$25,182,000 less relevant
costs and carrying value of the investments disposed of
approximately HK$20,990,000 (2021: proceeds from
disposal of financial assets at FVPL of HK$29,272,000 less
relevant costs and carrying value of the investments disposed
of approximately HK$22,205,000).

(a)

FaFEAREELRAREF ARG Z
& RilE FE 2 T 15 3K 1H 25,182,000 70
AR B A A e B R 2 I T (A
20,990,000%8 70 (& = —4F « H B i
A AREFEARLR 2 S BVE E 2 5k
1629,272,000% 7 Uk #H B A< K& © &
& 2 IR T {H £722,205,00045 75) ©

Annual Report 2022 %%k



r B B 75 8 SR B R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

11. STAFF COSTS 11. BT RAE
2022 2021
—E—-= TR T4
HK$’000 HK$°000
FTERT T T
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments: & TA(AS (G453 M 4) -
Salaries and other benefits M B H A AR A 28,651 26,321
Retirement benefit scheme contributions B RAE A 5 AL 1,118 999
29,769 27,320
12. FINANCE COSTS 12. B E B A
2022 2021
—EgE=-= - -
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT THIT
Interest on bank borrowings |G EEZFE 1,612 3,098
Interest on clients’ accounts EFHEF 2 F B 121 1,827
Interest on lease liabilities L85 A i 2 FLE 20 28
1,753 4,953
13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 13. B A E T
This is stated after charging: IASE ] F i
2022 2021
—E—-— S S
HK$’000 HK$°000
THERT THIT
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B I 4 2,720 2,720
Direct operating expenses relating to BEAEMHERAZ
investment properties that generated rental % & ¥ S B 2~
income HEKSHX 1,777 1,848
Direct operating expenses relating to BN A AR T B A Z
investment properties that did not generate % & ¥ A B 2
rental income HEREMZ 88 -
Write-off of accounts receivable B I WA R T - 193

154 GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED ###2 AR A



14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s

remuneration:

“r A TS R AR M R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

14. EERTHRARKEEM =

(@ EERITHARZNS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six AT B N (L F 4 N
(2021: six) directors were as follows: Z)ERSHZMEWT
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-ZEZ-__=A=+—HL
FE
Executive
Director
(Chief
Executive
Executive Directors Officer) Independent Non-executive Directors
YirEs
YrEs (TRAR) BUFHTES
Mr.Cham  Mr. Kam,
Mr. Hung WaiHo, Eddie Shing  Mr.SunKa ~ Mr. Siu Hi Mr. Man
Hon Man Anthony Cheuk  Ziang, Henry ~ Lam, Alick Kong Yui Total
HEXGE BEREE HEREXE ERB%E BERAE XEHiE a8
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TEn TiEx T TEn TiEx Tirn TEn
(note i) (note i)
(H &) (R ki)
Fees s - - - 120 120 120 360
Other emoluments: Kl
— Salaries and other benefits — 58 AR ()
(note ii) 145 392 46 . = . 1,063
- Contributions to retirement — — & R Af 1 ¢ # 2
benefit schemes 14 2 18 - - - 54
- Performance and discretionary  —F 5 RERTEAL (ki)
bonus (note ii) 31 49 53 . - i 133
Total emoluments aMe 29 463 497 120 120 120 1,610
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BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION - continued
(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s

remuneration — continued

Year ended 31 March 2021

14. EERTHRARREEM =

— i

(@ EERTHARZNE -&

BE_F_—H=H=t+—HI

A
Executive
Director
(Chief
Executive
Officer) Executive Directors Independent Non-executive Directors
UhEs
(frH4H) s £ BikufrEs
Mr. Cham Mr. Kam,
Mr. Hung WaiHo, EddieShing  Mr.SunKa  Mr SiuHi Mr. Man
Hon Man Anthony Cheuk  Ziang, Henry  Lam, Alick Kong Yui Total
HEEE HAEEE RERE HrErE @BEERE  UISEE EL
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
T T T T T T T
(note i) (note i)
(Bt (i i)
Fees e - - - 120 120 120 360
Other emoluments: Hfms
- Salaries and other benefits 5 EMARR (k)
(note ii) 2% 392 45 - - - 1,062
- Contributions to retirement — — 4 {RAEFFHEI it 3
benefit schemes 14 ) 18 - - - 54
- Performance and discretionary — 5 RMELAL (Wakis)
bonus (note iii) 31 49 53 - - - 133
Total emoluments i 290 463 496 120 120 120 1,609

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION - continued

(a)

Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s

remuneration — continued

Notes:

@

(ii)

(iii)

Mr. Hung Hon Man resigned as the Chief Executive
Officer on 31 May 2022 and Mr. Kam, Eddie Shing
Cheuk was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer on
1 June 2022.

The balances shown above for executive directors,
namely Mr. Hung Hon Man, Mr. Cham Wai Ho,
Anthony and Mr. Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk were
mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

Performance and discretionary bonus is determined with
regard to the Group’s performance, the individual’s

performance and comparable market statistics.

There was no arrangement under which a director or

the chief executive officer waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration in the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

In addition, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any

of the directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining

the Group or as a compensation for loss of office for the
years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

14. EERTHRARKEEM =

— &
(@ EERTHARZNS -&

3t

(i) WEXERER-F__FHH
=+ — HBHAEATBOAR R > mHK
fRise e —F = N — H
TAL BATBUAEH -

(i) EFVABEATES (BB
B RS S R B H R AR e )
WA B8R E B R AL
F B A 4R ) 2 g i e 3t 2 R
W o

(i) B LW AL AL TS 2 BRASE [ )
KRB R R BLAT LT 8 A5
TR T R E -

S 4 HE S oA T B AR AR R B ] R
BEEZERE T F=H
= — H 1L AE EE AR B R e it
Oh s B E DR AR R TS
A=+ —HIE4EFE > 4 4 i % 1] 4T
o] 3 5 ST P 4 o A 2 8SE n BR A AR
B 2 o 4 s A IR BE 8 > 51 A iR A

(CEA
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BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 4. EERITHEAIREEMNS
OFFICER’S AND EMPLOYEES’ — 18
REMUNERATION - continued
(b) Employees’ remuneration b) EEMS

The five highest paid individuals of the Group do not

include directors of the Company for both years.

The emoluments of the five (2021: five) highest paid

individuals for the years are set out as follows:

7 A T 7 TR 1 4 2 A o7 B R
AR A LA FA L F#EE -

Tfr (ZF =4 Tifr) e
PR % 55 4R B 2 PRI T

2022 2021
—E-= - e
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THs T
Salaries and other emoluments 3 4 M H At T 4 5,078 5,931
Discretionary bonus 1 155 A6 AL 172 226
Contribution to retirement benefits B ARAE At #) At K

schemes 36 72
5,286 6,229

The emoluments of the individuals are within the 45 2 T 4 A S DA 6

following bands:

HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 JC £ 1,000,000 JC
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 %% 7T £.1,500,0007% JC
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7 £2,000,0007% JC

Number of individuals

EEHA
2022 2021
—E—-= TR T AR
1 —
4 4
— 1

There was no arrangement under which the five
highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration for the years ended 31 March 2022
and 2021. In addition, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for the years ended 31
March 2022 and 2021.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE

7 408 A7 A g i A1 1) A il S ]
EHMFERE—F L F
= — B R AFE BEAEAT
P O ALERBE T
SEERCE D FE A=t
A S 48 ) 1A v e 1R N L
SO B > 1R 2 105 i SR AR S B 2
i i B BRAE B 2 B A 1
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15. TAXATION

The profits tax rate for the first HK$2,000,000 assessable
profits arising from Hong Kong of qualifying entities will
be taxed at 8.25%, and assessable profits arising from Hong
Kong above HK$2,000,000 will continue be taxed at the
rate of 16.5% under two-tiered profits tax rates regime. As
only one of the subsidiaries in the Group is eligible to elect
the two-tiered profits tax rates, profits of the remaining
subsidiaries of the Group will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%.

For the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered

profits tax rates regime.

The tax provision in respect of operations in the United
Kingdom is calculated at the rate of 19% on the subsidiary’s
estimated assessable profits for the year based on existing

legislation, interpretation and practices in respect thereof.

rE MR R M R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

15. B8

R 5 1| 45 Bl Bl =R i 5k o - A B S
e W6 2R 19 12,000,000 0 E 35 Bl
i A A 8. 259% 1Y Bt F B A A AR B - T
e 9 72 2E 592,000,0009 7€ LA L Y HE
LR i P A A LA 16.5% O BE R BB -
H A A S5 [ A 12— D BfFJB 2 W4 A 258
R A5 B Bl 2R A il 2 B A > A AR
{3 B B 2 ) 2 i P A A DL 16.5 % 1
# — Bl R EEL o

BE-F - ERF A=A
St BB R - i 8 B4 A
18 48 1

A B S [ 8 1 o SELHEE A S AR L T
J& 2> w1 AF A R RE B R A LL19%
B RAEAR B BATIE G - R
BlgEA

2022 2021
—E-CF TR AR
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
! FRET T T
Current tax BV 57 B 1R
Hong Kong &t
Hong Kong Profits Tax R E ) 39,559 55,682
Under provision in prior years A A A AN 19,624 901
59,183 56,583
United Kingdom pai
Overseas tax HEZ AN I 1,848 1,878
Over provision in prior years L A T2 43 1 (90) -
1,758 1,878
60,941 58,461
Deferred tax i 3E B TR
Origination and reversal of temporary Y IR 2 10 E AR I
differences ] 36 27 95
Income tax expense Ji 15 B B 52 60,968 58,556
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BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

15.

16.

TAXATION - continued 15. HIE— &
Reconciliation of income tax expense FBHRAX YR
2022 2021
—E_-— - S
HK$°000 HKS$’000
FERT T# T
Profit before taxation 5T % A 156,540 306,542
Income tax at applicable tax rate 278 B R B g B 25,665 50,413
Tax effect of expenses not deductible NI 0 B 3 2 B
for tax purpose 20,683 20,131
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax D HAR B A 2 Bl 5 2
purpose (2,517) (10,538)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised oA it 0 T s 18 2 B 5 Y B 227 1,658
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax B DA AT oK e 58 B TH s 15
losses (2,538) (3,7006)
Under provision in prior years DL 45 B 454 AN 2 19,534 901
Effect of different tax rates of the subsidiary i HAth =] 75 @ 75 LZ W}%
operating in other jurisdictions YNGIPANCIE TR 329 315
Others /ﬂ\:f@ (415) (618)
Income tax expense for the year A AR 5 T 45 B B S 60,968 58,556
DIVIDENDS 16. & 5
2022 2021
—s=-= TR T AR
HK$’000 HK$°000
FERT T# T
Final dividend for prior financial year, paid & ﬁL o b B B 2 R
— HKO.5 cent (2021: HK0.4 cent) per JBe B — 5 0. SHE Il
share (g AT A 0431 48,314 38,650
Interim dividend for current financial year, EﬁL Z'—‘ EZI‘B[QE Z H A
paid — HKO0.5 cent (2021: HKO.5 cent) per & & — & 0.5l
share (Qfgiﬁﬁi D 0.5l 48,313 48,314
96,627 86,964

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March
HKO0.5 cent) per share,
amounting to approximately HK$48,314,000 (2021:
HK$48,314,000) has been proposed by the directors of the

Company and is subject to the approval by the owners of

2022 of HKO0.5 cent (2021:

the Company in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE

0.5 Al (=

48,314,0004% 1)

AAFEFEBRAME T 4F=
H =4 — B 1k 4 B R 38 K 0 IS 19 )
T 05W ) o
w40 7548,314,000% 0 (—F —— 4 ¢

o I S 2R A JE i iR R
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BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE 17. R EF

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on
profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

during the year as follows:

RRARAS 2% ) Ji W 57 A N A i A1) B 4F
A B AT 3 2 AR M T 3 RS 2
HREAANZFEREMT

Earnings 2R
2022 2021
—E-CF TR AR
HK$°000 HK$°000
TERT TH T
Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted F it 7155 45 it FE A< K% 48
earnings per share B 2 B A
Profit for the year attributable to equity AN B RHE T A AL
shareholders of the Company B R i ) 60,185 189,640
Number of shares R EE
2022 2021
—E—-— TR T AR
’000 ’000
1 i
Weighted average number of ordinary shares, Ff it &l 5 &5 i FE A
for the purpose of basic and diluted B A vy 5 R 2 A%
earnings per share JI0RE ST 35 i 8 9,662,706 9,662,706
HK cents HK cents
78 4l AL
Earnings per share: g A
Basic AR 0.62 1.96
Dilutive (note (a)) HEW (K 5E () N/ATE R 1.96
Note: B 5

(a) For the year ended 31 March 2022, diluted earnings per
share was the same as the basic earnings per share as there
were no potential dilutive ordinary shares in existence during

the year.

For the year ended 2021, diluted earnings per share was the
same as basic earnings per share as the potential new ordinary
shares to be issued on exercise of the outstanding share
options during the year under the Company’s share option
scheme have an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per
share. The share options were cancelled on 20 November
2020.

(@ BME_ZFT - _F=H=+—HIHF
FE > B R 2 R B A I L AR 8 R AR
] AR R] 2o A A S 4 R 7 4 L A A

WE DH T A IRERE > BRI
] B A JSe S A g M AR - Ji PR 2 46 R
TR AR ) s FBCHEE ) SRS 1 R AT G
Jil B WA R 1 o R 1S 8 A F) YR 707 5
5 3B S e A g A A S R 2B o
EHERMECR —E _FE+—H -+
H LS -
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BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 18. MERRE
Right-of-use Right-of- Motor
assets - Office e assets - Leaschold ~ vehicles and Office  Furniture and
premises  Leasehold land Buildings  improvements yacht equipment fixtures Toul
[EREEE  KREEE ig
-BORE  -HELH g% WEEE  REREE  BOERE  BAREE fif
HKS'000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS$000 HKS'000 HKS000
T T T T T T T T
Cost or Valuation AAgfkE
A1 April 2020 REEZRENA-A - 103,780 37,754 1475 7974 3 152 174412
Additions KE 2064 - 1,599 - 059 797 02 5,581
Additions - acqisicon FE-WERELA

of subsidiaries - 370,025 54,975 105 = B S 425335
Adjustment on revaluarion B - - (5,240) . - - - (5,240)
Transferfrom investment propertes 4% F #4105 (Wt 19)

(note 19) - 98,783 0117 - - - - 101,000
At 31 March 2021 RoZ--E=ZR=1-H 2064 572,588 91,309 1,580 28,633 4304 4 700,888
Comprising i
Araost etk 2064 572,588 - 1580 2863 4304 214 609,583
At valarion flik - - 91.305 - - - - 91305
At 31 March 2021 RoZ--EZR=1-0 2064 572,588 91,305 1,580 28,633 4304 4 700,888
A Apel 001 RoF=-EWA-H 2064 571588 91,305 1580 B3 4304 4 700 gss
Additions KE - - 17,506 18,062 - 1,34 60 36,973
Adjustment on revaluation EALE § - - (17,066) - . - - (17,066)
Transfer to investment properdies - SRR &£ (H3H19)

(note 19) - (103,370) (36,600) - - - - (139.970)
Disposa hil - - - - (1,200) - - (1,200)
Wiite off fis - - - (5,100) - (2829) (85) (3,016)
At 31 March 2022 R-F-2F=R=1-8 2264 69,18 55,145 14,336 143 2004 18 571,609
Comprising: i
Araos ik 2264 69,18 - 14536 743 284 18 516,464
Atvaluation gl - - 55,145 = - - - 55,145
At31 March 202 H-§ZZEZR=1-R 2,064 469,18 5,145 14,536 74% 284 18 S7L609
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT -
continued

Right-of-use Right-of-

assets - Office use asefs -
premises  Leasehold land Buildings

ERRRE  RRRKE
-HORE  -BErH gF
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000
Tk T T

Accumulated amortisation/ ZiteE/fE

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

18. R KR — &

Motor
Leaschold ~ vehicles and Office  Furniture and
improvements yacht equipment fixtures Toul

i
W358 NEREE  BOERE  GRREE aif
HKSOm  HKS00 HKSOW  HKSO  HKSO0
T T T T T

depreciation
A1 April 2020 REFZRENA-T - 3,951 - 1,136 27,193 26% 8 68,025
Charges i 755 13,679 27 m in 74 3l 18,638
Eliminated on revaluation EAiie = = 297 = - - - (2.977)
A3l March 2021 RoEZ-FE=R=1-R 795 50,630 = 1406 27,665 3,130 120 83,706
Charges 3 113 15,088 2715 3,700 316 705 37 2389
Eliminated on revaluation FIFIEY - = (2,719 - - = = (2,715
Transer o investment propery —~— BEEHENE (19)

(note 19) - (3,23 - - . - . (39.3)
Disposal HE - - - - (1,200 - = (1,200
Wit off ] - - - (5,106 - (289) (89) (8016)
At31 March 2022 W-B-ZEZR=1-R 1,887 26,686 - - 26,781 1,010 7 56,436
Net cartying values FaE
At31 March 202 WBZE=f=1-5 3 2532 5,145 14,536 652 1,814 17 515,173
At31 March 2021 RoEZ-EZR=1-1 1509 521,938 91,303 174 968 1174 94 617,182

At 24 May 2021, one of the properties with carrying value
of approximately HK$100,738,000 were transferred from
property and equipment to investment properties upon
change of its use to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. In the opinion of the directors, the estimated
fair value of the properties at date of transfer amounted
to approximately HK$437,243,000 which is estimated by
directors making reference to the valuation from Prudential
Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited (“PSL”), an independent

professional qualified valuer.

WoE T —AERLA M HE S Hp—
T J T E 49 £5100,738,000%5 7T 1Y 9 2%
DR o A B BORHL 4 Mg A B B AR
WA R EREY
¥oHEHRL > ZEYENEREA W
Al 5T 2 o (B &) £5437,243,000% TG »
T R 2 o A EARAG(E
AT H WA R AR (THETD 1
R ENE
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BE-_ZT-__"F#=FA=+—HIFEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT -

continued

At 31 March 2022, the property interests in leasehold land
and the buildings thereon (including the whole or part of
undivided share in the underlying land) in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$497,677,000 (2021: HK$613,263,000)
are held by the Group as the registered owner. Those
property interests were acquired from the previous registered
owners by making lump sum payments at the upfront.
Except for the variable amounts to be charged by the
government subsequently that are reviewed regularly with
reference to the rateable values, for example, there are no
ongoing payments to be made under the terms of the land
lease. At the end of the reporting period, the remaining

lease term is about 25 years (2021: 26 years).

The buildings of the Group were valued at 31 March
2022 by PSL (2021: PSL) on market value basis. PSL
is not connected with the Group, and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of

similar properties in the relevant locations.

In estimating the fair value of the buildings, the highest and

best use of buildings is the current use.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s buildings, the
management of the Group uses market-observable data
to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the management of the Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation of the
Group’s buildings. At the end of each reporting period, the
management of the Group works closely with the qualified
external valuers to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for Level 3 fair value
measurement. The management of the Group would first
consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be
derived from observable quoted prices in the active market.
When Level 2 inputs are not available, the management of
the Group would adopt valuation techniques that include
Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair
value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be

reported to the directors of the Company.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE

18. MERZRE &

W Z - =ZA=+—H %
497,677,000 70 (—ZF ——4F : 613,263,000
WD) M AL E b e H TR
FERELS (B HEAA B b il 2 35 B 38 2 A
B R AR EAE AR ETE
FeA o 5% 55 Wy 3EHE £5 J9 DAHT ) — Mk
A5tk 7 2K ) 6 RE 2E IR o BRBUR
HA% € 2 IR AR 2= A0 (8 2 BI85 AT
WCHR Y B A B AN > AN > AR PR b
FHL 5 M0 K > I 4 R 4 A5 3K o A R 4 3
Ko BT ERA A2SE (ZF - —
4 264E) o

AEEZET I RWEST (CF 2~
T R F D F A=
F 2 T (B A AT A (E « B AT AR
A 1 37 0 el L EL Al 5 2 AR
R AT B MR SR ) 3 2 A (L AR B

Al FH T 2N S B IR M 2
Jeds 3 A& 2y R A

7 £ [ 14 TR R ) T A T 35 mT B
N AR AT A R BT L A
{6 o 550 LG g A RO A T > AR SR
A LR M WA =7 B AR A
(LRI A T il A S A 4 55 o R A O
JAR - A4 Y 4 2R BRI 5 A
fili (A E A A > LR ST 5L kg &
B R A 7 8 R 3 O FUE R R
AR - AEE NS IE G HEEE
RSN PN ¢ RN 4PN € ¥
A i T3 AT B R A B AR o
TV AT B 20 Wi A BRI > AR 2T Y
L (o PR B A 56 3 g A RGR Y
RN TR WEEN A REEBEX
SEB)IF > S B) 1 R g AR L R
HEE <



18. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT -

continued

One of the key unobservable inputs used in valuing the
buildings is the unit sale rate ranging from approximately
HK$6,000 to HK$38,000 per square foot (2021:
HK$6,000 to HK$32,000 per square foot), taking into
account age, location and other individual factors such as
size and levels of building. A decrease in the unit sale rate
would result in decrease in fair value measurement of the

buildings by the same percentage decrease and vice versa.

Buildings are classified as Level 3 under fair value hierarchy
at 31 March 2022 and 2021. There were no transfers into
or out of Level 3 during years ended 31 March 2022 and
2021.

If the buildings had not been revalued, they would
have been included in these consolidated financial
statements at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses of approximately
HK$87,210,000 (2021: HK$72,960,000).

The Group had pledged certain leasechold land and
buildings to secure banking facilities granted to the Group
during the year. Details of the pledges are set out in note 43

to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

18. R KR — &

M BT R H o —TH Rk
KA BB RENHERE N THE
*F- 75 I6,000%5 JC £38,000%5 ) (&
T4 A W6,000%5 JC 32,000
Won) > H R T A - Hh R A
85I R Can ALK ANFAEE) o B
PHEET A RS FEZ A AERE
F AR B o BRI T R R - R ZIRIR o

W oE D FER FE —F = A
=+—H BFEESBEAEAREEE
B EWME _F L ER E
FEA =R FER I E A
B B3 o

i 25 O AE AL > B AR T e
SRR B B T K B G (E RS R
DL #187,210,000% Jo (=& = —4f
72,960,000%5 7C) FE47 & WM LS IE -

AL AR B T AL i A
THEA > F I A 4R B A SR AT 5 B A
AR o A BRAE R 2 AR BN AR
SV 5 R R WA 43
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BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REYXE
2022 2021
—E—-= TR T4
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
! TR T# T
Fair Value ARE
At the beginning of the reporting period 7 ¥ 25 i 47 851,849 874,074
Addition — Capital expenditure WE-EARMX 9,156 9,573
Addition — Acquisition of subsidiaries N B — R - 75,000
Transfer from (to) property and e () YE
equipment Fe i 18 100,738 (101,000)
Revaluation arising from transfer of VENE L YRS
property and equipment to investment Yy 2 FEE A= Y Al
properties 18 336,505 =
Transfer to assets held for sale 2R S 30 (431,000) -
Net change in fair value recognised in B 2 R 2 A AUE
profit or loss bl R 10 (21,457) (30,093)
Exchange differences FFE 58,25 %R (9,386) 24,295
At the end of the reporting period AR A R 836,405 851,849
2022 2021
—EgE=-= - -
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
i 1 FET TH#IT
Located in: AN
Hong Kong i (a) 609,771 615,829
The United Kingdom i [5] (b) 226,634 236,020
836,405 851,849
2022 2021
—E2=-= R
HK$°000 HK$°000
FERT TH T
Unrealised loss on investment properties T A H A I 25 K s 1R 2
included in other gain and losses BEYERE B EHE (21,457) (30,093)
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BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

19. REY =&
BERHE-FRRBA
(@) BREEBZREWH

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued
Leasing arrangement — as lessee

(a) Investment properties located in Hong Kong

At the end of the reporting period, the investment
properties of approximately HK$609,771,000 (2021:
HK$615,829,000) are held under head leases with the
remaining lease term of 25 to 839 years (2021: 26 to
840 years).

The property interests in investment properties thereon
(including the whole or part of undivided share in
the underlying land) in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$609,771,000 (2021: HK$615,829,000) are held
by the Group as the registered owner. Those property
interests were acquired from the previous registered
owners by making lump sum payments at the upfront.
Except for the variable amounts to be charged by the
government subsequently that are reviewed regularly
with reference to the rateable values, for example, there
are no ongoing payments to be made under the terms

of the land lease.

Investment properties located in Hong Kong with
fair value of approximately HK$557,101,000 (2021:
HK$563,499,000) at 31 March 2022 were valued
by PSL (2021: PSL). PSL is not connected with the
Group and has appropriate qualification and recent
experience in the valuation of similar properties in
the relevant location. The valuation was arrived at by
adopting the direct comparison method based on price
information of comparable properties and adjusted
to reflect the condition and locations of the subject

properties.

The valuation of other investment properties situated
in Hong Kong with fair value of approximately
HK$52,670,000 (2021: HK$52,330,000) was
performed by the directors of the Company with
reference to recent market prices of similar properties
at similar locations at 31 March 2022 and 2021.

B%&ﬁbﬁﬂik » £1609,771, oooi%fn
(ZFE—4F : 615,829,000¥ C) Z
WEYERMIBFRHAFFAMER T
A ?25%83935 S Satc O
265 8404F)

#1609,771,000%5 7T (&~ —4F :
615,829,000% 70) I FH B &Y ¥
(W) SEAE 2 (B35 B b 1) 2350
SRS AN ] 43 BB H A SE
BBTEFIA - S WEMRT)
PART ] — AT 307 S A& Ri 2
F U o BREUM HAR & 2 IR ERR
ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁffﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁcﬁxmf?ﬁ/\

Hh o ldn > KR R S >

ﬁi?%mﬁ’fj‘ﬂ?\ ©

B ZREWER —F
FZHA=Z 1T —HZAREL
557,101,000% 76 (= F = — 4
563,499,000% Jt) - J7 i W @ AT
(22: A PEAT) AFT o ‘iﬁﬂﬁ
BRLAS 42 [ 3 e R 4 SiF L
ziéfff%&w ”ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁfﬁw%%
ZAGERR S - ARG E TR ] B
) 3 27 B R} ITT R A L LU
Pl £ F R R DA e 2 2 R
T b B o

WEEE ERE AR
ZHA=ZF—HIEMEEE > RAH
W25 Y 2
Z AT B ER > AR F U2
HoAt 1% & W AT E - A AE
#15452,670,000% 70 (—F ——4F ¢
52,330,000 70) °
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BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

Leasing arrangement — as lessee — continued

(a)

(%)

Investment properties located in Hong Kong —
continued

One of the key unobservable inputs used in valuing
the investment properties located in Hong Kong is the
unit sale rate of approximately HK$5,900 per square
foot (2021: HK$5,800 per square foot) for industrial
buildings, ranging from HK$20,000 to HK$25,000
per square foot (2021: ranging from HK$18,000 to
HK$27,000 per square foot) for residential buildings
and HK$48,000 per square foot (2021: HK$47,000
per square foot) for commercial building, taking into
account age, location and other individual factors such
as size and levels of building. An increase/decrease in
the unit sale rate would result in an increase/decrease

in fair value measurement of an investment property.

Investment properties located in the United Kingdom

Investment properties in the United Kingdom with
fair value of approximately HK$226,634,000 (2021:
HK$236,020,000) at 31 March 2022, were valued by
PSL (2021: PSL). PSL has appropriate qualifications
and recent experience in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The commercial
units were valued by an income approach of valuation

with reference to market rental value.

The key unobservable inputs used in valuing the
investment properties located in the United Kingdom
are the market rent at a weighted average of £59.45
(equivalent to approximately HK$611) per square
foot (2021: £57.54 (equivalent to approximately
HK$617) per square foot) and equivalent yield at
4.50% per annum (2021: 4.30% per annum). An
increase/decrease in the market rent and in turn an
increase/decrease in the equivalent yield would result

in an increase/decrease in fair value of an investment

property.
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19. REYE - &
HEZH - EREBA &

(a)

(b)

WREEBZREYH &

&Y AL E T —IEE
A 3 SR A B R TR
2 B 8 B E A0 BT 75 R 5,900
JC (3 —4F - B-F 97 15,800
Wot) EFEREZHEAHEE
A - 45-F- 75 IR 20,000 5 7T £ 25,000
B (ZE - —F N PETI
IR 18,0004k 7T 27,0007 7C) M ¥
EREZ B EEAS TR
48,0009 7 (—F ——4F : H T
47,0009 JC) - & O % &
B~ b B0 EC A R R R R (n B
KANFIEE) - B e " LT
TR X2 A AR
L) N

WREEZREY%E
PRl 2 WEWHENR —F
EZA=Z+T—HZARMBELAE
226,634,000 7C (= F = —4F ¢
236,020,000% J6) > T3 B B &= 1T
(=4 W) fhsh o Wl
AT B A A 0 A B A > B
B 2 G St S A T b
(DR7E TRy Tl Do
LT 58 2 25 T (B AR 4 DA £ 75 3
FTAk1H -
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JIT R A 3 4 S B S A R 2
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

Leasing arrangement — as lessee — continued

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties located in Hong Kong and the United Kingdom,
the management of the Group uses market-observable data
to the extent it is available. At the end of each reporting
period, the management of the Group works closely with
the qualified external valuers to establish and determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for Level 3 fair
value measurement. The management of the Group will
first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be
derived from observable quoted prices in the active market.
When Level 2 inputs are not available, the management
of the Group will adopt valuation techniques that include
Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair
value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be

reported to the directors of the Company.

Investment properties located in Hong Kong and the
United Kingdom are classified as Level 3 under fair value
hierarchy at 31 March 2022 and 2021. There were no
transfers into or out of Level 3 during years ended 31
March 2022 and 2021. Investment properties amounted
to HK$69,000,000 (2021: HK$Nil) were pledged at 31
March 2022.

Leasing arrangement — as lessor

All of the Group’s investment properties located in Hong
Kong and the United Kingdom interests held under leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and

accounted for as investment properties.

Certain investment properties are leased to independent
third parties for a term of 2 to 5 years (2021: 2 to 10 years),
which had an initial non-cancellable lease term of 1 to 3
years (2021: 1 to 3 years). Some leases provide the lessees
with options to renew the leases upon expiry at new terms.
The tenant also bears the management fees and amounts
charged by the government such as the rates levied on the

investment properties.

The details of the lease income from operating leases are set

out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.
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19. REVME-&
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BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued
Leasing arrangement — as lessor — continued

The investment properties are subject to residual value
risk. The lease contracts, as a result, include a provision on
residual value guarantee based on which the Group has the
right to charge the tenant for any damage to the investment
properties at the end of the lease. Besides, the Group has
purchased insurance for certain investment properties to
mitigate the loss that may arise from accidents or physical

damages of the properties.

Below is a maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments

to be received from the leasing of investment properties.

19. REYHE—E

BERE—EBLEA—&

V) 32 7R 32 TR M5 (I - OB
FLEE & 40 5 — TR0 86 £ (6L 46 4R
o BRI - A S A R L A5 B
43 0 3 T 4 LS R
BEAb - A% L B AR T
[ 25 41 o ) 3 2 BT SR & 25 F 42
L EZIIE TR

PATR 7% 4 1€ AH B 50 W 26 O 2 R i
BIAH B A A B 23 A o

2022 2021

—E2=-= - S

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT TH#IC

Year 1 54 13,097 13,348
Year 2 W AE 12,021 12,492
Year 3 o 10,941 11,444
Year 4 55 Y 4R 10,828 11,100
Year 5 5 FLAE 13,819 11,132
After year 5 5 AR — 14,208
60,706 73,724
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20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20 BEEE
Trading
rights in
Stock Club
Exchange  memberships Total
B X
P T efes &t
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T TH# T T#T
Cost JoN
At 1 April 2020 R_F_EFENHA —H 2,172 6,712 8,884
Addition — Acquisition of IS B — W S N T
subsidiaries 550 - 550
At 31 March 2021 and N_FR - —F=ZHA=—HK
1 April 2021 “EF WA —H 2,722 6,712 9,434
Write off T 5 - (451) (451)
At 31 March 2022 R-ZEBZ-Z=ZH=ZA=+-—H 2,722 6,261 8,983
Accumulated impairment losses 2 5t i B /& 18
At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021 j* & “FFMH—H -
and 31 March 2022 “EF D FEEA=ETH K
—E--H=A=+-—H 71 400 471
Carrying value REE
At 31 March 2022 R-ZB-ZZ-$=A=+—-H 2,651 5,861 8,512
At 31 March 2021 A Skt S & It el =| 2,651 6,312 8,963

The management of the Group determined that certain
trading rights amounting to approximately HK$500,000
(2021: HK$500,000) were no longer utilised to generate
profits to the Group. For the purpose of impairment testing
on these trading rights, the recoverable amount has been
determined based on secondary market prices less cost
of disposal and no impairment was made at 31 March
2022 and 2021. The recoverable amounts of other trading
rights with carrying value of approximately HK$2,151,000
(2021: HK$2,151,000) held by the Group have been
determined with reference to the recoverable amounts based
on a value-in-use calculation. Details of the impairment
test on other trading rights are set out in note 22 to the

consolidated financial statements.

A AR B 2 g R B #1500,000 I
(& —4F 1 500,000% 70) 2 3¢ 5 1
TEASHE I DA B A 45 1B 7 A Ui B - AE 3
WM 55 58 ) WE B AT Dok (AR 0 BRE > LT i
(] <> B O MR 4% — 5 Tl 45 M B8 s S R
KRR - A FAFERF . —
EZH =4 H M o A
MR T E £ 492,151,000 0 (—&F ——
F 1 2,151,0004 70) 2 HAh 3 7 #ER A]
Wl G5 - B2 F e SR o IRAR
it P A (S 05 vk T R o HoAth 32 ) M
3 T 15 O SR G B i
FE22 o
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BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS — continued

Intangible assets amounting to approximately HK$5,861,000
(2021: HK$6,312,000) represent club memberships. For
the purpose of impairment testing on club memberships,
the recoverable amount has been determined based on
the second-hand market price less cost of disposal. No
impairment loss was recognised in years ended 31 March

2022 and 2021 with reference to the recoverable amount of

the club memberships.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the trading

rights and club memberships have indefinite useful lives.

20. BILEE —

RIEL TE I

HL A 488 KR ok 7 439 -

2y B 495,861,000 JC (& . —4F ¢
63120001%77: ZHEVEERTNG

o WL &P HE X WEAWT E - K
Tﬂ&@é%ﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁgifﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ
B RS T E e %%@Fﬁ‘é‘ﬂ*%z‘:iuﬁz
Bl &FE NBRE_F R CF
——4%=H EJr*EIJ}:EEZJfﬁHEM

EYNFE T VRES R YR IR T

21. GOODWILL 21. &
Broking
HK$°000
T T
Cost B
At 1 April 2020 R EFFENA —H 15,441
Addition — Acquisition of a subsidiary B — W — [ 8 A A 2,000
At 31 March 2021, 1 April 2021 R_F D F=ZA=+—H  ZF 4
and 31 March 2022 WH—HEZZE-Z-=HA=+—8H 17,441
Impairment WA
At 1 April 2020, 1 April 2021 AR ZRFENMH —H > ZF 4N H
and 31 March 2022 —HMEZ=ZZBE-_=—_F=ZA=+—H -
Carrying values REE
At 31 March 2022 R-E-=_F=H=+—H 17,441
At 31 March 2021 WoE - —H£=H=+—H 17,441

Detail of the impairment test on goodwill are set out in

note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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22. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

AND OTHER TRADING RIGHTS

Certain trading rights with indefinite useful lives and
goodwill set out in notes 20 and 21 to the consolidated
financial statements have been allocated to the relevant
separate broking cash generating units (“CGUs”). The
carrying amounts of goodwill, net of accumulated
impairment losses and certain trading rights, net of
accumulated impairment losses, at 31 March 2022 and
2021 allocated to the CGUs are as follows:

rE MR R M R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

22. BEREMRZE 2R ERR

WO 7 A BB R M 520 212 %5 T
$HE L 7 o ) 4F 0 32 ) HE % 7 4 TR
25 A0 TR 11 28 ST 46 A0 B B B (T A B B
fil) e REZBZ R -F - —F =
A=+ —H o285 AL 2 2 (Fn
B 25t (A1) &5 T35 5 6 (Jokk
Z M) 2 IEmEm T

Goodwill Trading rights

BE X5
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#IT T#TT
Carrying value at 1 April 2020 RoEFE_FENA—H
Z MR A 15,441 1,601
Addition — Acquisition of a subsidiary T B — U — AT Bt B 2 ) 2,000 550
Carrying value at 31 March 2021, N_FE—F= H
1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 =t—H" —
WH—HAK=ZFBZZF
EA=t+—RZKREE 17,441 2,151

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs containing goodwill
and certain trading rights have been determined based
on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 5-year period and at a discount
rate of 12% (2021: 12%) and at zero (2021: zero) growth
rate. A key assumption for the value-in-use calculation is
the zero growth rate, which is determined based on past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of the assumptions would not cause
the aggregate recoverable amount of the CGUs to fall
below the aggregate carrying amount of the CGUs and no
impairment was made at 31 March 2022 and 2021.

EEMELE TG BB A2
A i (] 4 A AR PR 7E R (AT AR
MEE - AT RIE R E AR B
EBTEBE LI12% (TF T4 1 12%)
ZHBIR B (CF AR 2
WMRERESH SR EEN - iiﬁz
A REEF AR EE/RE - m
i%%ﬁffwﬁuﬁt_z%fﬁ&ﬁﬁ@
BTG R W o B E A
5 AT AR 5% 2 AT ] A 3R] RE S B A
@%ﬁﬁ”fﬁ. ﬂZmnfTHﬁ(E‘ %EEJ‘E
WA BB A 2 AR IREE > ik =%
SR E - —F=H=+—Hif
S A M M -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

23. OTHER ASSETS 23. HWEE

Other assets mainly represent statutory and other deposits
with various exchanges and clearing houses and are

non-interest bearing.

HoAth & & EBARN T AR5 B K
AT 235 E I KA B o A B AR
jﬁ*%‘t‘a%\ ¢

24. LOANS AND ADVANCES 24, ERRBK

2022 2021
—E-= —E T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THs T
Fixed-rate loan receivables TE ] R B 444,688 529,293
Less: Loss allowances W s IR A (48,024) (21,944)
396,664 507,349
Secured PEE il 167,301 234,531
Unsecured 4 A1 17 229,363 272,818
396,664 507,349

Analysed as: T B
Current i) 387,236 416,906
Non-current FF i B 9,428 90,443
396,664 507,349

At 31 March 2022, loans and advances with carrying
amount of approximately HK$167,301,000 (2021:
HK$234,531,000) are secured by first mortgage of
properties in Hong Kong with an aggregate market value of
approximately HK$389,450,000 (2021: HK$556,460,000).

The fixed rate loan receivables carry interest ranging
from 8% to 15% (2021: ranging from 8% to 24%) per
annum. The net outstanding balances are repayable on the
respective maturity dates from 2022 to 2025 (2021: from
2021 to 2025).

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks and
loss allowance for ECL of loans and advances is set out in

note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.
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W FEHFEZH =+ —H o REE
54 #9167,301,000% 70 (=& — —4F ¢
234,531,000%5 7 ) 2 B S Bk i AT
(B 75 41389,450,000%5 70 (& —— 4
556,460,000 70) 2 FHHEY) 25—
5 7E B 4K o

1 52 1 35 B i 55 2 A T8 15
(% A : A TR F24E) 26 F
AT B - R ORI A BRI %
FECF R (CE M CF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 25. B BRIA
2022 2021
—E—-— TR T 4R
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
B 5 FET T
Accounts receivable arising from the e o S R AR
business of dealing in securities: Z MEUARIA -
— Cash clients -3 (a) 9,235 8,735
— Margin clients: —REEE (b)
— Directors and their close family —EH LB FEZ
members B KRB 185,463 290,077
— Other margin clients —HhfRhELES 2,928,045 3,521,227
- HKSCC —BHBAE 12,302 22,462
— Broker —&H - 350
Accounts receivable from futures clearing & & 4 5 & £ 5
house arising from the business of hE AR B
dealing in futures contracts B8 2 e E TE 25,448 16,252
3,160,493 3,859,103
Less: Loss allowances W R A (334,097) (204,021)
2,826,396 3,655,082

The normal settlement terms of accounts receivable from
cash clients and securities clearing house are two days
after trade date while for accounts receivable from futures
clearing house is one day after trade date. All the accounts
receivable (net of loss allowance), except for accounts
receivables from margin clients, are expected to be recovered

within one year.

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks and
loss allowance for ECL of accounts receivable is set out in

note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

MEWC B 4 % F Rl 57 45 0T Z HRIA Y
IEWASEI R A 5 HAR R H ik
W8 45 5 P 2 MR TEL Y IE 45 0 /5 52
HHE—H - BREBWREST T 2R
JEAL > B A RO TH (411 B sl 18 485 )
T TEH S — 4 R[] o

A B A B2 1 T 3 2 £ LB DA R M Wi
MRIA 2 MR S 1R 2 e 8 8 2 &
B HWOR AR A B R M T o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-__"F#=FA=+—HIFEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued

Notes:

(a)

Included in the accounts receivable from cash clients
are debtors with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$133,000 (2021: HK$161,000) which are past due at the
end of the reporting period but which the directors of the
Company consider not to be impaired as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and a substantial portion

of the carrying amount is subsequently settled.

In respect of accounts receivable from cash clients which are

past due but not impaired at the end of the reporting period,

25. EWERIE — &

(a)

JEN L & % 5 2 MRIE R AL A i
AR T 3 0 T AR 1T % 49133,000 95 70
(& —4F 1 161,000 0) 2 MEI K
TH > M AR 2 7] 3 58 5 A B OB 4
WA - B 2 B OE 2 {5 R R A
K5 B T K 4 AR T E © 7 H AR T

i -

3 R a0 (E I A S (E 2
W B 4 % 5 BRIAN & AR B R 0 AT

the aging analysis (from settlement date) is as follows: (&5 5 H R FH) nr
2022 2021
—E-= TR T AR
HK$’°000 HK$°000
FTHERT T
0-30 days 030K 129 145
31- 60 days 31 860K 1 13
Over 60 days [N ETIPN 3 3
133 161

The accounts receivable from cash clients with a carrying amount
of approximately HK$9,102,000 (2021: HK$8,574,000) are
neither past due nor impaired at the end of the reporting period
and the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the

amounts are recoverable.

Accounts receivable from margin clients are secured by
clients’ pledged securities with fair value of approximately
HK$11,686,337,000 (2021: HK$34,659,941,000).
Significant portion of the pledged securities are listed equity
securities in Hong Kong. The loans are repayable on demand
subsequent to settlement date and carry interest typically at a
range from 7.236% to 9.500% per annum (2021: range from
7.236% to 9.500% per annum) at 31 March 2022. Securities
are assigned with specific margin ratios for calculating their
margin values. Additional funds or collateral are required if
the outstanding amount exceeds the eligible margin value
of securities deposited. The collateral held can be pledged
and can be sold at the Group’s discretion to settle any
outstanding amount owed by margin clients upon failure to

provide additional fund against shortfalls.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE

(b)

A WK > HRTE £ 499,102,000
JG (ZF T —4F 1 8,574,00045 0) 2 M
W B 4 5 5 2 R T ST 8 3 1 R 4
{8 > AN &) 2 558 0 AT BH 38 S T LA
el o

JET R 75 & % FIREY LEF 2 K
R SR - TS Z A REL
7411,686,337,00045 U6 (& ——4F :
34,659,941,000% J0) ° A& s I 17 g A
S A B AR R S ) B A o A
CECOCE=ZA=+—H FRSK
TE &5 L F M A% 8040 4 AR 3K I R
Fi AR ) A F-7.236JE £ 9.500H ( %
AR AR R R A T7.236)H %£9.500
JE) FHE - BHEEM T C 2 RE S
R AR S EE - A RER
HEBBOGFAZBERN S GRS
SEME > MGEREFRMLEIES
SIS S o T RRA 2 AR A T DL PR
o 1 R A HE LA AN B A HE BT A R
WRF o 74 A [ AT [ R 51 2 B DA T AR
A P AT 2 AT ] R R R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - continued

Notes: — continued

(b)

— continued

Included in accounts receivable from margin clients arising

from the business of dealing in securities are amounts due

from directors and their close family members. The details

are as follows:

Name

f4

Mr. Hung Hon Man, director of

the Company, his close family HEERBERAMR
members and a conolling entity —— — [E{ < |

Mr. Cham Wai Ho, Anthony, BRERE RAAES)
director of the Company, hisclose £ EH R A

family members

Mr. Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk,
dircctor of the Company, his close ~ EEEZ
RER-FEHTR

family members and a controlling
entity

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

25. EURBRIE — &

BbaE - — A

(b)

—#

50 5 S 2 2 M R e
ST+ G 0 L 5 A
K AT

HEEE (ALAEE)

HRBEE (RLTES)

Maximum amount Market value of
Balance outstanding pledged securities
&8 BEARELE ChiE b A
A A At Duringthe  During the At At
1 April 31 March 31 March yearended  year ended 31 March 31 March
2020 2021 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 2021 2022
#% gz
“E- —EoCE
ZR2RE RCES-F RSRISE ZAS-H ZRZt-R RCRCF RORSSR
MA-B ZA=t-0 =ZA=t-H 234 LEE =H=t-H ZR=t-A
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HKS'000
T Tin Tin T Thn T TEn
313,595 290,060 185,463 33,077 326,890 9,056,720 1,589,411
- - - - 204 3,648 -
b5 17 - 44 18 153 -

The above balances are repayable on demand and bear

interest at commercial rates which are similar to the rates

offered to other margin clients.

DL %5 i 5 2B IR SRR A 9 NI 42 B L At
175 4 0 P AR A 2 ] AR 2T 1 7 3
ES e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

26. INVESTMENTS 26. RE&E
2022 2021
—E2-= - S
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7 FET ARCP
Mandatorily measured at FVPL: BE LR D RERA
BHZ2ARFE:
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong ik b T A W 2R 110,356 117,184
Unlisted convertible note FE b T AT e A 2R (a) 14,304 13,815
Unlisted debt securities FEHEEERS (b) 66,054 116,558
Unlisted equity securities LA ESE (c) 126,521 46,316
Payment for life insurance policy N 17N A (d) 2,117 2,061
319,352 295,934
Mandatory FVOCI: BERAARKETA
Ht2mE s :
Debt securities B I (e)
— Quoted in Hong Kong — RE#ELEN 81,190 155,224
— Quoted overseas — AN BT 39,166 102,349
120,356 257,573
439,708 553,507
Analysed as: B
Current b 238,196 375,986
Non-current JE B 201,512 177,521
439,708 553,507

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. INVESTMENTS - continued

Notes:

(a)

The Group held an unlisted convertible note with principal
amount of HK$18,462,000 (2021: HK$18,462,000) at
31 March 2022 which was issued by a Hong Kong listed
16%) per
annum and was due in May 2020. The fair value of the

company, bears fixed interest of 16% (2021:

unlisted convertible note amounted to approximately
HK$14,304,000 at 31 March 2022 (2021: HK$13,815,000).

Upon the expiry of the convertible note in May 2020, the
Group is no longer entitled to convert the whole or any
part(s) of the principal amount into ordinary shares of
relevant issuers at a price determined with reference to the
terms and conditions of the unlisted convertible notes.

The fair value of the unlisted convertible note at 31 March
2022 and 2021 was estimated with reference to the receivable
amount of the investment adjusted by the liquidity.

At 31 March 2022, the Group held one (2021: two)
redeemable bonds with principal amount of HK$65,000,000
(2021: HK$15,000,000 and HK$100,000,000 respectively)
which was issued by a private company (2021: a listed
company and a private company respectively). The
redeemable bonds bear fixed interest at 8% (2021: 10% and
8% respectively) with due date in June 2022 (2021: August
2021 and June 2021 respectively).

The fair value of the redeemable bonds at 31 March 2022
and 2021 were estimated by RHL Appraisal Limited, an
independent firm of professional valuers not connected with
the Group.

At 31 March 2022, the Group invested USD5,125,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$40,225,000), USD940,500
(equivalent to approximately HK$7,307,000), USD3,108,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$24,322,000) and
HK$55,000,000 in Blue Elixir LLC (“Blue Elixir”), Vantage
Absolute Return Fund SP1 (“VARF SP1”), Ace Season
Investments Limited (“Ace Season”) and Billion Wealth
LPF (“Billion Wealth”) respectively (2021: USD5,125,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$40,225,000) and
USD900,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$6,992,000)
in Blue Elixir and VARF SP1 respectively).

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

26. RE—E

(a)

AEEBEA B FB LA ABETIM
MRoFE - _F=HA=+—HzA%E
HH 518,462,000 U6 (L F T —4F
18,462,000% 6) 2 JF b T n] #f i 22
P& o A B T 4 R S i R A R R 16
Eu?: A 16E) FHE 3 B R
TR TFAER A o JE AT g
HEER _EFE__F=HA=+—HZ
N FAH B #914,304,0008 00 (& ——
4 113,815,000 90) ©

AR —F A A E
% > ZIK%EITﬁTJ’“ﬁ%;FLFﬁT?ﬁ
BSR4 2 A B AR AR T T e Y A%
ﬂ%jf@ﬁx/\ﬁEZ%jﬁjﬁrjjﬁfﬁZ’Kj‘z
TR 2 FH B 3547 N 2 @ L

LT AR ER —F R
FOFEEAEZTHZARMEIS
25 HL 2 TS Il < NG U B A
Al &t e

S S i & ) Jr*El 7L<%
AL —MAAAR (TF " —
o s /A DS 1 N N/ i D)
BEAT M AN 4 FH 565,000,000 JC (—
T —4F 4 Al £15,000,000% 96 K&
100,000,000 &) &~ —JH (& ——
A W IH) wHE R fE SR o R [ i 4
S (B —4F + Rl F510)8 K 8 )
Zlﬁlxﬁﬂi% Bl =& AN H

TR S F A
,&#7# HERNA) B o
AERESF R S R R
FEZHA=Z+—HZA R B EAE
%] i 40 [ 78 2 9 37 5 260k (B AT Ak
AT RFAE R A PR 2wl Al & o

MR_EZ_HE=ZH=Z+—H > A%

] 43 il $% %5,125,0005% 76 (F & iR &)
40,225,000 JG) ~ 940,5003 JC (HH
H O #17,307,000% JC) ~ 3,108,000
%0 (M & it %924,322,0004 50) K&
55,000,000%5 JC A Blue Elixir LLC
([ Blue Elixir |) ~ Vantage Absolute
Return Fund SP1 ([ VARFE SP1 /)
Ace Season Investments Limited ([ Ace
SeasonJ &%%ﬁ[‘ﬁ/ﬁ\;g%ﬁ (T 7
B (ZFZ @téy‘ﬂﬂ&fémzs,ooo
F o0 (K & B 940,225,000 J0)
900, 0003%75 HHE TR £16,992, 000{%75
1A Blue Elixir 2 VARF SP1) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-__"F#=FA=+—HIFEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

26. INVESTMENTS - continued

Notes: — continued

(c) — continued

The underlying investment of the above unlisted equity
securities mainly comprise investment properties, securities
listed in Hong Kong and overseas and unlisted equity

securities in Asia-Pacific Region.

The fair values of the investment in unlisted equity securities
at 31 March 2022 and 2021 were estimated with reference to

the net assets value of the investment.

The amount represents a life insurance policy with an
insurance company to insure a staff of Red Eagle under which
Red Eagle is the beneficiary and policy holder and the total
insured sum is HK$2,000,000. The subsidiary is required
to pay an upfront payment at inception. The Group can,
at any time, withdraw cash based on the value of the policy
at the date of withdrawal, which is determined by the gross
premium paid plus accumulated guaranteed interest earned
and minus any charges made in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the policy. If withdrawal is made between
the first to tenth policy year, as appropriate, a pre-determined

specified surrender charge would be imposed.

As represented by the directors of the subsidiary, the Group
will not terminate the policy nor withdraw cash prior to
the tenth year for the policy and the expected life of the
policy remained unchanged from the initial recognition.
The balance of the payments for life insurance policy is
denominated in HK$, being the functional currency of the

relevant subsidiary.

The guaranteed interest of the policy is at 3.75% per annum
for the first policy year, 3% per annum for the second policy
year and 2% per annum for third policy year to tenth policy
year onward and no guarantee interest for eleventh policy
year onward during the effective period of the policy.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. INVESTMENTS - continued

Notes — continued:

(e)

The Group held quoted debt securities with principal
amount of HK$167,858,000 (2021: HK$253,706,000) at 31
March 2022 which bear interest of 5.20% to 12.38% (2021:
4.70% to 12.38%) per annum and will be due in 2022 to
2026 (2021: 2021 to 2026). The Group also held quoted
perpetual debts with principal amount of approximately
HK$15,665,000 (2021: HK$15,550,000) at 31 March
2022 which bear interest of 5.9% to 7% per annum (2021:
5.9% to 7% per annum). The fair value of these quoted
debt securities amounted to HK$120,356,000 (2021:
HK$257,573,000).

The fair values of the debt securities at 31 March 2022 and
2021 were estimated with reference to the price quoted by

independent brokers.

27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

26. BRE— &

MfaE - — A

(e)

AEFERAR T F=H=1—
H 2 74 4 % 5167,858,000% 7t (%
. —4F : 253,706,000% 75) 2z i fE
B 0 A B SR A R R5.20/E &
12388 (& — —4F 1 4.70)8 £12.38
JE) FFEW A S ERE CF
TONEEIM (CF A R
E T TNE) o REMINFFA R
CECCFEZA=Zt—HZAEHE
#1 F515,665,000% o0 (& . —4F
15,550,000% 7C) Z ik A5 7 > H
REF|Rs 9 E7E (—F . —4 159
JEZE7HE) 5HE o W% EHEBE R
28 fe Ml £5120,356,000% 96 (- F L —
4 1 257,573,000% 9C) o

BEHEEFR - F - FERE
EAET HZARMBRSHBMILK
K WAE AL R o

27. AN FIE - REREtERR

RECEIVABLES 5
2022 2021
—E-= - e
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
g FExT T
Prepayments FH AT 2R IE 1,639 1,488
Other deposits A 4% 4 3,628 8,938
Other receivables Al R Ui R IE (a) 55,391 37,904
Deposits paid for acquisition of property U B4 2 M 5%l 2
and equipment et 4 - 25,136
60,658 73,466
Less: Loss allowances on other receivables i : F fth JE it 3k JE
Z N5 1R 1A (12,933) T
47,725 73,466
Analysed as: I3
Non-current JE i B - 25,136
Current it B 47,725 48,330
47,725 73,466
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BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

248

28.

29.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES - continued

All current balances are expected to be recovered within one
year except for deposits of approximately HK$3,628,000
(2021: HK$2,740,000).

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risk and
loss allowance for ECL of other receivables is set out in note

6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Note:

(a)  All other receivables are repayable on demand except for
HK$22,500,000 will be repaid in July 2022.

BANK BALANCES — CLIENT ACCOUNTS
The Group receives and holds money deposited by clients

and other institutions in the course of the conduct of the
regulated activities of its ordinary business. These clients’
monies are maintained in one or more segregated bank
accounts. The Group has recognised the corresponding
accounts payable to respective clients and other institutions
(note 31).

BANK BALANCES - GENERAL
ACCOUNTS AND CASH

The amounts comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits at market interest rates ranging
from 0% to 0.32% (2021: 0% to 0.25%) per annum.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE

T

28.

29.

EARIE - ZEREMERK
H-&

JIT A U B A A 2 TR — AR g [
M 4)3,628,000% JC (= F = — 4 :
2,740,000%5 J0) 2 3% & BRAb o

A B A S 1 T S 2 A B L g DA e At
JE WS TE 2 TR A B 18 2 e R 15
ZERL > BN AR A BB R R HT LG o

fiak -

(@ Fr22,500,000% G —F L
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30. ASSETS/LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
On 30 November 2021, the Group entered into a sales

and purchase agreement with an independent third party,
to dispose the 100% of its equity interests in Grace Field
Limited (“Grace Field”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group, at a consideration of HK$422,153,000 (the
“Disposal”). Details of the Disposal have been disclosed
in the Company’s announcement dated 30 November
2021 and circular dated 20 December 2021. A deposit of
HK$126,000,000 was received during the year ended 31
March 2022. The Disposal has been completed on 14 April
2022.

The major assets of Grace Field were classified as
non-current assets held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5. The investment property of Grace Field was presented
under investments segment in accordance with HKFRS 8.
The major classes of assets and liabilities of Grace Field held
for sale measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell at the end of the reporting period are

as follows:

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

30. Ap BABFHEEEREZ

EE 88

AR —F+—HA=+H &%
B EB S =TT BB WaE s D
422,153,000% 7 2 fCfE ) B AL H 2
BB s ml A A R AR (TFEE ) 1
1009 HE (THEFIH]) - BEFIH
MR RANF H IR =% = —4F
T—A=tHZAMEHME %
T AT HZE R E - B
BRI A= —HIEEE
£ W BL126,000,000% JC 2 1% 4 o H
HIECH F AP A Y H SR »

$E ) £ 2 E A ORI s 5 il
e QS SR A R AR B 2 B &
FE o ARAR T s P i ME LU SR 8T HE
HI I 5 G SR B E 0 78 v 28 - ¢
PR 2 38 I 28 E A AR
S A ) R 2 M T BEL % e (90 A
AW EZBRER = W

HK$’°000
FET
Investment property (note 19) PG 2 (F5E19) 431,000
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TE AT FRIE > $ 4 R H A E W 3k 383
Bank balances — general accounts and cash ATHG i — — IR I B4 2
Tax recoverable a] i e i IE 1,833
Total assets classified as held for sale DA FREEE 2 BH 433,218
Accrued charges and other payables JRE w2 R R HAth A 3
Deferred tax liabilities (note 36) P& AL BT & fE (Bﬁuf36) 4,212
Total liabilities associated with assets classified B M A {EEEE G B 2 A EHH
as held for sale 4,215
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BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

31. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

31. E{JBRIE

2022 2021
—E—-= TR T4
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
i FERT T T
Accounts payable arising from the MHREEEGPELEZ
business of dealing in securities: JEEAS R IA
— Cash clients -3 (a) 198,575 374,297
— Margin clients —REEEF (b) 222,492 295,300
~ HKSCC —F R (a) - 2,043
Accounts payable to clients arising from & & 4 H & ¥EH +
the business of dealing in futures 7E A 2 AT %5 5 AR IA
contracts (c) 96,057 24,159
517,124 695,799

No aging analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of directors

of the Company, the aging analysis does not give additional

value in view of the nature of business.

(a)

The normal settlement terms of accounts payable to
cash clients and securities clearing houses are two days

after trade date.

(b) Amounts due to securities margin clients are repayable

(c)

on demand and carry interest at 0.025% (2021:
0.025%) per annum. Included in accounts payable
to margin clients arising from the business of
dealing in securities are amounts due to directors
of the Company, their close family members and a
controlling entity of approximately HK$386,000
(2021: HK$553,000).

Accounts payable to clients arising from the business
of dealing in futures contracts are margin deposits
received from clients for their trading of futures
contracts on the Hong Kong Futures Exchange
Limited (the “HKFE”). The excesses of the
outstanding amounts over the required initial margin
deposits stipulated by the HKFE are repayable to

clients on demand.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE

BREB ZMH > AN R EHB IR
i 73 A7 Sl S AN o PR L S B A R
Rt 7 AT o

(a)

(b)

(c)

JE A B % 5 B i O 4 O T 2 iR
AW IER IR S HAEMH -

R T8 5 R e T K E JE R E R
R A 22 8l H. 90,0258 (=& ——
A0 0.0250H) 2 A FIREHE o W5 SR
HEEGELEZEMARBLEEZF
HRIA T > WG EM AL A #EH
1 5 2 B G0 B B o B
1Y 2K TH £9386,000% 0 (& . —
4 1 553,000 90) ©
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BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

32. AMOUNTS DUE TO 32. RIEER KR RFIE

NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

i BH E 2y A~ G S S ZE i B R
demand. g o

33. ACCRUED CHARGES AND OTHER 33. Bt ERARHEMENSKIE

PAYABLES
2022 2021
—E-= = E S
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T 0
Accruals w2 4,645 5,330
Other payables HC At JE A IH 4,202 3,308
Receipt in advance FE I K TE 172 149
9,019 8,787
34. LEASES 34. HE
Lease liabilities HEEE

W E =A==+ —H ER
B IR S 22 A B R R A 2.289% (
A 1 2.28%) o

At 31 March 2022, the weighted average discount rate
applied was 2.28% (2021: 2.28%) per annum.

Commitments and present value of lease liabilities: RIERHEAENIRE
Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payments lease payments

BREBAEMNSRK BEEAENRZRE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—ECE | R | B ZFE | FE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT TH T FExT T
Amounts payable: JREAT 4% -
Within one year —4ER 378 1,183 377 1,163
In the second to fifth B OEEE RN
years inclusive (B3 & B W 4F) - 378 - 377
378 1,561 377 1,540
Less: future finance charges & @ A% 2& A %5 2t (1) (21) - =
Total lease liabilities HESEREE 377 1,540 377 1,540
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BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

34. LEASES — continued

34. HE - &

Lease liabilities — continued

The Group leases office premises, berth and staff quarters
for its daily operations. Lease terms are ranging from 2
years. Certain leases provide the Group with an option to
terminate the leases after expiration of the first year with 2
months’ notice. The interest expenses on lease liabilities are

set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

HEERE-&

A G BRSNS P - B B T AE
MR HEEE - MM A2EARSE o
T RE B A A T RT LA R AE AR
AEHT R @A R - HE A
AR B M) S, B S SR % 6 P 785 S 3R A
12 ©

The Group has recognised the following amounts for the AL N ER LN 5
year:
2022 2021
—E-= - Sy
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T
Lease payments: &AL
Short-term leases A E 883 899
Leases of low value assets KEEHEEHRS 233 280
Expenses recognised in profit or loss AR AE ERR 2 B 1,116 1,179
Lease payments on lease liabilities HE AR HE MK 1,183 752
Total cash outflow for leases THE 2 B4 4% 2,299 1,931
Commitments under leases HERE

At 31 March 2022, the Group was committed to approximately
HK$74,000 (2021: HK$74,000) for short-term leases and
no commitment (2021: HK$233,000) for leases of low

value assets was noted.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE

Mo FE - FZHZ—H o REH
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BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE

Year ended 31 March 2022
35. BANK BORROWINGS 35. RITIEE

2022 2021
—E—-— TR T 4R
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT T#T

Secured bank borrowings, variable rate EEEELIDS IR Y Bl
WATIEE 94,553 -
The maturity of the bank borrowings based on repayment R 45 B K Rl IR > e 2 K ) 5 0 4R

schedule (ignoring the effect of any repayment on demand

T EEEI B (ORFE BAT AT 4% ZORE 5K

clause) pursuant to the loan facility letter are as follows: MR Z R 28) IR
2022 2021
—E-— TR T AR
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx ARCPM
Within one year —AE R 7,547 -
In the second years inclusive B (S EEMAE) 7,547
In the third to fifth years inclusive BEAE R AR
(B HEME) 22,641 -
Over five years HAERL E 68,553 -
106,288 —

The interest rate of the Group’s bank borrowings is Hong
Kong Interbank Offer Rate (“HIBOR”) plus 1.5% per
annum (2021: Nil).

The bank borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and secured by the Company’s property and
equipment and investment properties with carrying value
of approximately HK$467,001,000 (2021: HK$Nil) and
corporate guarantee was provided by the Company which
are set out in notes 41 and 43 to the consolidated financial

statements.

ALEE W RITE SRR EFHRIT
M 2E4R S (& s RATR ZE4R 2 ) m4E
HRLSHE (T - —4F 0 ) o

SRAT B L ST RHE » 3 AAS A A IR
I {H 47467,001,000% 70 ( & ——4F :
T T0) 2 W2 B A R G W 24
AP > 0 g A A PR AL A FIAE MR > 5
5 A 55 B RS 3R B k41 B4 e
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BE-_ZT-__"F#=FA=+—HIFEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

36. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the deferred tax (assets) liabilities
recognised and the movements thereon during the years
ended 31 March 2022 and 2021:

36. IEIEF 1E

UT?%EEE_?#ﬁﬁﬁ_g:*E
ZA=Z+—HILFEECHEZIEER
H(EE) AED L)

Collective
Revaluation impairment
Decelerated tax ~ Revaluationof ~ of Mandatory on loans and
depreciation properties FVOCI advances Total
EftRH
& ROAEFA  EHREX
RERE EftNE  Efp2EUE  ZRENE Chl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
Tk Tk Tk T Tk
Ac T April 2020 e e <11 R (176) 7474 (3.923) () 3,370
Charge to profit or loss for the year ‘ff[l BAEERS (Hi15)
(note 15) 95 - - - 99
(Credit) Charge to other comprehensive (FFA) TR AR R Foth 2 it
income for the year - (373) 3,401 - 3,028
At 31 March 2021 REZZ—FZA=F—H (81) 7,101 (522) () 6,493
Charge to profic or loss for the year MBASE R (H3E15)
(note 15) 27 - - - 7
Credit o other comprehensive income AR 2T
for the year - (2,368) (8,869) - (11,237)
Transfer to liabilities associared with assers ~ BHZEFELEEEAE
held for sale (note 30) 25 R (Wik30) (1,410) (2,800 - - (4212)
At 31 March 2022 W-B-ZEZA=1-H (1,464) 1931 (9,391) 6) (8929)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated
unutilised tax losses of approximately HK$128,574,000
(2021: HK$143,096,000) available to offset against future
profits. The tax losses have not been recognised due to
uncertainty of future profit streams and may be carried

forward indefinitely.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE

AR R A 4R F A £9128,574,000
Wt (F = —4 1 143,096,000% 7C)
ZAG T A B B TE S 48 AT DR 8 R
A& i A o HH A SR BE R A A Y 28R R
A o DR U S 4 e RR B T S 4R > AT BB
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BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

36. IEERI1E — &
MR AL BLTE (4 ) £ Gk S S 1 S

36. DEFERRED TAXATION - continued

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax (assets)

liabilities for financial reporting purposes:

AT

Assets Liabilities
BE =R
2022 2021 2022 2021
—Eg2=-= TR AR | 2R BT 4
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T FExT T
Decelerated tax depreciation AR 3 54 I 47 85 (522) (522) (942) 441
Revaluation E (12,412) (1,165) 4,952 7,744
Collective impairment on loans 3K K K 2
and advances A5 B8 W AE (5) (5) - o
Deferred tax (assets) liabilities IEAERL A (& E)
=K (12,939) (1,692) 4,010 8,185
37. SHARE CAPITAL 37. R A
Number of shares Amount
RHER -]
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E=-= TR | TR TR T4
’000 ’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T2 Tk FExT THTT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 4§ B 18 {E0.17# JC
2
Authorised: e
At the beginning and the end of i it 5 #1 4]
the reporting period KR E B R 30,000,000 | 30,000,000 | 3,000,000 | 3,000,000
Issued and fully paid: E AT R
At the beginning and the end of A e 4 H )
the reporting period L EB R 9,662,706 | 9,662,706 966,270 966,270
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BE-_ZT-__"F#=FA=+—HIFEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 16
May 2002 has expired on 5 June 2012. The Company has

adopted a new share option scheme (the “Option Scheme”)

pursuant to a resolution passed on 24 August 2012. The

major terms of the Option Scheme are summarised as

follows:

(a)

The purpose of the Option Scheme is to provide
an incentive for eligible participant to work with
commitment towards enhancing the value of the
Company and the shares for the benefit of the
shareholders of the Company and to retain and attract
persons whose contribution are or may be beneficial to

the growth and development of the Group.

(b) The eligible participants of the Option Scheme

(c)

include: (a) any executive director, or employee
(whether full time or part time) of the Group or any
entity in which the Group holding an equity interest
(“Invested Entity”); (b) any non-executive director
(including independent non-executive directors) of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and (c) any such
other persons (including but not limited to supplier,
customer, consultant, adviser, contractor, business
partner or service provider of the Group or any
Invested Entity) who in the absolute discretion of the

Board has contributed or will contribute to the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the relevant class of
securities of the issued share capital of the Company

from time to time.

(d) The total number of shares which may be issued upon

exercise of all share options to be granted under the
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Group must not in aggregate exceed the number
of shares as shall represent 10% of the total number of

shares in issue.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE

38. BRRRESTE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

(e)

®

(g)

(h)

(i)

()

The total number of shares issued and which may
fall to be issued upon exercise of the share options
granted under the Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group (including both exercised
or outstanding options) to each participant in any
twelve-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued

share capital of the Company for the time being.

There is no minimum period required for the holding

of a share option before it can be exercised.

A share option may be exercised at any time during a
period to be determined by the directors, the period
may commence on a day after the date upon which the
offer for the grant of share options is made but shall
not be later than ten years from the date of grant of the

share option.

The acceptance of a share option, if accepted, must be
made within 5 business days from the date of the offer

of grant of the share option.

The exercise price of a share option must be the higher

of:

(i)  the closing price of the share of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations on
the date of the offer of the grang;

(ii) the average closing price of the share of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations for the five trading days immediately

preceding the date of the offer of the grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the share of the Company.

The Option Scheme will expire on 23 August 2022.

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

38. BIRAERTEI - &

(e)

®

(8)

(h)

(i)

()

AT ART + A8 7 9 T R AT AR 4
S P HEE ) % A B TR AT ] A
JBCHE 5 8 i 42 0 2 B RHE > T 2
] % 2 B3 384T M v BRZH M) 45 2
B B AT 2 I M (TR R L5 E
AT 8 1) R AT (G IRAE W ) > A
15 AR AR N W) E R BB AT AR 2
1% °

i s - ) S SR AR E TE AT AT
TERF A W IO HE 2 f S A BR

Fil e HE T S S R 2 TR
BE R AT 60 > 320926 i 4R 42 T
BERHE R N 2 B R 2
A5 11 T P HE Y 030 AF I T

2 B35 Q01 H 9 i JCE > B RO B2
WA S RO A R D AR T
CERERRE Y NS

e 2 AT AR ZH % R 8 =&
ZREE

() R THERERRA
976 B 22 B 2 B H UE
SR A NN N S T
i ;

(i) BHEEERTHRER
# HHAHT AL 52 5 B AE
Wt 22 i 2 4 B 8 & T
IR Z AR ) BT 0
s s &

(iii) AN 2wl B A7 1 {H

Mt B . 4 A
= HW -
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B

E_E__F=-A=+—HLHFE

Year ended 31 March 2022

38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

On 16 January 2019, options to subscribe 289,800,000
ordinary shares were granted to 3 eligible participants other
than employees under the Option Scheme at an exercise
price HK$0.26 per share. The validity period of the share
options is two years from the date of grant (i.e. from 16
January 2019 to 15 January 2021). The share options vest
immediately as the eligible participants are not required
to complete a specified period of service before becoming
unconditionally entitled to those equity instruments. The
Company recognised the services provided in full at the date

of grant.

On 21 August 2019, the refreshment of scheme mandate
limit under the Option Scheme was approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting
by way of an ordinary resolution. The Company is thus
entitled to issue a maximum of 966,270,593 shares upon
exercise of the share options to be granted under the
refreshed scheme mandate limit, representing 10% of the
issued shares as at the date of the annual general meeting
held on 21 August 2019.

On 20 November 2020, outstanding options to subscribe
289,800,000 ordinary shares under the Option Scheme
were cancelled and share option reserve of HK$8,776,000

has been transferred to retained earnings accordingly.

No share options were exercised during the years ended 31
March 2022 and 2021.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE
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BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

38. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued 38. B ERT 8l - &
There was no share option granted to eligible participants BE_F__HF=A=Z=t+—HIL#F
during the year ended 31 March 2022 and no outstanding E M A A S ERT ER
share options as at 31 March 2022. W RN E T HEZH =+ —HINE
ARAT o g P HE
Details of the movements of share options for the year BE_F - —F=A=Z+—HILHFE
ended 31 March 2021 are as follows: W I RESE B R AN T
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE_X - —F=H=1T—HILFE

Number of shares issuable under the Option Scheme

I RE Gl
Ac T April - Granted during Exercised Cancelled Outstanding at

Category 2020 the year  during the year ~ during the year 31 March 2021
i

i o

“F2%E ZA=t-H

KAl MA—-R  ERKL FREE FREE WA
Non-employee eligible participants FEEZAERSEE 289,800,000 - - (289,800,000) -
Weighted average exercise price per share (HKS) BRI HE (B 0.26 - - NAAEH -
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BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE

Year ended 31 March 2022

39. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 39. Htt RS REH
Details of the changes in the Group’s liabilities from AEEEMESHELE AEZEH)
financing activities are as follows: SR
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-_E_—_H=A=+—HLEE
Non-cash changes
FREeEH
At At
1 April Net cash Interest Dividend 31 March
2021 flows expense declared 2022
R=%B=-% BeR R=B=-Z%
mA—-H R FE@Y GEERKRE =ZA=1-H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TET THERL TER TR
Bank borrowings RITHEE - 92,941 1,612 S 94,553
Dividend payable TEAT RS - (96,627) - 96,627 -
Dividend payable to non-controlling M T— i 3F 2 ¥ W & /A 7l
interest of a non-wholly owned V& 20370 v 3!
subsidiary - (40,518) - 40,518 -
Lease liabilities MEEE 1,540 (1,183) 20 - 377
Net cash used in financing activities i % % B 7 Fi 31 4 1 4 1,540 (45,387) 1,632 137,145 94,930
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE_EF - —HF=ZH=+—HILEE
Non-cash changes
B4 EH
At At
1 April Net cash Interest Dividend  Additions of 31 March
2020 flows expense declared lease 2021
it IS
Y S 22 I Si2
WA—-H HEREE  AMEMT CERRE  REHE ZA=1-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
T T T T T T
Bank borrowings RifEE - (3,098) 3,098 - - -
Dividend payable B - (86,964) s 86,964 - -
Dividend payable to non-controlling ~ FEff T — i3 2 KB /A Al
interest of a non-wholly owned V& 2 v v d:
subsidiary - (33,765) - 33,765 - -
Lease liabilities fEafk - (752) 28 - 2,264 1,540
Net cash used in financing activities GRS 4 HE - (124,579) 3,126 120,729 2,264 1,540
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40. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

41

The Group has joined a pension scheme under the
rules and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately in an independently managed fund. The
Group has followed the minimum statutory contribution
requirements of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate
income, subject to the maximum amount of HK$1,500
per month. The contributions, amounting approximately
HK$1,118,000 (2021: HK$999,000), are charged to the

profit or loss as incurred.

. BANK FACILITIES

At 31 March 2022, the Group had banking facilities
totaling HK$858,000,000 (2021: HK$918,000,000)
granted by financial institutions in Hong Kong. These
banking facilities are secured by charges over clients’
pledged securities and certain of the Group’s properties and
by corporate guarantees issued by GNFG and the Company.
Details of the Group’s pledged assets are disclosed in note 43

to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 March 2022, the Group had undrawn amounts under
these banking facilities of approximately HK$763,447,000
(2021: HK$918,000,000).

During the reporting period, bank borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$649,608,000 (2021: HK$8,086,789,000)
were advanced from banks and repaid approximately
HK$555,055,000 (2021: repaid in full) during the year.
The borrowings are secured by (i) charges over clients’
pledged securities with interest bearing with a range from
0.55% to 1.80% (2021: 0.48% to 7.28%) per annum and
repayable within 14 days from drawdown date and (ii)
pledged by the Group’s certain property and equipment and
investment properties with interest bearing with 1.5% plus

HIBOR (2021: Nil) per annum and repayment on demand.

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

40. 3R ¢k 48 X 5+ 2

41.

7 S [ AR 45 5 ) A B A RT3 AR
ZHLR B 5 E W TR A B E B
SHIR KR &8 ((BESE]) - &
BestdlzEmd — M\ EMES
P A o A 42 ] AR 98 Rk K
B  MEEREESAGREAR
Z5% Mt 3K B & B 2 1 A 1,500%
JG o B B 491,118,000% 0 (. F . —
1 999,000 7T) 2 k3K A A A IR AE
H S HIBR o

RITHRE

MRoFE - HE=ZA=+—H  A%EH
T s & BB I A ££858,000,000
Wt (ZF . —4F 1 918,000,000% JT)
ZHATEEE WEBRITEEEEU
KEZEHEHBELE ALEETY
2 DL A AR AR AN R A
A ERAEHCH o AR F ORI 2 B &
FEE TR ARG I R M sE4a kR -

WoEFE D CFEZH A —H o AEE
16 M 55 SR AT 15 8 8 P i R 48 BB
55 #1763,447,00085 JC (& . —4F ¢
918,000,000%5 JT) °

AR ] SR AT Y R AT E B
% 15649,608,000% 70 (& . —A4F ¢
8,086,789,000% JT) Mlff EL it 4F 1A i 2 £
555,055,000H8 70 ( =& = —4F : BHE
H) o WEBEOUEF WEMESEL
A %A A 50,558 £1.80)8 (—
T4 0.48)8 £7.28)H) 7 E M H
TEARBCH WE 14K NME R 5 RGi) LA
L 1 37 T ) 2 sk il DA A& )
FhARAT > 4 A R 2R 2y 1.5 H N A s 4R AT
FZEREFTE (OF 4 ) > /4
F TR o
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BE-_ZT-__"F#=FA=+—HIFEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

42. COMMITMENTS 42. &I
Capital commitments EAREE
2022 2021
—_E-= TR T AR
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET T#T
Capital expenditure contracted but not ABLT IE HzZEsT#
provided for in the consolidated financial {HIA G A B R
statements in respect of: KRB EARR L
Addition to investment properties NEREWE 470 921
Addition to property and equipment UNERIEI &L ] - 556
470 1,477
43. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 43. BER#H

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been

pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group:

PATF BRI 2 B O AR > FEA A
B B P SR AT (5 R A

2022 2021
—E-= TR AR
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHERx T T

Hong Kong it

Property and equipment - Leasehold land W3 RO - T 1 345,801 64,142
Property and equipment - Buildings LE Y& 52,200 36,600
Investment properties PG 69,000 -
467,001 100,742

In addition, the Group’s banking facilities are also secured whHN s RN EFE - FE=HA=Z+—H >
by charges over clients’ pledged securities of fair value of AEHZROTHEEHESH L RELY

approximately HK$246,726,000 (2021: HK$276,093,000)
at 31 March 2022 and corporate guarantees issued by

GNFG and the Company.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE
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BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. BAEALTRS
In addition to the transactions/information disclosed % 454 B 15 3R 35 oA 3 10 BT 3% 5% 2 3¢
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, during 5 ERAN  AREE A NHEIT LT
the year, the Group had the following transactions with N

related parties:

(a) Transactions ) X5
Name of related party Nature of transaction 2022 2021
BMEATHSE B8 REME —g=-= ZE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT T T
Messrs. Hung Hon Man, Cham Wai Ho Brokerage commission 2,353 2,364
Anthony, Kam Eddie Shing Cheuk, Hung Sui  income (note i)
Kwan, Shum Kin Wai Frankie, Cheng Wai
Ho, Ng Hon Sau Larry, their close family
members and controlling entities
UEEE SRR - HEEE SR - HIRMESEAE KA B U (B 5ED)
BeEG e A~ A ERE g
R ek - R EE S
2 R LB DA B ¥
Messrs. Hung Hon Man, Cham Wai Ho Interest income (note ii) 13,274 17,430
Anthony, Kam Eddie Shing Cheuk, Hung
Sui Kwan, Shum Kin Wai Frankie, Ng Hon
Sau Larry, their close family members and
controlling entities
LS AE SR e HORAE e F B A (B s
BT A EEE - REREL
1 5 2 B0 K i LB DA T R
Mr. Hung Hon Man’s associate Rental income (note iii) 600 600
S P NN AU A (B FEiii)
License fee income 240 140
(note iv)
R RT R B A
(Bt 5Eiv)
Notes: it 3
(i) Commission was charged at 0.1% to 0.25% (2021: O i’H‘“;CEJ AHZ0.1%%
0.1% to 0.25%) on the total value of transactions. 0.25% (& — — 4 1 0.1% %
0.25%) YL HL o
(i) Interest was charged at 7.236% to 9.500% per (ii) B ﬂﬁ’ﬂ‘ﬁ 236JE %9.500/E
annum (2021: 7.236% to 9.500% per annum) on the : T — 4 1 7.236H F9.500
outstanding balances of margin loans. JH ) 7 R 2 T AR 58 H R R ME
WA BRI o
(iii) Monthly rental fee was charged at HK$50,000 during (i) HE-"F " "HF=H=+—HIk
the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: HK$50,000). N A ﬂﬁlﬁxzfﬁiﬁso 000
HEIE (& —4F 50,0009 7T)
(iv) Monthly license fee income was charged at HK$20,000 (ivy 2 FZ-_ "4 =H=+—HI
(2021: HK$20,000) during the year ended 31 March CN RN RN Qo - U R
2022. A £520,000% 70 (=& = — 4 ¢

20,000%7T) ©
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BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS -

continued
(b) Remuneration to key management personnel

The remuneration of members of key management,
other than directors as disclosed in note 14 to the

consolidated financial statements, was as follows:

44 BBEBBALTXRS —E

b) TEEBAESZHFM
W 5 5 B 5 ik 2% B k1407 B R 2
HHI KW FEEEHABZH
(R U

2022 2021

—E-= B 4

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET THs T

Salaries and other benefits 4 N HoAh AR A 4,693 5,938
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  #E R 48 |t #1 {1t 2k 118 118
4,811 6,056

The remuneration of directors and other key management
personnel is determined by the performance of individuals

and market trends.

45. ACQUISITION OF NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS OF SUBSIDIARIES
On 18 March 2021, GNFG, a 72.99% owned subsidiary of

the Company, entered into a sales and purchase agreement
with Get Nice Development Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, to dispose of 100% of GNFG’s
equity interests in NobleNet Limited (“NobleNet”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the GNFG, and its
wholly-owned subsidiary, Grace Field Limited (“Grace
Field”) (together the “Disposal Group”) at a consideration
of HK$454,575,000 (the “Disposal”). The Disposal results
in a gain of approximately HK$338,817,000 in GNFG.

Upon the completion of the Disposal, the NobleNet Group
became wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company which
constituted an acquisition of 27.01% interests in NobleNet
Group at Group level. The carrying amount of the
non-controlling interests has increased by HK$91,588,000
which represents the share of non-controlling interests over
the gain on Disposal at GNFG.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE

EE Y SN UE sl NP
T A AR N SR B BT M B E

45. WRKM B AR 2 FERER

W F_—F=H+N\NH> &4
Rl (A% N & A 72.99%HE 25 19 Bt & A
Al) BLAE A EE A R A R (R AR
EHHE A A FToLE E Wk AR
H454,575,000% 70 th & &Y 4 4 Fl R
NobleNet Limited ([ NobleNet |) (%
U< Y 42 BN A WD) e A
@ mFERAARAE ([HEE]) (5H
[ B EE ] 100% 8 HE ([H & F
T L) o B o TE {1 45 A 4 S A 0 25
#1338,817,000%5 TG °

A S 35 TEH 58 TR NobleNedfE H %
By AN w4 M A R R R
48 ) Jig 1 I BN obleNedfE [ 1927.01%
BE 25 o JE P M WE 2R A9 BR T (E 4
91,588,000%5 7C > R IE #2 JI% M 4 HE A 45
U< Y S S IE I AR
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

46. A2 B Z B MR &

2022 2021
—E2=-= — ZE S s
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
R 7 FExT RPN
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property and equipment E & 20 24
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries )N A i
& 46(a) 1,844,473 1,844,473
1,844,493 1,844,497
Current assets RBEE
Deposits and prepayments e KA FOE 766 586
Amounts due from subsidiaries JARE W I ) 2 R I 2,749,683 2,721,519
Bank balances — general accounts RATH R — — IR P
and cash & 534,755 160,900
3,285,204 2,883,005
Current liabilities REBEE
Accrued charges and other payables JRE it N Ath At
B IH 2,784 585
Promissory note payable to subsidiary JRE AT BT JBS 2 H 2 7K
R 218,913 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries JREAF BT Ja 2 ) K IH 798,276 616,162
1,019,973 616,747
Net current assets REBEEFEE 2,265,231 2,266,258
NET ASSETS EEFE 4,109,724 4,110,755
Capital and reserves BEXR#EE
Share capital JBe AR 37 966,270 966,270
Reserves ek AR 46(b) 3,143,454 3,144,485
TOTAL EQUITY B 4,109,724 4,110,755

(a) Included in unlisted investments in subsidiaries

are deemed capital contribution amounting to
HK$60,840,000 (2021: HK$60,840,000). The capital

contribution represents the imputed interest on

interest free amounts due from subsidiaries which are

not expected to be recovered within 12 months from

the end of the reporting period.

(a)

B A El 2 FE bR E
60,840,000 76 (— & — — 4 :
60,840,000%5 7) Z HL1E & - i
AR D 2 B A ) R (T
AN HOE BA R R FF 1248 A ik
M) 2z 45 FE
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BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE

Year ended 31 March 2022

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY - continued

46. RPN B 2R RK— &

(b) Movement of the reserves (b) fEEEE
Share
Share Special option  Retained
premium reserve reserve  earnings Total
ROBE BrFEE BREGRE RERF ok
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000
Wi FEE T FEE TR TEE
(note i)
(W35
At 1 April 2020 AFE-FENA—H 2,933,438 194,549 8,776 3,675 3,140,438
Profit for the year EEERF - - - 91,011 91,011
Transactions with owners: HBEBAZRS
Contributions and distributions & KR
~ Cancellation of share options — kS 1 38 - - (8,776) 8,776 -
— Dividends to owners — A ANREZIRE 16 - - - (86,964) (86,964)
- - (8,776) 12,823 4,047
At 31 March 2021 P Sa3
=H=1+—H 2,933,438 194,549 - 16,498 3,144,485
Profit for the year KEERR - - - 95,596 95,596
Transactions with owners: HBEEAZRS
Contributions and distributions & R R
— Dividends to owners — AN NREZ RS 16 = - - (96,627) (96,627)
= - - (1,031) (1,031)
At 31 March 2022 \“E--%&
=ZRA=+-H 2,933,438 194,549 - 15,467 3,143,454
Notes: Bt RE -
() HRFFAARLN A RO - B AT

(i)  As included in the share premium of the Company,
the transaction costs of the placing were paid to its
subsidiary, Get Nice Securities Limited (“GNS”) and
would be eliminated in the consolidated financial

statements.

(ii) At 31 March 2022, the reserves of the Company available

for distribution to shareholders were approximately

HK$3,143,454,000 (2021: HK$3,144,485,000) which

comprised the share premium, special reserve and

retained earnings.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE

(ii)

LWL 2> W) & B R A PR A
([ ) < B 22 55 A
T B B B i 3 P B o

MR-EZHF=A=+—H &K
NI Kb el A )
£43,143,454,000% ¢ (. F . —
4F 1 3,144,485,00050) > BLHG
13-3as A8 ~ 5 Pt 5 T A% 7 28R o
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BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 47. TENMB R EIFRE
SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are ANFZ EEWME AR FEHBWNR :
as follows:
Issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
Place of Class of paid share capital/ issued share capital/registered capital ~ Principal
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held registered capital held by the Company activities
BRTRAE FAFABEZERTRE/
WEARER R R FERDERN KA/ FREXR FMEFEER L TEEER
2022 2021
—E-CF Y e

Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
EE  BE | HE MK

Get Nice Financial Group  Cayman Islands Ordinary HK$25,000,000 72.99 - 72.99 - Investment holding
Limited
ERERERARAT  HEEE Tk 25,000,000% 7 &R
King Joy Asia Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary USs1 - 79 - 7299 Investment holding
(“BVD)
BREWARA R ERETHS A B E1g-¢i1
Red Eagle Securities Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$60,000,000 - 72.99 - 72,99 Securities dealing
and broking and
securities margin
financing
ERBAHRAAE ik Ty 60,000,000 7t W RH R
£ R E 5
RESHE
Get Nice Incorporated BVI Ordinary US$10,000 - 79 - 7299 Investment holding
EEELEE LAk 10,000% ¢ REnR
GNS Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1,660,000,000 - 72.99 - 72,99 Securities dealing
shigEk Hi B 1,660,000,0007 7T and broking and
securities margin
financing
wHEEREL
£ RE S
RESHE
Non-voting HK$40,000,000
deferred shares
(note a)
BEEHE 40,000,000 7T
HEI (B 5Ea)
Get Nice Currency Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 7299 3 72.99 Inactive
Exchange Limited
RHRIAHRA R i T 1T TREL
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BE-_ZT-__"F#=FA=+—HIFEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 47. T EMBABHFE &
SUBSIDIARIES — continued

Issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
Place of Class of paid share capital/ issued share capital/registered capital ~ Principal
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held registered capital held by the Company activities
ERATRMR ARAREZERIRE/
WEAREM AMRIBE  FEROER RE/ERER AMEXEEED L TERE
2022 2021
—E-CE _ECF
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
ER BB HE  MH
Get Nice Capital Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 - 72.99 - 72.99 Corporate finance
services
K REARA &k B 10,000,007 72 1SR T
Get Nice Futures Company ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$60,000,000 - 72.99 - 72.99 Futures and
Limited (2021: options broking
HK$20,000,000)
KM EA IR &t Tk 60,000,000 ¢ MERAEEL
e 5
20,000,000 )
Get Nice Silk Road BVI Ordinary US$10,000 - 72.99 - 72.99 Investment holding
Investment Limited
RIFAHBEARAA  REELRS  HER 10,000% 72 BT
Get Nice Asset Management Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$5,000,000 - 72.99 - 72,99 Asset management
Limited services
HEREERARAAT  FE Tk 5,000,000 ¢ HEERRE
Billion Wealth Investment ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 - 7299 - 7299 Investment
Management Limited management
REREEAARAT  FE gL LT REEH
Steppington Holdings BVI Ordinary US$10,000 - 7299 - 72.99 Investment holding
Limited
EREAHE  TEk 10,000% 7 BE
Pacific Challenge Futures ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 - 72.99 - 72.99 Investment holding
Hong Kong Limited
RFEERMEARAR ik il 10,000,000 T RE TR
Get Nice Investment Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1 - 729 - 7299 Holding of yacht
Limited
B EARAR Eik L 1 1A A
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BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 47. T EMBABHFE &
SUBSIDIARIES — continued

Issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
Place of Class of paid share capital/ issued share capital/registered capital ~ Principal
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held registered capital held by the Company activities
BRARME ARARAZERARE/
() Pk AMRIESE  FRROEN RE/EREX AMEXEEED L IREH
2022 2021
- St -3 “F_k
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
ER BB | HE W
Bravo Nice Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 - 72.99 - 72.99 Investment holding
REEAHE  HEk 170 BREER
Dixten Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1 - 72.99 - 72.99 Administrative
service
MR Eik Tk 1T B
Treasure Advantage Limited  BVI Ordinary US$1 100 - 100 - Investment holding
ERELHE Bk ES fERR
Prime Pacific Investments ~ BVI Ordinary UsS$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
ERELHE Bk ST gl
Dragon Rainbow Limited ~ BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
ERELHE Bk £ B
Group Success International  BVI Ordinary Us$1 - 100 - 100 Inactive
Limited
ERELHE Bk B3 LEEE
Better Dynamic Limited ~ BVI Ordinary Us$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
ERELHE Ak BT B
Get Nice Finance Company ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 - 100 - 100 Money lending
Limited
H AR A &ik gl 2T iR
Allex International Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100 - 100 Holding of motor
vehicles
LEMIBARA R Eik L 10,0008 7T AR
Gain Peak Asia Limited BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
ERELHE  HEk 1% SR
Gainventure Holdings BVI Ordinary USs1 100 - 100 ~ Investment holding
Limited
ERELHE  HER B SRR
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47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 47. T EMBABHFE &
SUBSIDIARIES — continued

Issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
Place of Class of paid share capital/ issued share capital/registered capital ~ Principal
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held registered capital held by the Company activities
BRIRME ARAREZERIRE/
HELAAE ARMRIESE  FSROEN RE/ERER AMEXEEED L IREH
2022 2021
—E-CE _ECF
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
ER BB | HE W
Get Nice Entertainment BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
KR A IR ) REELAHE  HEk EIH BERER
Get Nice International Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1,000 - 100 - 100 Inactive
Limited
KR PR A IR ) Eik L 1,000 ¢ B3 £
Clever Switch Limited BVI Ordinary Uss1 - 100 - 100 Inactive
ERELHE Bk S TRER
Genius Wise Holdings BVI Ordinary UsS$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
ERELHE Bk 1% B
More Profit International ~ BVI Ordinary US$10,000 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
EEELHE  HER 10,0005 ¢ BHEER
Great China Company Macau Quota capital  MOP100,000 - 65 - 65 Inactive
Limited (“Great China”)
NGk 2] L35 RHEA 100,000 1 8 L B3 £
(TRH#))
Get Nice Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
B RRARA #ib HHR 1,000,000 ¢ BRER
Great Right Holdings BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
EERBRARAR ERELHE  HER B R
Rise Fortune Group Limited BVI Ordinary US$50,000 - 100 - 100 Inactive
ABEAGRAA ERELHE Bk 50,000% 7T TRER
Joyful Villa Limited BVI Ordinary UsS$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
ERELHE ik £ BB
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47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 47. T EMBABHFE &
SUBSIDIARIES — continued

Issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
Place of Class of paid share capital/ issued share capital/registered capital ~ Principal
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held registered capital held by the Company activities
BRARME ARARAZERARE/
() Pk AMRIESE  FRROEN RE/EREX AMEXEEED L IREH
2022 2021
—E-CE SR

Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
R BE| HE  M#

Quality Champion Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$9,000 - 100 - 100 Property holding
AR R ] ik Tk 9,000 & ESLTIe
Venturecorp Investment BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
ERELHS AR 1% e
Rich Mount Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS!1 - 100 - 100 Property holding
A WA ik L 1T PEFE R
Peak Prospect Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
ERELHE L [ESH iggadle
Vast Cheer Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2 - 100 - 100 Property holding
BEARAR Fi L 2T P3P
Billion Times Limited BVI Ordinary UsS$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
EREAHEE  LEk 1570 igeadle
Get Nice Real Estate Hong Kong Ordinary HK$4,000,000 - 100 - 100 Property agency
Limited
HIFEFARAHE it Lk 4,000,000 7T L]
Profit Union Holdings BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 = 100 Investment holding
Corporation
ERELHE L IEH B
Hon Yeung Auction Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1,000,000 - 95 X N/A Inactive
(“Hon Yeung”) N
EFMELARL (E Bk LEk 1,000,000 16 WiRE
7))
Infinite Treasure Group BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 z 100 Investment holding
Limited
ERELHS T B g el
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47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 47. T EMBABHFE &
SUBSIDIARIES — continued

Issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
Place of Class of paid share capital/ issued share capital/registered capital ~ Principal
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held registered capital held by the Company activities
BRIRME ARARAZERARE/
HELAAE ARMRIESE  FSROEN RE/ERER AMEXEEED L IREH
2022 2021
nt- St -3 I S
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
ER BB | HE W
Bowell Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 - 100 - 100 Property holding
AEHRAH Eit gl 1T UESELS
Ace Way Business Limited ~ BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
ERELHE Bk £ BERER
Get Nice Property Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 - 100 - 100 Property
Management Company management
Limited
EHDFERARLA  FE gL 17 UESE
Macro Music Company Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$10,000 - 100 - 100 Music school
Limited
ShRFH AR Eif gl 10,0004 7T FRENR
Legend Soccer Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100 - 100 Event organiser
KERL A A A #ik T 10,0004 ¢ REEH
Get Balanced Company Hong Kong Ordinary HKS!1 - 100 - 100 Inactive
Limited
&ik Lk 1 LE3 £
Hong Kong Get Nice Table  Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2 - 100 - 100 Sports club
Tennis Sports Club
Limited
FibAF ERRERE A gl 27 Bragsd
AR
Jumbo Excel Corporation ~ BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
ERELHE  HER ES BE R
Access Mission Limited BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Property holding
(“Access Mission”)
ERELHE R B UESELs
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47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 47. T EMBABHFE &
SUBSIDIARIES — continued

Issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
Place of Class of paid share capital/ issued share capital/registered capital ~ Principal
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held registered capital held by the Company activities
BRARME ARARAZERARE/
() Pk AMRIESE  FRROEN RE/EREX AMEXEEED L IREH
2022 2021
—E-CE SR
Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
ER BB | HE W
Jumbo Excel Group Limited BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
REEAHE  HEk 1% BRERER
Apex Magic Asia Limited ~ BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Inactive
ERELHE Bk EIH BEEE
Power Success Holdings BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Incorporated
ERELHE Bk ES BERR
Fairy Gather Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 - 100 - 100 Property holding
WA RAF &k gl 1 B
Power Success Group BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Incorporated
ERELHE Bk £ B
Bright Rarity Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 - 100 - 100 Property holding
AR &ik gl 1 UES L
Mega Trillion Group BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
ERELHE Bk BT B
Pearl King Holdings Limited BVI Ordinary US$100 - 100 - 100 Property holding
ERELHE  Hak 100%7C WRER
Smart Best Asia Corporation  BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
ERELHE  REk 1% B
Super Times Overseas BVI Ordinary US$100 - 100 - 100 Property holding
Limited
EEELRE  FER 100387 WL
Ultimate Billion Limited ~ BVI Ordinary USs1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
ERELHE  HEk ES SRR
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BE-_ZT-__"F#=FA=+—HIFEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Issued and fully
Place of Class of paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary incorporation shares held registered capital
ERATRMR
HELAAE ARMRIESE  FSROEN RE/ERER
Tao Yun Company Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20
REARAH &b gL 2087
NobleNet (note b) BVI Ordinary US$1
NobleNer (fff#tb) £y YRy L 1€
Grace Field (note b) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2
HEH (Hf3Eb) Eif gl 2T
Notes:
(a) The non-voting deferred shares, which are held by a director

of the Company and a director of GNS, carry practically no
rights to dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or
vote at any general meeting of GNS and on liquidation, the
assets of GNS available for distribution among the holders of
ordinary shares and the holders of non-voting deferred shares
shall be applied first in paying to the holders of ordinary
shares the sum of HK$1,000,000,000,000 per ordinary
share and secondly in repaying to the holders of non-voting
deferred shares the nominal amount paid up or credited
as paid up on such shares, and the balances of the GNS’s
assets shall belong to and be distributed among the holders
of ordinary shares in proportion to the amount paid up or

credited as paid up on such ordinary shares respectively.

Details of changes in ownership interests of subsidiaries are

set out in notes 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

Except for Great China established and operated in Macau
and Access Mission operated in United Kingdom, all

subsidiaries are operating in Hong Kong.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE

47. TEMBRAFRE &

Proportion of nominal value of
issued share capital/registered capital ~ Principal

held by the Company activities
ADNAREZERORE/
AMEXEEED L TERE
2022 2021
—E-CE SR

Directly Indirectly | Directly Indirectly
ER BB HE  MH

- 100 - 100 Property holding
UESELS

- 100 - 72.99 Investment holding
REmR

- 100 - 7299 Property holding

B 5E -

(@ HWANFA—ZERREETHFSE 4
R R 2 A SR A S R R L
SERENC I B, > IR SR IR A o R
AT B RO o 3 4 B R B SR &
A EE o A TE AR > A TR SR ] it
R T 98 A N T e 45 T I S S
FRA N 2 8 M SE DA SAS A T S
1,000,000,000,000% I 2 K H T 3
MR A N > A DUE A By
2 CBIUR A R S S0 T T A
SERERAL R N A IR S 2 A
JEE i M A A R AN 0 3l 43S
Fie A0 5 A B A A 2 O SRR B
By 802 Bk 2 L B4 IR o

(b)  BiHJE 2~ m) A REME £ 2 5 B R SO
B T B R I 45

(o) BRI AT A8 78 2 K 2 DL R
L #8485 2 Access MissionZb > T A Kt
| AT i F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Financial information of subsidiary with individually

material non-controlling interests (“NCI”)

The following table shows the information relating to
GNFG, a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has material
NCI. The summarised financial information represents

amounts before inter-company eliminations.

BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

47. TEMBRAFRE &

AERBEREARFERES ([FERE
#m)2—HHEBARZMBEER
RS A O IR R I A 2 JF &
I E A e i ERE o A B B
B BRI B AR R A R RS < &
e

At 31 March At 31 March
2022 2021
R-E—Z W E A
=A=+—-RHA | =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THs T
Proportion of NCI’s ownership interests FFiZERER 2B EE LB 27.01% 27.01%
Non-current assets JE B & = 326,000 28,201
Current assets ) 4,550,902 4,749,143
Current liabilities i) B fE (531,729) (755,383)
Non-current liabilities FE i H) A i (7,211) (915)
Net assets % E 4,337,962 4,021,046
Carrying amount of NCI JEPE R AE 45 2 BE T (E 1,172,067 1,086,460
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BE_ZT_—_F#=-A=+—BHLFE
Year ended 31 March 2022

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES - continued

47.

Financial information of subsidiary with individually

material non-controlling interests (“NCI”) — continued

FTENMBLARAFRE &

AERERNEAFERES ([FERE
#w)2—HHBAR M BER &

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
2022 2021
BE-ZE-C BE_E 4
ZA=+—-8| ZA=+—H
LHEE 1L
HK$’°000 HK$’000
THER T
Revenue & 366,998 385,154
Expenses B 52 (238,948) (171,945)
Profit for the year (note) A B U6 A (B EE) 128,050 213,209
Other comprehensive income Ho At 2 T 58 49 1,364
Tortal other comprehensive income for the year — 4F B Ho Al 2 Ty i 5 48 %A 128,099 214,573
Profit attributable to NCI T 12 5 B 2 I A s 34,524 57,592
Other comprehensive income attributable I FE A 25 B A
to NCI A 2 T R 4R 13 368
Total comprehensive income attributable 2 JCHE 4 1 A5
to NCI EXIEE 3| 34,537 57,960
Dividends paid to NCI I) IF 2 BROHE 25 R 3% 2 B (40,518) (33,765)
Net cash flows from (used in): DI IEE B S (B Al
ZHERETE
Operating activities IR 943,565 205,338
Investing activities 5 & 5 109,175 (3,475)
Financing activities &S B (159,383) (129,557)

Note: Profit for the year of GNFG has excluded a gain on
disposal of the Disposal Group to Get Nice Development
Limited of approximately HK$338,817,000. Details of the

Disposal is set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial

statements.

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE

B GE © A5 o 4 R AT B N R R A 45 5 6
S 8 T 4 A s R A R ALk
i £1338,817,000%5 7 ° A B 1 =
TR FHE A 45 6 B HGR B TE45 o
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BE-_ZT-_—_#=fF=+—HItEE
Year ended 31 March 2022

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 47. TEMBARFR &
SUBSIDIARIES - continued
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned ARG A IF RN A 2 A B [ F
subsidiaries of the Group that have NCI: G E AR LR

Proportion of ownership

Place of Principal place  interests and voting rights held Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary incorporation  of business by non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
FERRRRE 2 RARRSR
WEATER AMRLBE TEERMEH REFELA PEFHERES 2 BN Lt FERER
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

“BCC-F | 2R | 2B | ZEC % | ZBZZEF | X8
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TER T THERL THT

GNFG and its subsidiaries Cayman Islands ~ Hong Kong 27.01% 27.01% 34,524 57,592 1,172,067 1,086,460
EH MR A A WERE it

Great China Macau Macau 35% 35% 863 754 21,097 20,234
Ko M M

Hon Yeung Hong Kong Hong Kong 5% N/A - N/A 50 -
i Fik Eik A A

1,193,214 1,106,694
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Year ended 31 March
HZ=-A=1-HLEE
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
“E-ME O CE-NE CECFE SF -4 | Z8IZE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T Tt T TER
RESULTS £ |
Revenue g 584,840 561,905 524,524 502,616 441,075
Profit before taxation Bl Al 453,364 311,172 204,280 306,542 156,540
Taxation i (80,364) (79,076) (47,552) (58,556) (60,968)
Profit for the year AR A 373,000 232,096 156,728 247,986 95,572
As at 31 March
R=BA=t+-H
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
“E-NE CR-NE ZRCRE SR - K | ZBEZCZE
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000
T Tk T T TER
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets BEE 7,837,144 8,318,165 7,212,350 7,611,049 7,871,061
Total liabilities BEfE (1,155,603)  (1,685,283) (663,489) (895,290) (926,308)
Total equity B 6,681,541 6,632,382 6,548,861 6715759 | 6,944,753

GET NICE HOLDINGS LIMITED #&#Z=RERAHE
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